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SectionN Important Notes, Cortents and Interpretations

The Board of Directors, the Board of Supervisors, directors, supervisors
and senior management of the Company guarantee that the information
presented in this report shall be together be wholly liable for the truthfulness,
accuracy and completeness of its contents and free of any false records,
misleading statements or material omissions, and will undertake individual and

joint legal liabilities.

Jiang Bin, the person in charge of the Company, and Li Yongzhi, the person
in charge d accounting and the accounting department (accounting supervisor)
guarantee that the financial report in this annual report is authentic, accurate

and complete.
All directors have attended the board meeting to review the annual report.

The Company faces lie risks in market, operation and management.
Investors are kindly reminded to pay attention to possible investment risks. For
details, see "Section Il Discussion and Analysis of Management of the Company,

XI Outlook for the Future Development of the Commany" in this report.

The future plans and some forwardlooking statements mentioned herein
are planned matters which shall not constitute a substantial commitment of the
Company to investors. Therefore, both investors and relevant persons should

maintain their risk awareness and understand the differences among plan,
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forecast and commitment. Please pay attention to investment risks.

The profit distribution proposal considered and approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company is as follows: based on théotal share capital
registered on the record date of equity distribution minus the repurchased
shares in the Company's special repurchase account, the Company will
distribute cash dividend of RMB 2.00 (tax inclusive) for per 10 shares to all the
shareholders, as well as 0 bonus shares (tax inclusive), and there is no conversion

of capital reserves into share capital.

If any discrepancy between the English version and th€hinese versionof

the annual report, the Chinese version shalprevail.
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Directory of Reference Files

(1) Financial statements with signatures and seals of the legal representative, the person in charge of accountingaméhthe pe

chargeof accounting department (accounting supervisor);
(2) The originals of 2021 annual report and its abstract signed by the legal representative of the Company;

(3) The originals of the audit report with the seal of Zhongxi Certified Public Accountants@(gmaeeral partnership) Co., Ltd. and
the signature and seal of the certified public accountants;

(4) The originals of all company documents and announcements publicly disclosed in newspapers designated by China Securities

Regulatory Commission (CSRC) dlug the reporting period.
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Interpretation
Terms Refers to Content of interpretation
Company, the Company, Goertek Inc. Refer to Goertek Inc.
Goertek Group Refers to Goertek Group Co., Ltd., Controlling shareholder of the Compal
) Weifang Goertek Electronics Co., Ltd., wholly owned subsidiary
Weifang Goertek Refers to
the Company
) ) ) Weifang Goertek Microelectronics Co., Ltd., controlled subsidia
Weifang Goertek Microelectronics Refers to
the Company
) Goertek Optical Technology Co., Ltd., wholly owned subsidiary
Goertek Optical Refers to
the Company
) Goertek Technology Vina Company Limited, wholly owned
Goertek Technology (Vietham) Refers to o
subsidiary of the Company
ODM Refers to Original Design and Manufacturing
JDM Refes to Joint Design and Manufacturing
The micro electreacoustic components that transform electrical
signal into acoustic signal, generate driving force, through the
magnetic line cutting of voice coil in magnetic field, to drikie
Micro speaker Refers to diaphragm vibration, which then pushes the air for sounding.
Compared with the micro receiver, it's characterized by higher
power, wide frequency response and high fidelity, which is geng
used for playing the sound.
Based on micrafmano technology, Micro electro mechanical syst]
(MEMS) is a technology developed for designing, processing,
manufacturing, measuring and controlling micron/nano material
MEMS can integrate mechanical components, optical system a
MEMS Refers to ] o ] )
electric control systm of driving components into a whole unit of
micro system, featured with miniaturization, intelligence,
multi-function, high integration and being suitable for mass
production
The acoustic component composed of one or severab Fpeakers
Speaker module Refers to and other electronic devices, which are assembled together thr
an injection molded housing.
) A portable device that can be worn or carried directly, or integral
Smart wearable devices Refers to ) .
into the user's clothes or accessories
Virtual Reality/VR Refersto  |A computer simulation system that can create and experience V|
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world by using computer to generate a simulation environment
which the users immerse.

A technology that perfectly integest virtual information with the
real world. By making extensive use of multimedia, 3D modelin
reattime tracking and registration, intelligent interaction, sensin
Augmented Reality/AR Refers to and other technical means, it applies the compgdaerated text,
images, 3D models, musivideo and other virtual information to t
real world after simulation. These two kinds of information
complement each other to enhance the real world.

The new types of smart wireless earphones represented by TW
(True Wireless Stereo) earphones connect the left and right
) earphones with smart phones and other terminal devices throug
Smart wireless earphones Refers to )
Bluetooth technology to form an independent stereo system, wh
realizes touch control, voice control, body information collection

other functions by adding various sensors.

Also known as SiP (System in Package) packaging module at tl
system level, it integrates multiple chips and passive componer
into the same package through advanced packaging such a
Micro-system module Refers to technologies 3D packaging to form a module with whole or mai
functions of an electronic system, so as to realize the optimal
combination of performance, volume, weight and other indicato

is a comprehensive emerging microelectronics technology.

A detection device that is capable of feeling the measured
information, and able to transform the perceived information int
electrical signals or other required forms of information for outp
Sensor Refers to ) ) ]
based on certain rules, in order to meetréftpiirements of
information transmission, processing, storage, display, recordin

control.

Company Law Refers to Company Law of the People's Republic of China

Securities Law Refers to Securities Law of the People's Republic of China

Articles ofAssociation Refers to Articles of Association of Goertek Inc.

CSRC Refers to China Securities Regulatory Commission

yuan (RMB), ten thousand yuan (RMB), hundred million yuan
(RMB)

RMB, RMB 10,000, RMB 100,000,000, Refer to

Reporting period Refers to January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021

Explanation on Other Matters

In this report, any difference between the sum of partial sums and the sum of detailed items is due to rounding.
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Section Il Company Information and Key Financial Indicators

|. Company Information

Stock abbreviation Goertek Inc. Stock code 002241

The stock exchange where stog
. Shenzhen Stock Exchange
are listed

Name of the Company in Ching M E

Abbreviation of theCompany in

. M
Chinese
Name of the Company in Englis
: Goertek Inc.
(if any)
Abbreviation of the Company in

L Goertek
English (if any)
Legal representative of the ) )

Jiang Bin

Company
Registered address 268 Dongfang Road, Higtech Industrial Developmentistrict, Weifang

Postal code of registered addre 261031

Previous changes of registered
No change
address of the Company

Business address 268 Dongfang Road, Higtech Industrial Development District, Weifang

Postal code of business addre§261031

Company website http://www.goertek.com

E-mail ir@goertek.com

[l. Contacts and Contact Information

Board Secretary Securities Affairs Representative

Name Jia Jun'an Xu Yanging, Xu Dapeng

268 Dongfang Road, Higtech Industrial |268 Dongfang Road, Higtech Industrial
Contact address

Development District, Weifang Development District, Weifang
Tel. 05363055688 05363055688
Fax 05363056777 05363056777
E-mail ir@goertek.com ir@goertek.com
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[1l. Information Disclosure and Place of the Report

Website of the stock exchange for release of the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (http://www.szse.cn)
Annual Report

Name and website of the media for release of the|Securities Time<hina Securities JournaBhanghai Securities News
Annual Report Securities Ddy, CNINFO http://www.cninfo.com.ch

Place where the Annual Report is available for ) )
) . Office of Board of Directors of the Company
inspection

IV. Changes in Registration

Organization code 91370700729253432M
The changes in main business since the Com
) . No change
was listed (if any)
Changes of controlling shareholders of the
No change

Company (if any)

V. Other Relevant Information

Accounting firm engaged by the Company

Name of the accounting firm Zhongxi Certified Public Accountants (special generalraship) Co., Ltd.

Business address Room 1101, No. 11, Chongwenmenwai Street, Dongcheng District, Beijing

Names of accountants signing th ) .
Du Yeqin, Mou Huiling
report

The sponsor institution engaged by the Company to perform continuous supetuisianthe reporting period

4 Applicable I Not applicable
~__|Business address of the spon Duration of continuous
Name of the sponsor institutic L Name of sponsor representat .
institution supervision

9th Floor, Building BKayheng

) - Center, No.2 Chaoyangmenn From June 12, 2020 to
China Securities Co., Ltd. o Guan Feng, Huang Zhenyue
Street, Dongcheng District, December 31, 2021
Beijing

The financial advisor engaged by the Company to perform continuous supervision during the reporting period

I Applicable & Not applicable

O . Key Accounting Data and Financial Indicators

Whether the Company performed a retrospective adjustment or restatement of previous accounting data

I Yes & No

2021 2020 Yearon-year change 2019




Goertek Inc.

Annual Report 2021

Operating revenue (RMB) 78,221,418,618.0 57,742,742,893.9 35.47% 35,147,806,427.1
Net profit attributable to shareholders

4,274,702,999.3  2,848,007,269.6 50.09% 1,280,542,212.6
the Company (RMB)
Net profit attributable to shareholders
the Company excludingon-recurring 3,832,421,177.2  2,758,911,040.0 38.91% 1,348,634,308.2
profits and losses (RMB)
Net cash flow from operating activities

8,598,475,527.8§ 7,682,256,113.6 11.93% 5,451,430,414.5
(RMB)
Basic earnings per share (RMB / sharg 1.29 0.89 44.949 0.40Q
Diluted earnings per share (RMB / sha 1.28 0.89 43.829 0.40
Weighted average return on net assets 17.61% 16.409 1.21% 8.19%

December 31, 2021

December 31, 202

Yearon-year changg

December 31, 201

Total assets (RMB)

61,079,051,133.2

49,117,826,313.4

24.359

34,660,304,627.2

Net assets attributable to shareholders
the Company (RMB)

27,327,747,993.9

19,653,252,273.4

39.059

16,107,163,639.6

The Company's net profit before and after deductingreonrring profits and losses tine last three fiscal years, whichever is lower,

is negative, and the audit report of last year shows that there is uncertainty in company's ability to continue asregaing co

I Yes & No

The net profit before and after deducting frenurring profitsand losses, whichever is lower, is negative.

I Yes & No

0 . Differences in accounting data between domestic and foreign accounting standards

1. Differences in net profits and net assets in the financial reports disclosed according to international

accouning standards and Chinese accounting standards

I Applicable a4 Not

applicab

| e

During the reporting period, there is no difference in net profits and net assets in the financial reports disclosetbpursuant

international accounting standards and Chinesetatting standards

2. Differences in net profits and net assets in the financial reports disclosed according to foreign accounting

standards and Chinese accounting standards

I Applicable a Not

applicab

| e

During the reporting periods no differences in pretfits and net assets in the financial reports disclosed according to foreign

accounting standards and Chinese accounting standards at the same time

10
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O . Key Quarterly Financial Indicators

Unit: RMB

The first quarter The second quarter;  The third quarter The fourth quarter

Operating revenue 14,028,169,300.9 16,259,628,386.3 22,501,367,860.9 25,432,253,069.9
Net profit attributable to

965,953,650.1 765,076,109.6 1,601,494,203.2 942,179,036.4
shareholders of the Company
Net profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company

601,329,147.5 808,228,696.4 1,609,128,973.4 813,734,359.7

excluding norrecurring profits an
losses (RMB)

Net cash flow from operating
fivit 873,274,388.6 3,108,904,252.5 1,776,650,281.6 2,839,646,605.0
activities

Whetherthere is significant difference between the above individual or aggregate financial indicators and that of what disclosed in

the quarterly reports and seamnual reports disclosed by the Company

I Yes & No

0 . Iltems and Amounts of Nonrrecurring Profits and Losses
4 Applicable T Not applicable
Unit: RMB
Item 2021 2020 2019 Explanation

Profits and losses on disposal of ranrent
assets (including the wrieff portion of the -122,148,708.5 -219,544,001.3 -195,445,840.6

provision for asset impairment)

Government subsidies included in the
current profits and losses (except those
closely related to the Company's normal
business, comply with national policies a 464,119,437.9 221,372,903.1] 177,315,056.3
regulations, and continuously grant in
accordance with a certain standard quotg
quantity)

In addition to the effective hedging busing
related to normal business of the Compal
the profits and losses from the changes i
fair value arising from holding

held-for-trading financial assets and 185,179,920.9 102,685,404.0 -81,283,474.2,
held-for-trading financial liabilities, as wel
as the investment income obtained from

disposal of heldor-trading financial assets

held-for-trading financial liabilities and

11



Goertek Inc. Annual Report 2021

availablefor-sale financial assets

Other noroperating revenue and

expenditures other than those mentioned 13,554,671.7 5,874,633.4 13,488,075.2
above
Other profit and loss items that meet the

L ; i 2,603,363.2 3,236,394.5 685,750.5
definition of norrecurring profit and loss
Less:Impact of income tax 84,270,186.1 21,159,380.8, -17,148,337.1

Impact of minority shareholders'

. 16,756,676.8 3,369,723.4
interest (after tax)
Total 442,281,822.1 89,096,229.5 -68,092,095.6 -

Details of other profit and loss items that miket definition of norrecurring profit and loss

4 Applicable T Not applicable

It mainly refers to returned service charge for withholding individual income tax and other fees.

Description of defining the nerecurring profit and loss items, which aradid inExplanatory Announcement No. 1 on Disclosure of
the Information regarding the Companies Offering Their Securities to the RWibdin-recurring Profit and Lossas recurring profit
and loss

I Applicable & Not applicable

The Company did not classiny item of the nomecurring profit and loss items listed in tBgplanatory Announcement No. 1 on
Disclosure of the Information regarding the Companies Offering Their Securities to the PNbfigecurring Profit and Lossas

recurring profit and los# the reporting period.

12
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Section IIl Discussion and Analysis of Management of the Company

N . The situation of the industry during the reporting period

During the reporting period, the Company's main business divides into three sdgeiadisg precision components business,
smart audio device business and smart hardware business. The main business of the company is categorized into ththedustry of
manufacturing of computer, communication, and other electronic equipment. The G&mmpaim products include acoustics, optics,
microelectronics, structural components and other precision components, as well as smart hardware products such as TWS smart
earphones, virtual reality (VR)/augmented reality (AR) products, smart wearablesjgéogng console and accessories, and smart
home products. The Company serves the leading global customers in the technology and consumer electronics industngby providi
them with vertically integrated product solutions of precision components andramdwtare, as well as the related design, R&D
and manufacturing services.

In the mobile era when the smartphones became the core hardware devices, a large number of outstakdavgn well
enterprises in technology and consumer electronics industry hagezemeorldwide based on the integration of advanced hardware
devices, software content and innovative applications, and drove the whole industry and related enterprises in itchadugtial
achieve significant growth and enterprise development thraughg period of time in the past. As the growth of the smartphone
industry has slowed down in recent years, the global technology and consumer electronics industry has begun thedraribigion fr
mobile era to the poshobile era.

According to the stadtics of IDC, a weHknown consulting agency, the global smartphone shipment in 2021 reached about 1.35
billion units, with approximately 5.3% YoY increase, which has resumed growth in thegidstic era. But regarding to its overall
performance in remt years, the growth of global smartphone industry has slowed down significantly. Therefore, the players in the
global consumer electronics industry are actively exploring and planning on new opportunities of the future growth ioetge bus

At the sametime, advanced communication technologies such as 5G, along with Al, intelligent interaction, sensor, software
algorithm are further integrated into the new generation of smart hardware products, thus creating a large number witiewsappl
and demansl These new smart hardware products represented by VR/AR devices, smart wireless earphones, smart wearable devices
and smart home products, have developed rapidly in recent years.

According to the statistics of IDC, the global shipment of virtual re@if) products reached about 9.36 million units in 2021,
with approximately 68.6% YoY increase. The global shipment of augmented reality (AR) products reached about 330,008 units, wi

approximately 13.8% YoY increase. The global VR industry continuesaj&d rdevelopment in 2021. More wéthown

13
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manufacturers in consumer electronics and Internet industries actively invest in VR, which promotes the continuous destlopmen
related hardware technology and software content. The global market size of ARtplieditill relatively small, and AR hardware
technology still faces challenges in chips, optical display, communication, power consumption, size and weight. However, AR
products have shown great market potential, and have attracted the global attention.

According to the statistics of Futuresource, a famous consulting agency, the global shipment of TWS smart earphones reached
about 300 million units in 2021, with approximately 37% YoY increase. With more mature intelligent voice interaction uaration
continuous improvement of user experience, the penetration rate of TWS smart earphones in overall earphone market continues to
increase and is expected to keep growing in future. According to the statistics of CCS Insight, anekmenmetonsulting agey,
the global shipment of smart wearable products represented by smart watches and smart bands reached about 232 mijllion in 2021
with approximately 20.2% YoY increase. While the market size is growing steadilyabiginacy health monitoring technoloigy
also under developing and improvement, which is expected to create new applications and market demands for smart wearable
products in the future.

The rapid development of the new generation of smart hardware products has also boosted the demaad foecelmn
components such as higinecision optical components and modules, precision acoustic components, MEMS sensors and
micro-system modules, haptic components, and precision structural parts, thus creating new directions and market spa@mfor preci
components products.

With the new development stage of the industry and the rise of smart hardware products, the industry also shows a clearer
competition pattern. From the perspective of brand and enterprises, the global technology and etestmomécs industry shows a
centralized trend in the competition. The leading enterprises with strong competitiveness and brand awareness denaonstrate cle
competitive advantages by leveraging their resource in technologies, talents, funds, brandssamal iecbsystem, and thus lead
the technology and product innovation in the industry to a certain extent.

From the perspective of supply chain, global technology and consumer electronics industry continued to shift Heedniddle
the supply chain to na and other developing countries. In particular, with the continuous improvement of China's
political/economic environment, fundamental infrastructure, industrial layout, management/technical talent resources and othe
aspects, the overall competitivesseof electronic manufacturing enterprises of China is improved significantly, thus effectively

undertake the demand of global industry, and obtain new development opportunities.

1. The Companyds main business during the re

The Company is agomitted to serve the leading customers in the global technology and consumer electronics industry by
providing vertically integrated product solutions of precision components and smart hardware, as well as related desigd, R&D

14
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manufacturing services.

The Company's main business divides into three segments including precision components business, smart audio device
business and smart hardware business. The precision components business focuses on acoustics, optics, microeletirahics, struc
components,and other precision components. The related products include micro speaker/receiver, speaker module, haptic
component (actuator), wireless charging device, antenna, MEMS microphone, MEMS sensorsysteenomodule, VR optical
component and module, AR tigal component, AR light engine, precision structural parts and etc. The-at@nt®ned products
are widely applied in devices such as smartphones, tablets, smart wireless earphones, VR, AR, smart wearable and smart home
devices. Smart audio device biess focuses on providing products related to audio, voice interaction, artificial intelligence, and
other technologies. The main products include smart wireless earphones (TWS), wired/wireless earphones, smart s|Srakers, etc.
hardware business focusas providing products related to entertainment, health and home security. The main products include VR,
AR, smart wearable products, gaming consoles and accessories, smart home products, etc.

The Company has innovative competitive advantages in the béldsoustics, optics, MEMS microelectronics and precision
manufacturing, and owns many intellectual property rights in the field of precision parts and components. In additionpahg Co
has accumulated rich experience in projects by cooperating witistityleading customers in the field of smart audio device and
smart hardware through "ODM", "JDM" and other business modes. During the reporting period, the Company maintained a good,
long-term cooperative relationship with leading customers in the gtebanology and consumer electronics industry, kept growing
in the number of patent applications and in technological capabilities. As a result, the company has been constandd tgcogniz
global customers for its product solutions and service capalilitl remains being an industeading manufacturer in the fields of
micro speakers, MEMS microphones, MEMS sensors, TWS, VR products, smart wearable products, gaming console and accessories,
etc.

During the reporting period, due to the continuous groeftdemand of smart hardware products such as VR, TWS, smart
wearable products, gaming consoles and accessories, and the related precision components, the Company has achietved significan
growth in revenue and net profit. At the same time, the Comparhefurnproved its position in the industry. During the reporting
period, the Company won many honors, including being ranked the 3rd company in th60T@hina electronic component
enterprises based on comprehensive economic indexes, the 86th compamy Top600 private enterprises in China's
manufacturing industry, the 164th company in the-%56p private enterprises in China, as well as being the executive member

company of CITIF.

n . Analysis of Core Competitiveness

1. Industry -leading precision and ntelligent manufacturing capabilities

15
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In technology and consumer electronics related fields, the Company has been widely recognized for precision manufacturing
capabilities and obtains great reputation. Relying on the core capabilities anteribngxpernce in the field of precision
manufacturing, the Company has continuously improved the processing accuracy, efficiency and quality of precision camgonents
smart hardware products. The Company hakomse development capabilities of various core raaternals, and The Company
adopted multiple advanced processes and technologies such dmglHpaecision mold, highprecision metal/nometal processing,
ultrasonic technology and laser technology, to build inddsagling precision manufacturing cagiies in the production of
precision optical components, MEMS microphones, MEMS sensors, -system modules and precision structural parts, thus
ensuring the delivery of the products with high precision, high efficiency and high quality.

At the same the, the Company actively explores the development of intelligent manufacturing mode based on the capacities of
advanced equipment development and flexible automation production. In the fields of automation, machine vision and tal related
intelligent manéacturing, the Company has built a futtodented core capability of intelligent manufacturing by continuing
investing in independent R&D, introducing global advanced technologies, core equipment and best practice experience for syste
integration, thusmproving the manufacturing in all aspects through the application of information, automation, artificial intelligence
and other technologies. The Company promotes the transformation of its manufacturing to a more digitalized, connégéesd, intell
and sevice-oriented model, and to build the core capabilities of futurented intelligent manufacturing.

2. Multi -technologies integration platform and strong team of R&D personnel

The Company has established a product R&D and manufacturing platform imggnaterials, structures, electronic circuits,
software algorithms, wireless communication, advanced technology, testing, automation and other technologies. Through
crossdomain technology integration, the Company provides customers with advanced amasgssolutions for precision
components and smart hardware products. The Company attaches great importance to the integration and cultivationraf outstandi
talents in the fields of acoustics, optics, microelectronics, wireless communication, pre@siofacturing, automation, and other
sectors around the world. The Company has set up a team of technical personnel with profound technical strength and rich
experience in product projects, and has made atknng cooperation with many wethown universies and scientific research
institutions, such as Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics, Tsinghua University, Shanghai Jiao Tong UHiadyisity,
Institute of Technology, Nanjing University, Southeast University, Changchun Institute ofsOpi® Mechanics and Physics
(CIOMP), Shandong University, China Ocean University(OUC), Changchun University of Science and Technology and Dalian
University of Technology, which forms an open and comprehensive technology R&D platform in support ofocsniimovation
and R&D of technologies and products.

During the reporting period, the Company applied for 3,468 patents, including 2,539 invention patents. A total of 2,675 paten
has been granted, including 1,036 invention patents. Till December 31, tB@2Company has totally applied for 25,818 patents

16



Goertek Inc. Annual Report 2021

(including 3,322 foreign patent applications), including 13,102 invention patents; Total of 15,525 patents have been granted,
including 4,165 invention patents.

3. Continuous strategic innovation and trasformation, and stable highvalue customer relationships

Facing the complex macroeconomic situation of domestic and overseas and the slowdown in the growth of the smartphone
industry, the management of the Company actively carries out straté@gioalation and transformation. While continuing to
consolidate the core competitive advantages in the conventional precision component business, the Company firmly grasps the
innovation opportunities of smart hardware products in technology and conswtieorets industry. Relying on the highlue
customer resources and good customer relationships worldwide, the Company focuses on the market and technology atwl continues
explore new business growth opportunities in the fields of TWS, VR / AR, gamihgcaessories, smart wearable devices, etc. The
Company optimizes the allocation of strategical resource, supports strategical product development, continues strendthening a
further utilize the customer resource advantages by closely following the-@laskl customers, in an effort to transform the needs of
high-value customers into an inexhaustible driving force for the Company's sustainable development.

4. Excellent core management team

Although the Company experiences a rapid and sound developmemiprin management team keeps a steady and efficient
style as always. Facing the challenges and demands of smart hardware products in the post mobile era such as rapid, developmen
high quality, high precision manufacturing, short delivery cycle and conquistomer certification process, the core management
team promptly response to the market and makes changes and innovations continuously, to keep and enhance the Company's
capabilities of strategic management, operation, R&D, precision and intelligenfactaming. The Company attaches importance to
and promotes the internationalization, specialization and rejuvenation of its core management team, and actively lmioigs in se
management talents and professionals from many international leading enteAtricessame time, the Company has strengthened
the echelon of its talent team, more and more young talents grow up into the Company's core management team throagt training
practice. The Company boasts a management team with both experience agdhatationtinues to promote the Company's stable

and fast development in the future.

IV. Analysis of Main Business

1. Overview

In 2021, the national economy was recovering after the outbreak of the epidemic, new changes presented in both domestic and
overseas, and more challenges appeared in the process to maintain the stability of the economy. Under that situation, China

government maintained the continuity and pertinence of macro policies, provided necessary support for economic recovery, and
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adopted a evies of effective measures, such as optimizing enterprise supporting policies, improving business environment,
strengthening technology innovation and stabilizing the industry and supply chain, which finally supported China's economy to
achieve a relativg high growth rate among its fellow countries.

Facing the complex global political and economic environment, the repeated €@VéiDtbreaks in some countries and
regions, as well as the challenges in global supply chain operation, the managemenstafidoflthe Company made their best
efforts to respond, and successfully completed business development, project delivery, epidemic prevention and cotibrol, opera
improvement and other important work. Finally, the Company has achieved excellent busaudts with a remarkable growth in
both revenues and profits in 2021.

In recent years, the growth of the global smartphone market has slowed down. However; BO\A®Impacted people’s lives
and work style, bringing in significant increase of demaod d$mart hardware devices in the applications such as online
telecommuting, social entertainment, sports and health. As a result, the emerging market of smart hardware produasd Bpresent
VR, TWS, smart wearable, gaming consoles and accessories maih#astable and rapid growth. Due to the Company's strategical
investment in smart hardware business in recent years, the growth of the new smart hardware product market has aecelerated th
sound development of the Company's business, in both precisigponents, smart audio devices and smart hardware sectors.

During the reporting period, the Company continued to uphold the product strategy of "precision components + smart hardware"
by actively promoting the business of precision components, such asiegonystics, microelectronics and structural parts, as well
as smart hardware products such as VR/AR, smart wireless earphones (TWS), smart wearable and smart home devices. Especially,
the businesses in VR, TWS, gaming consoles and accessories hasnerpeaigapid growth. By continuing to focus on leading
customers in the technology and consumer el ectronics sindust |
business development have also achieved fruitful results. The promotiba iwiternal reform of the Company has realized more
efficient decisioamaking process, and the continuous improvement of the internal management and operation, lays a good
foundation for the further development of the Company in the future.

During the r@orting period, the Company achieved a revenue of RMB 78,221.4186 million, with a 35.47% YoY increase. The
Company realized a net profit attributable to shareholders of listed companies of RMB 4,274.703 million, with a 50.09% YoY
increase. The operatingstof the Company was RMB 67,167.6667 million, with a 38.54% YoY increase.

During the reporting period, the total amount of the Company's sales expenses, administrative expenses, R&D expenses and
financial expenses was RMB 6,733.702 million, with an 11.8b%increase.

During the reporting period, the Company further strengthened the development of new technologies, products and techniques,
actively brought in highevel R&D talents, and invested RMB 4,301.3428 million in R&D, accounting for 5.50% oéveaue and

15.40% of the latest audited net assets of the Company.
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During the reporting period, the net cash flow from operating activities of the Company was RMB 8,598.4755 million, with an
11.93% YoY increase. The main reasons are as follows: duringepleeting period, the Company expanded the business scale,

improved the operating cycle, and thus the net cash flow from operating activities increased.

2. Revenue and cost

1) Composition of operating revenue

Unit: RMB
2021 2020
Proportion in Proportion in | Yearonyear chang
Amount . Amount :
operating revenue operating revenue
Total of operating
78,221,418,618.0 100% 57,742,742,893.9 100% 35.479
revenue
Classified by industry
Electronic
76,946,324,805.7 98.37% 56,531,616,437.9 97.909 36.119
components
Other business
) 1,275,093,812.2 1.63%  1,211,126,456.1 2.10% 5.28%
income
Classified by product
Precision
13,840,133,491.3 17.69% 12,205,410,031.9 21.139 13.39¢9
components
Smart audio device| 30,297,084,891.2 38.73% 26,674,264,183.4 46.209 13.589
Smart hardware 32,809,106,423.1 41.94% 17,651,942,222 .4 30.57¢9 85.879
Other business
) 1,275,093,812.2 1.63%  1,211,126,456.1 2.10% 5.28%
income
Classified by region
Domestic 7,571,525,782.7 9.68% 6,999,168,774.1 12.129 8.18%
Overseas 70,649,892,835.2 90.32% 50,743,574,119.7 87.889 39.239
Classified by sales mode
Direct selling 77,770,329,729.1 99.429% 57,438,222,579.6 99.479 35.409
Distribution 451,088,888.8 0.58% 304,520,314.2 0.53% 48.139

(2) Industries, products, regions and sales modes accounting for more than 10% of the Company's
operating revenue or operating profit

4 Applicable T Not applicable
Unit: RMB
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| YoY change (% YoY change (%
. . Gross profit ) YoY change (%) )
Operating reveny Operating cost ) of operating ) of gross profit
margin of operating cos :
revenue margin

Classified by industry
Electronic

76,946,324,805.166,054,072,404.3 14.169 36.119 39.249 -1.92%
components
Classified by product
Precision

13,840,133,491.310,641,616,932.9 23.119 13.39¢9 14.579 -0.79%
components
Smart audio

) 30,297,084,891.427,167,160,928.2 10.339 13.589 19.649 -4.54%

device
Smart hardware | 32,809,106,423.128,245,294,543.2 13.919 85.879 82.899 1.40%
Classified by region
Domestic 6,878,087,190.3 5,921,035,748.2 13.919 7.59% 8.97% -1.10%
Overseas 70,068,237,615.460,133,036,656.1 14.189 39.759 43.159 -2.04%
Classified by sales mode
Direct selling 76,499,084,617.165,666,703,312.2 14.169 36.059 39.189 -1.93%
Distribution 447,240,187.9  387,369,092.1 13.399 47.689 50.649 -1.70%

If the statistical caliber of the Company's main business data has been adjusted in the reporting period, adjusted siaitistics
business are based on the caliber at the end of the reporting period of last year.

I Appl iNotadplicable &

(3) Whether the Company's revenue from physical products sales is greater than the revenue from
providing services

4 Yes I No
Classification of _
. Item Unit 2021 2020 Yearon-year chang
industry
Sales volume Ten thousand PCS 540,341.8 413,499.3 30.689
Electronic
) Output volume Ten thousand PCS 546,976.9 416,352.1 31.379
components industr
Inventory volume |Ten thousand PCS 34,036.0 27,401.0 24.219

Reasons for changes in the relevant data over 30%oyegrar
4 Appl i capplicablel No't

During the reporting period, both of the production volume and sales volume of the Company increased.

(4) Fulfillment of major sales contracts and major procurement contracts signed by the Company as of the
reporting period

I Appl i capplicabled Not
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5) Composition of operating cost

Classification of industry

Unit: RMB
2021 2020
Classification Yearon-year
. Item Proportion in Proportion in
of industry Amount Amount change
operating cost operating cost

Direct 55,843,214,176.7 84.549 39,047,644,492.9 82.319 43.019
materials

Electronic Direct labor| 4,058,480,923.7 6.14% 3,401,428,878.8 7.17% 19.329

components |expenses
Manufacturi|  6,152,377,303.8 9.31%  4,990,659,944.9 10.529 23.289
ng expense

Explanation

During thereporting period, the Company's overall sales volume increased. At the same time, the sales revenue of Smart audio

devices and intelligent hardware products with relatively high material cost increased.

(6) Whether there is any change in consolidatioacope during the reporting period

4 Yes I No

During the reporting period, the Company established a subsidiary company GOERTEK MICROELECTRONICS KOREA

CO.,LTD.

(7) Significant changes or adjustments in the Company's business, products or services duringe th
reporting period

I Applicable & Not applicable

(8) Major customers and suppliers

Major customers of the Company

Sales revenue from top five customer 67,695,045,138.6

Proportion of total sales revenue from top five customerg 86,540
total annual sales amoiun '

Proportion of sales revenue from related parties among 0.009
.00%
five customers in total annual sales amount

Information of top five customers

No. Name of customer Sales amount (RMB) Proportion in total annual sales amour|

1 Customer 1 33,238,529,094.54 42.49%
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2 Customer 2 18,457,651,840.64 23.60%
3 Customer 3 8,715,498,516.63 11.14%
4 Customer 4 3,918,367,657.2§ 5.01%
5 Customer 5 3,364,998,029.47 4.30%
Total -- 67,695,045,138.61 86.54%

Other information of major customers
4 Applicable T Not applicable

The top five customers do not have associated relationship with the Company, and the Company's directors, supervisors, senior
management, core technicians, shareholders holding moré%hahtotal shares, actual controlleasd other related parties do not
directly or indirectly own rights and interests in the main customers.

Major suppliers of the Company

Total purchase amount from top five suppliers (RMB) 19,062,697,560.€
Proportion of total purchase amount from top fugpliers in 30,549
total annual purchase amount '
Proportion of purchase amount from related parties among

0.00%

five suppliers in total annual purchase amount

Information of top five suppliers

No. Name of supplier Purchase amount (RMB) Proportion oftotal annual purchase
amount
1 Supplier 1 7,471,595,122.4 11.979
2 Supplier 2 5,464,068,547.9 8.75%
3 Supplier 3 2,732,526,729.3 4.38%
4 Supplier 4 1,834,123,435.4 2.94%
5 Supplier 5 1,560,383,725.1 2.50%
Total -- 19,062,697,560.§ 30.549

Other information of major suppliers

4 Applicable I Not applicable

The top five suppliers do not have associated relationship with the Company, and the Company's directors, supervisors, senior
management, core technicians, shareholders holding mor&%harf total shares, actual controllers and other related parties do not
directly or indirectly own rights and interests in the main suppliers.

3. Expenses

Unit: RMB

Yearon-year o
2021 2020 Note of significant change
change
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Selling expenses

444,869,977.0

476,066,518.6

-6.55%

No significant change

Administrative

1,951,657,773.3 1,629,730,793.0 19.75%No significant change
expenses
The main reasons are as follows: Reduced loss
= o exchange durinthe reporting period; convertible
inancial
167,099,982.3 490,688,772.0 -65.95%bonds were converted into common stocks of tf
expenses

Company, interest expense reduced; interest
income from money funds increased

R&D expenses

4,170,074,282.1

3,425,971,011.4

21.729

No significant change

4. R&D Investment

dApplicable I Not applicable
Names of majo ) Status of o Expected benefits to future
. Purpose of project ) Objectives
R&D projects project development of the Company

R&D project of
micro speaker
module

Develop a new generatid
of micro speaker module
productswith high
sensitivity, low distortion,
large amplitude,
waterproof and dustproo

features.

In progress

According to specific technical
requirements of the customers, the
Company has completed the resea
and development of a number of
advanced micro speakmodule
products, and realized the mass
production in smart phones, tablet
computers, smart wearable and oth

products for main customers.

The project helps consolidate tl
Company's competitive
advantage and market share in
field of acoustic precien

components.

R&D project of
MEMS sensor
and micro

system module

Develop new generation
of MEMS sensors and
micro-system module
products that are applieg
to smart wireless
earphones, smart weara
devices and other

products.

In progress

Complete the R®, verification and

mass production of MEMS sensors
and micresystem module products

for terminal products, such as TWS
smart wireless earphones, smart

wearable devices.

The project facilitates the
business expansion the Compsg
in the field of MEMS sensesrand
micro-system modules, and
further enhances the Company
comprehensive strength in the
field of MEMS.

R&D project of
VR/AR
precision
optical
components ar

modules

Develop the precision
optical components and
module products by usin
emerging opticia
technologies such as
AfPancakebo
foldedlightpath lenses
and waveguide
technology, and promote
their application in

In progress

Complete the R&D and mass
production of optical lens and modd
products for new generation of
all-in-one VR pralucts, and improve,
the ability of comprehensive solutio
of optical devices and ligkengine
modules for AR products.

The project helps enhance the
Company's competitive
advantage and market share in
field of VR/AR precision optical
components and mobhs,
promote the Company's ability
provide customers with
customized VR / AR optical
solutions, and improve the

Company's vertical integration
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Names of majo ) Status of o Expected benefits to future
. Purpose of project ) Objectives
R&D projects project development of the Company
VR/AR products. ability and profitability in the
field of VR/AR.
Develop lightweight )
) Cooperate with customers to comp . .
) all-in-one VR HMD o ) The project helps consolidate t
R&D project of ) R&D, validation, mass production N
) products featured with ) ) Company's competitive
all-in-one VR | o ) In progress |and delivery of a variety of )
high-definition display, ) advantage and market share in
HMD ) ] ) newgeneration alin-one VR HMD |
precise motion tracking field of VR.
products.
and other features.
) Cooperate with customers to cplete|lt helps consolidate the
R&D project of ) o ) -
TWS . Develop a new generatic R&D, validation, mass production |Company's competitive
smar
el of TWS smart wireless |In progress |and delivery of a variety of advantage and market share in
wireless
earphones newgeneration of TWS smart field of TWS smart wireless
earphones .
wireless earphones earphones.
) It helps consolidate the
) Develop a new generatid "
R&D project of ] Company's competitive
of smart wearable devicg ) )
smartwearable| ) Cooperate with customers to compladvantage and market share in
) with functions of L . .
devices for ) R&D, validation, mass production |smart wearable devices such a
independent In progress ) )
sport and healt o and delivery of a new generation ofjsmart watches and smart band
communication, health
related o smart watches and smart bands. |and supports the Compgs
o mornitoring features and )
applications . smart wearable business for
etc.
further growth.
Complete the R&D and trial
production 6 a variety of AR glasseg
products that, with the functions of
] ) ) It helps enhance the Company’
) Develop wireless data processing and wireless )
R&D project of| ) o R&D experience and technolog
) lightweight AR glasses communication, apply advanced o )
smart wireless ) ) ) . ) o accumulation in the field of AR
) ) and their main functionalln progress |precision optics and micrdisplay B ]
lightweight AR ) ) and facilitates the business
modules for future AR technologies such as optical ) )
glasses o ) » expansion of the Company in A
applications. waveguide and silicobased LED, s field
ield.
as to develop the solution capdtiyil
for AR glasses and their main
functional modules.
R&D personnel of the Company
2021 2020 Yearon-year change
Number of R&D personnel 12,895 12,174 5.90%
Proportion of R&D personnel 13.469 13.949 -0.48%
Academic structure of R&D
00 00 00
personnel
Undergraduate 9,148 8,409 8.79%
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investment in R&D investment

Postgraduate 2,414 1,982 21.809
PhD 63 58 8.62%
Age of R&D personnel 00 00 80
Below the age of 30 5,105 4,821 5.89%
Aged between 30 to 40 7,162 6,838 4.74%
Over the age of 40 628 518 21.249
The Company6s investment in R&D
2021 2020 Yearon-year change

Amount of R&D Investment (RMB) 4,301,342,763.6 3,532,801,720.5 21.759
Proportion of R&D investment in

; 5.50% 6.12% -0.62%
operating revenue
Capitalized amount of R&D
. 662,993,650.3 541,498,060.6 22.449
investment (RMB)
Proportion of capitalized R&D

15.41% 15.339 0.08%

Reasons and impacts of significant changes in R&D personnel composition of the Company

I Applicable 4

Reasons for significant changes in the proportion of total R & D investment in operating revenue compared with thai®pegvio

I Apipcabl e &

Not

Not

applicabl e

applicabl e

Reasons and explanation of its reasonableness of significant changes in capitalized R & D investment

I Applicable & Not applicable
5. Cash flow
Unit: RMB
Item 2021 2020 Yearon-year change
Subtotal of cash inflow from
) . 85,523,439,745.1 60,932,031,432.1 40.369
operatingactivities
Subtotal of cash outflow from
i - 76,924,964,217.2 53,249,775,319.0 44.469
operating activities
Net cash flow from operating
o 8,598,475,527.9 7,682,256,113.6 11.939
activities
Subtotal of cashinflow from
) o 3,276,323,800.4 505,861,986.2 547.679
investment activities
Subtotal of cash outflow from
. o 10,044,700,261.3 5,806,999,821.9 72.989
investment activities
Net cash flow from investing
o -6,768,376,460.8 -5,301,137,835.6 27.689
activities
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Subtotal of cash inflow from
] ) e 14,003,754,499.9 15,780,475,210.7 -11.269
financing activities
Subtotal of cash outflow from
. . e 13,616,577,139.6 14,138,013,422.5 -3.69%
financing activities
Net cash flow from financing

L 387,177,360.2 1,642,461,788.1 -76.439
activities
Net increase in cash and cash

) 2,224,708,917.5 3,818,588,192.2 -41.749
equivalents

Main influencing factors of significant yearnyear changes in relevant data

4 Applicable T Not applicable

(1) The suktotal of cash inflowfrom operating activities was RMB 85,523.4397 million, with yeatyear increase of 40.36%,
mainly due to the expansion of the Company's sales and the increase of sales receipts and advances received during the report
period.

(2) The subtotal of castoutflow from operating activities was RMB 76,924.9642 million, with y@aiwyear increase of 44.46%,
mainly due to the increase of the Company's purchase of raw materials and payment of employee salaries during theniegorting p

(3) The subktotal of cah inflow from investment activities was RMB 3,276.3238 million, with y@mayear increase of
547.67%, mainly due to the fact that the structural deposits purchased by the Company were collected at maturity during the
reporting period.

(4) The subotal d cash outflow from investment activities was RMB 10,044.7003 million, with-gearear increase of
72.98%, mainly due to the increase of the Company's purchase of fixed assets and oteemlasgets, and purchase of structured
deposits during the repting period.

(5) The net cash flow from financing activities was 387.1774 million, with agegear decrease of 76.43%, mainly due to

RMB 3,995 million in cash received by the Company from issuing bonds during the previous reporting period.

The reasoffior significant difference between the net cash flow from the Company's operating activities during the reporting period
and net profit in current year.

4 Applicable T Not applicable

The net cash flow from operating activities exceeded the net prafitragnt year by 99.64%, mainly due to the improvement of
the Company's refined operation capacity, optimization of operation cycle and reduction of capital occupation.
V. Analysis of Nornrmain Business

4 Applicable T Not applicable
Unit: RMB

Amount Propotion in total Explanation of the cause Whether it is
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profit sustainable
It is mainly due to the investment incon
) obtained from transaction of foreign
Investment income 469,239,884.7 10.199 ) ) No
exchange and equity disposal of the
Company
) It is mainly due to the change in valuat
Gains fromchanges i
- -48,848,625.9 -1.06%0f the Company's stock foreign exchan No
in fair value o
derivatives
. ) It is mainly due to the provision for
Asset impairment -241,075,506.4 -5.23% o No
inventory depreciation
. It is mainly due to the unpayable
Non-operating o
22,444,738.1] 0.49%payments and liquidated damages No
revenue .
received
Non-operating It is mainly due to the losses on scrapp
. 99,858,949.0 2.17% No
expenditure of noncurrent assets of the Company
VI. Analysis of Assets and Liabilities
1. Major changes in asset composition
Unit: RMB
December 31, 2021 January 1, 2021
YoY
Proportion Proportio change Note of significant change
Amount in total Amount n in total
(%)
assets assets
Cash and bank S
10,048,521,696.C 16.45% 7,788,139,761.6 15.729 0.73%No significant change
balances
Accounts —
) 11,899,214,525.9 19.48% 9,951,611,596.6 20.09% -0.61%No significant change
receivable
During thereporting period, invento
Inventories 12,082,308,485.7 19.78% 9,170,731,903.1 18.529 1.26%reserves increased along with busi
growth of the Company
Long-term
equity 437,402,203.9 0.72% 337,410,802.5 0.68% 0.04%No significant change
investments
During the reporting period, t
Company raised funds to invest
; projects, increased the purchase|
Fixed assets |18,123,352,480.7 29.67% 14,674,535,924.1 29.639 0.04% ) )
production equipment, and transfer
of part of the infrastructure proje
reached usable state to fixed assets
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Construction in .
2,127,%5,853.7] 3.48% 2,078,910,639.9 4.20% -0.72%No significant change
progress
Right-of-use -
330,796,520.6 0.54%  462,821,988.6| 0.93% -0.39%No significant change
assets
During the reporting period, thg¢
Shortterm demand for daily operating fun
) 4,284,859,347.0 7.02% 3,189,865,281.2 6.44% 0.58% )
borrowings increased and shettrm borrowing
increased
During the reporting period, the goq
Contract
labilit 2,210,825,761.6 3.62%  772,033,187.8 1.56% 2.06%were prepared for customers,
iabilities
advance frontustomers increased
Long-term -
) 2,204,215,784.7 3.61% 2,754,299,262.0 5.56% -1.95%No significant change
borrowings
From January 1, 2021, the Comp
Lease liabilitie§ 210,209,955.4 0.34% 298,830,498.8) 0.60% -0.26% implemented the new lease rules,
payed the rent as agreed

Foreign assets account for a relatively high proportion

T Appl

icabl e

a Not

2. Assets and liabilities measured at fair value

applicabl e

4 Applicable 1T Not applicable
Unit: RMB
Impair
Profit and loss| Cumulative | ment _|Othe
. _ _ Purchase amou| Sales amount ir
Opening | from changes irichanges in faj accrug . . r .
Item ; . . ; in the reporting| the reporting Closing balanc
balance fair value in the|value includeq d in . . chan
) _ _ period period
report period in equity |curren ges
period
Financial
assets
1.
Held-for-tra
ding
financial
assets 125,327,442.6) 64,914,061.4 2,745,091,734.7 2,635,098,910.0 300,234,328.7
(excluding
derivative
financial
assets)
2. 125,462,174.6| -104,999,182.3 20,462,992.3
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Derivative
financial
assets

3. Other
debt

investments

4.
Investment
in other
equity

instruments|

357,307,056.6

53,916,285.4

129,080,638.6

64,601,040.1 465,677,764.5

Subtotal of
financial

assets

608,096,673.9

-40,085,120.8

53,916,285.4

2,874,172,373.3

2,699,699,950.1 786,375,085.6

Total of
above

amounts

608,096,673.9

-40,085,120.8

53,916,285.4

2,874,172,373.3

2,699,699,950.1 786,375,085.6

Financial
liabilities

43,578,775.7

-8,763,505.0|

6,427,059.2

43,578,775.7 15,190,564.3

Other changes

None

Whetherthe measurement attributes of major assets of the Company have changed significantly during the reporting period

I Yes

d No

3. Restrictions on asset rights as of the end of reporting period

Items

Book value at year end (RMB)

Reasons for restrictions

Cash and bank balances

910,620,794.G

Deposit for bills and borrowings

Notes receivable

6,095,782.3Bill pledge and others

Other norRcurrent assets

122,540,194 4

\When largedenomination certificates of deposit
pledged to the bank, the bank issudohancing guarante

IAccounts receivable

5,000,000.0Re-insurance accounts receivable not derecognized

Total

1,044,256,770.8

0 . Analysis of Investment

1. Overall situation

an

Appl

icabl e

Not

applicabl e

Investment amount in 2021 (RMB)

Investmenamount in 2020 (RMB)

YoY change (%)
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533,092,515.5

207,730,344 .4

156.639

2. Major equity investments acquired during the reporting period

Applicable & Not

applicabl e
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3. Major non-equity investments in progress during the reportingperiod

4 Applicable I Not applicable
Unit: RMB
Reasons
: Accumulated for failure
Whether it Accumulateq
. Amount actual : to reach th
is the ; . e . . income by .
Name of | Investment Project |invested durin{ investment by Source of| Project | Estimated planned | Disclosure| ) .
) investment] ) ) the end of ) Disclosure index (if any)
project mode o industry | the reporting| the end of thg  funds progress | income | progress |date (if any
in fixed ; . the reporting
period reporting ) and
assets ) period
period expected
benefits
For details, see
Announcement of Goertek
Inc. onSigning of
Investmen€ooperation
Agreement between the
Project of Wholly-owned Subsidiary
Dongguan the Company and the
Songshan ) . Management Committee
. Electronic Selfraised Not Not|Not January 3,
Lake Selfbuilt  |Yes 119,630,009.5(310,725,561.3 13.939 ) . . Dongguan Songshan Laks
components funds applicabl¢ applicablgapplicable [2019
Goertek High-tech Industrial
Industrial Development Zone
Park published in the informatig
disclosure media such as
CNINFO
(http://lwww.cninfo.com.cn
Securities Times, China
Securities Journal,
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Shanghai Securities News

Securities Daily.

Total

119,630,009.5

310,725,561.3

4. Financial asset investment

(1) Securities investment

4 Applicable I Not applicable
Unit: RMB
Profit and _
Cumulativg Purchas ;
) loss from ) Sales amour] Profit and |Book value a
) » Accounting | changes i amount i ) )
Type of | Security| Short Initial Book value aff changesin| ) in the loss in the |the end of th¢ Accounting | Source of
) _ measuremer o _ | fair value| inthe ) _ _ _
security | code name |investment co the beginning fair value in | ) ) reporting reporting reporting items funds
model included inreporting _ ) _
the report . . period period period
) equity | period
period
Domestic
and Fair value Held-for-trading Self-raiseg
) KOPN KOPN 169,951,481.0 120,327,442.6/63,575,754.0 85,098,910.0|69,142,817.1|98,804,286.6| _ )
foreign measuremen financial assetgfunds
stocks
Total 169,951,481.0 - 120,327,442.6/63,575,754.0 85,098,910.0/69,142,817.1/98,804,286.6 - -

Date of announcemedisclosurg
by the Board of Directors for

approval of securities investme

February 11, 2017

Date of announcement disclos
by shareholders meeting for
approval of securities investme

March 2, 2017
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(2) Derivatives investment

4 Appl i capplicablel Not
Unit: RMB 10,000
Proportion
of
) Actual
investment )
» Amount of | profit and
Name of o Initial Amount of | Amount of amount in
o : Whether iti§ Type of ) purchase ) o _ loss
derivative | Associated o amount of Opening . sales duringprovision fori  Closing the
) . _ | related party derivatives o Start date | End date during the e . amount
investment| relationship _ ) derivative balance ) the reporting impairment| balance | Company's|
transaction| investment | reporting ) i in the
operator investment ) period (if any) net asset a _
period reporting
the end of _
| period
the reporting
period
Non 243,551.74 453,225.8 121,138.3( 4.34%
Bank associated |No Option 330,812.4] 330,812.4 4,083.0(
relationship
Non 1,288,528.9|1,285,014.0 518,981.9! 18.589
Bank associated [No Forward 515,467.1( 515,467.1 25,495.3]
relationship
Non 191,271.0( 227,381.4 178,519.6( 6.39%
Bank associated |No Swap 214,630.0¢ 214,630.0 4,766.81
relationship
Total 1,060,909.5 - - 1,060,909.5{1,723,351.7({1,965,621.4 818,639.8! 29.31%34,345.1
Source of funds foderivatives investment Selfraised funds
Litigation involved (if any) None
Date of announcement disclosure by the Board of
. ) ; ~_ |March 27, 2021
Directors for approval of the investment in derivativg
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Date of announcement disclosure by shareholders

meeting forapproval of the investment in derivatives

May 8, 2021

Risk analysis and control measures for derivatives
positions during the reporting period (including but
limited to market risk, liquidity risk, credit risk,
operational risk, legal risk, etc.)

1. The financial derivatives transactions carried out by the Company are for the purpose of fixing costs, avoiding and) pigken{
foreign exchange rate and interest rate, and prohibiting any risk speculation. The trading quota of the Compaay/ddinetives
shall not exceed the authorized quota as reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors or the general meeting afsstzarehd
Company has formulated a strict management system for financial derivatives transactions, whictipiglatlys the operating
principles, approval authority, responsible departments and persons, internal operating procedures, information isslagsn me
internal risk reporting system and risk handling procedures, and information disclosure of lfickeniggives transactions, in order {
control trading risks arising therefrom. 3. The Company shall carefully review the terms of contracts signed with cpuaitsieahd
other financial institutions, and strictly implement the risk management systaenvent legal risks. 4. The Company's business
personnel will continue to track the changes in the open market price or fair value of financial derivatives, timelyeaslsasgés in
risk exposure of financial derivatives transactions, and regulgrtytreo the management of the Company. If any abnormal situat
inform the Board of Directors of the risk and take emergency measures accordingly. 5. The internal audit departmerdcoedutds
internal audit on the compliance of financial derivasitransactions.

In case of changes in market price or fair value of

invested derivatives during the reporting period, the
analysis of fair value of the derivatives shall disclos
the specific methods used and the setting of relevar
assumptions and paraters

Changes in the fair value of foreign exchange derivatives are calculated based on the difference between the fairavaaréiehpric

contract price in the month of the settlement date determined by the Company.

Description of whether thaccounting policies and
specific accounting principles for the Company's
derivatives have changed significantly compared wi
that of previous reporting period

The accounting policies and specific accounting principles for the Company's derivatives Bmyreficant change compared with t

of previous reporting period.

Special opinions of independent directors on the
Company's derivatives investment and risk control

The Company carries out financial derivatives transactions mainly to avoid foreigangratisks associated with RMB exchange r
fluctuations and effectively control the cost uncertainty caused by foreign exchange risks. The Company has formulated the
Management System of Goertek's Financial Derivatives Trading Busivigss is conducig to strengthen the management and
control of the risks associated with financial derivatives transactions. The deliberation, approval, voting and otheepaidad
proposal are in line with the relevant provision€ompany LawArticles of Assoeition, and overall interests of the Company, with

damage to the legitimate rights and interests of minority shareholders. Therefore, the Company has been approvedtttecarry

34



Goertek Inc. Annual Report 2021

business above.
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5. Use of raised funds
4 ppicable T Not applicabl e

(1) Overall use of raised funds

4 Applicable I Not applicable
Unit: RMB 10,000
Total Proportion
The
The total amount off Accumulaf of Total
Accumulat . Purpose o amount of
amount of raised | ed total | accumulal amour of ) .
) ed amoun ) ) the raised raised
raised ) funds with| amount of ed total raised
Year of | Means of| Total fund of raised . funds that funds that
o o ) funds use changed| raised |amount off funds that
raising raising raised ) funds that ) ) have not | have beer
during the| purposes| funds with| raised | have not _
. | have beer| = : been yet| idle for
reporting during the| changed | funds with| been yet
. used ) used | more than
period reporting | purposes| changed| used
: two years
period purposes
Suppleme
ting
working
Public capital ang
issuance (@ deposited
2020 _1398,903.0(129,831.4{207,055.9! 0.00 0.00 0.00%4191,847.01. 0.00
convertibl in the
e bonds special
account
for raised
funds
Total - 398,903.0(129,831.44207,055.9! 0.00 0.00 0.0094191,847.0 - 0.00
Description of overall use of raised funds
The Company actuallywvested RMB 1,298.3149 million in current period. As of December 31, 2021, the Company had us
total of RMB 2,070.5593 million of raised funds. The amount of unused raised funds was RMB 1,918.4707 million (intere
excluded), of which RMB 1,200 milliowas used to temporarily supplement the working capital, and the remaining funds w
deposited in the special account for raised funds of the Company.

(2) Projects in which the raised funds were proposed to be invested

4 Applicable T Not applicable
Unit: RMB 10,000

. . Whether| Total Total | Amount | Accumul| Investmeg The date Benefits| Whether| Whether
Committed investmer
. . the |committel investme invested| ated nt on which| realized it there is
projects and investme
) project d nt after | during |investme progres§ the during | achieved any
of overraised funds

has beer investme adjustmeg  the nt at the en( project the the |significan
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changed nt of nt (1) |repoting|amount & of the | reaches|reporting| expecteq t change

(includin| raised period |the end gperiod (3 its period | benefits| in the

g partial| funds the | (2)/(1)|intended feasibility|

changes reporting usage of the
period (2 state project

Committed investment projects

The project of true A ; Not

ugus
wireless smart No 218,909 218,903 93,433164,620.] 75.209 3192022 33,365.1%applicabl|No
earphones ’ e

AR/VR and related

August
optical module projectNo 60,000 60,00030,375.7130,375.77 50.639 3192022 46,014.9Yes No
- AR/VR project ’
AR/VR and related
] ] Not
optical module project August i )
) No 40,00 40,000 3,168.4 3,168.4 7.92% 825.1%applicabl|No
- optical module 31, 2022
e
project
) Not|Not
Qingdao R&D center August ) )
] No 80,000 80,00¢ 2,854.37 8,891.5¢ 11.11¢9 applicab|applicabl [No
project 31, 2022
ee
Subtotal of committed 129,831.4207,055.
_ ) -- 398,907 398,907 -- -- 80,204.4 -- --
investment projects 9 3
Direction of the investment with over raised funds
Not applicable
129,831.4207,055.
Total -- 398,907 398,901 -- -- 80,204.4 -- --

9 3

Descriptions and
reasons for failure of |Due to the impact of the project and the actual needs of the Company, the project of Qingdao R&[
meeting the planned |was behind schedule. The Company may accelerate subsequent investment according to the acty
schedule oexpected |and will strive to ahieve the maximum efficiency of the raised funds.

revenue (by project)

Description of

significant change in .
e Not applicable
the feasibility of the

project

Amount, use of
overraised funds and|Not applicable

progress of use there

Change in location of |APPlicable

the project invested |Occurred in previous years

D e On August 20, 2020, the Company held the 8th meeting of the 5th Board of Directors and the 6th
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of the 5th Board of Supervisors, which reviewed and approved the Propos@hamging th
Implementation Subject and Implementation Location of Some Investment Projects with Raise
and Increasing the Capital of Wholowwned Subsidiariesand agreed to change: the implementg
subject of AR/VR and related optical module projects frooei®k Inc. to whollyowned subsidiarig
Weifang Goertek and Goertek Optical; The implementation location was changed according
Goertek Photoelectric Park in Weifang Hitgth Zone to Weifang Goertek Plant, east of Gaoxin
Road, south of Yugingast Street in Weifang comprehensive free trade zone and Goertek Opticg
phase Il of Goertek Photoelectric Park in Weifang Higth Zone; The Company increased the capi
Weifang Goertek with the raised funds of RMB 600 million and increaseddpital to Goertek Optig
with the raised funds of RMB 400 million, for the purpose of specific implementation of -ahewvione
investment projects.

Adjustment on how to
invest the projects wit
raised funds

Not applicable

Applicable

Upfront investment of
the project with raised
funds and replacemer
thereof

On July 9, 2020, the Company held the 7th meeting of the 5th Board of Directors and the 5th m
the 5th Board of Supervisors, which reviewed and approvedPriygosal on Replacing th8elfraised
Funds Invested in the Projects in Advance with the Raised Fandsagreed to use the raised fung
replace the selfaised funds of RMB 315.7238 million invested in the investment projects in advan
fund replacement above has beenifieet by Zhongxi Certified Public Accountants (special gen
partnership) Co., Ltd., and an authentication report has been issued.

Applicable

Temporary
replenishment of
working capital with
idle raised funds

On July 9, 2020, the Company held the 7th meeting of the 5th Board of Directors and the 5th m
the 5th Board of Supervisors, which reviewed and approveBrtmosal on Temporary Replenishmer
Working Capital with Idle Raised Funds$ was agree that the Company shall use the idle raised fund
exceeding RMB 2.5 billion to temporarily supplement working capital. The use period shall not ex
months from the date of approval by the Board of Directors. After expiration, it shall be detartie
special account for raised funds in a timely manner. The Company returned RMB 0.8 billion and K
billion of the raised funds to the special account for raised funds in advance on September 17,
November 4, 2020 respectively. On Novemnlb, 2020, the Company held the 11th meeting of th
Board of Directors and the 9th meeting of the 5th Board of Supervisors, which reviewed and app
Proposal on Temporary Replenishment of Working Capital with Partial Idle Raised .Aundss @reed
that the Company temporarily supplements the working capital with idle raised funds of no m
RMB 2,500 million. The validity period shall not exceed 12 months from the date of approval by th
of Directors. After expiration, it shall beeturned to the special account for raised funds in a ti
manner. The Company returned RMB 0.5 billion and RMB 2 billion of the raised funds to the
account for raised funds in advance on October 29, 2021 and November 3, 2021 respectively.

On Novenber 8, 2021, the Company held the 24th meeting of the 5th Board of Directors and
meeting of the 5th Board of Supervisors, which reviewed and approveBropesal on Tempora
Replenishment of Working Capital with Partial Idle Raised Furidavas agreed that the Compg

temporarily supplements the working capital with idle raised funds of RMB 1,200 million. The \

period of which shall not exceed 12 months from the date of approval by the Board of Directo

38



Goertek Inc. Annual Report 2021

expiration, it shall be tarned to the special account for raised funds in a timely manner.

Amount and reasons
for the balance of

raised funds in the  |Not applicable
implementation of the

project

Purpose of the raised
funds that have not

been yet used

The unused raised fundball be deposited in the special account for raised funds.

Problems or other

situations in the use
_ ~ |None
and disclosure of raisg

funds

(3) Changes in the projects in which the raised funds were proposed to be invested

I Applicable & Not applicable

There was no change in the projects in which the raised funds were proposed to be invested during the reporting period.

O . Sales of major assets and equities
1. Sales of major assets

I Applicable & Not applicable

The Company did not sell any major asskisng the reporting period.

2. Sales of major equity

I Applicable & Not applicable

O«

. Analysis of major subsidiaries and associates

4 Applicable I Not applicable

Major subsidiaries and associates with an impact of more than 10% on the Company'stnet prof

Unit: RMB
Name | Type
of of Main . ) Operating | Operating )
. Registered capity  Total assets Net asset ; Net profit
compar|compg business revenue profit
y ny
) . |Electronic
Weifang|Subsid 27,282,319,1| 1,695,784,1( 1,491,760,0
. componen 1,405,601,925.010,971,185,728.1 3,904,375,154.7
Goertekliary 3.58 6.3Q 1.98
t
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manufacty
ring
Goertek| Electronic
Technol _|componen
Subsid 20,651,380,5| 1,285,740,9{ 1,280,038,4
ogy ) t 362,762,400.0| 9,395,840,422.9 2,096,244,381.2
} iary 6.59 9.38 4.5]
(Vietna manufactu
m) ring
Goertek Electronic
(HongK _|componen
Subsid 19,422,367,8| 836,073,059 706,793,731
ong) | t 1,542,045.0( 6,835,046,824.1 1,075,332,121.4
iary 2.29 54 63
Co., manufactu
Limited ring

Acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries during the reporting period

4 Appl i capplicablel Not

Approach on acquisition and ;
_ - ) Impact on overall production,
Name of company disposal of subsidiaries during th .
_ ) operation and performance
reporting period

GOERTEK MICROELECTRONICS KOREA CO.,LTD. [Newly established No significant impact

Description of major subsidiaries and associates

None

O . Structural Entities Controlled by the Company

I Applicable & Not applicable

XI. Outlook for the Future Development of the Company

1. Industry trend and competition

In the mobile era, smartphones amthted smart hardware products have been the main focus of innovation and the growth
drivers of the global technology and consumer electronics industry over the past many years. However, the growth ofesmartphon
industry has slowed down in recent yedrscording to the statistics of IDC, a wddhown consulting agency, the global smartphone
shipment in 2022 is expected to reach 1.39 billion units, with-gegear increase of approximately 3%. It is predicted that the
average annual compound growth refesmartphone shipments around the world will be about 3% from 2022 to 2025. As the core
hardware in the mobile era, the slowdown of smartphone market also reflects the transition to-thebpestra of the global
technology and consumer electronicguistry.

In the postmobile era, along with the development of new technologies such as semiconductor, 5&ligplaso sensor,

intelligent interaction, battery, cloud and edge computing, the new generation of smart hardware products are greatlyiimprove
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functions, and are suitable for more diversified applications. Many new smart hardware devices with great potentialatee reve
themselves. In particular, the products such as VR/AR, smart wearable devices and smart wireless earphones havemapidained
growth in recent years, which attracts extensive attention in the global market. These products are expected to beisamge the dr
force for further development of global intelligent hardware market in thenpoisile era.

According to the statists of IDC, the global shipment of VR/AR products is expected to reach 19.10 million units in 2022, with
approximately 67.5% YoY increase. The CAGR of global VR shipment from 2022 to 2025 is expected to be about 59.2%. The
number of end users keeps growstgadily along with the upgrade of VR hardware. With the development and maturity of VR
content and applications such as social networking, games, entertainment and live broadcasting, VR products are expgicied to b
the next few years. According toetlstatistics of IDC, the global shipment of AR products is expected to reach 1.35 million units in
2022, with approximately 309% YoY increase. The CAGR of global AR shipment from 2022 to 2025 is expected to reach
approximately 121.4%. With the concept @fitégration of virtual content and real life" and the ability to seamlessly connect to
smartphone ecosystem, AR product shows unlimited future possibilities and great market potentials, and is expectedoieebecome
of the core smart hardware products @amsumer electronics industry in the pastbile era. Many welknown brand companies and
startups in the industry continue to explore and tackle the key technological roadblocks in semiconductor chips, optical waveguide
micro displays, new materials anther fields. The breathru of those technologies are also expected to create a broader path for AR
products in the next few years.

According to the statistics of CCS Insight, a famous consulting agency, the global shipment of smart wearable products is
expected to reach 270 million units in 2022, with approximately 16.4% YoY increase. In the post epidemic era, consumers pay
greater attention to sports and health. For billions of people over the globe who may have hypertension, diabetesbenesglier su
situations, high precision and reliable health monitoring technologies, especially blood pressure monitoringirmrasinerblood
sugar level monitoring technology, are the focus of innovation in smart wearable devices, and have attracted significhof am
investment from many industry leaders. The maturity and application of above technologies are expected to bring dratihatic grow
for smart wearable products in future.

According to the statistics of Futuresource, a wabbwn consulting agency, tliggobal shipment of smart wireless earphones is
expected to keep growing steadily in the next few years, and the CAGR of TWS earphones from 2021 to 2025 is expected to reach
about 21.8%. With improved voice interaction function, more product choices, fieettiéres and user experience, the TWS product
penetration in the global earphone market is expected to increase continuously.

The rapid development of emerging intelligent hardware products has also boosted the demand for related precision components
suchas precision optics and modules, precision acoustic components, MEMS sensors and micro system modules, haptic components
and precision structural parts, which creates new business opportunities for the precision components of the Company.
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From the perspéiwe of competition among brand companies, the global technology and consumer electronics industry may
continue to demonstrate a centralized trend. In the-rpobile era, massive investment in technological innovation and R&D is
required for the developmeof smart hardware products, for which the "soft power" of the ecosystem, such as developer base, user
base, software applications, entertainment content, community loyalty and data monetization, becomes more and motecrucial. T
leading enterprises Vhitcapital, talent, technology and ecosystem advantages are expected to strengthen their competitive advantages,
so as to lead technology and product innovation in the industry.

From the perspective of supply chain, the miegete of supply chain is expedt¢o remain relying on developing countries.

The electronic manufacturers in China are strengthening their overall competitiveness, and continue to expand their bthginess
countries. China manufacturers are expected to meet the needs of smartéhprddaction in the poshobile era and gain the new
opportunities of development. At the same time, we also need to pay attention to the development and changes of international
political and economic situation. The changes in science, technologyamddether policies between countries, as well as major
international events and their development, may also have significant impact to the competition and supply chain afusitsipal in
Therefore, we need to pay continuous attention and respond pgsitivel

2. Strategy for future development

Looking into the future, the Company will actively respond to the strategy of actualizing innedatien development and
accelerating the development of modern industrial system, and grasp the opportunitiesavfrtagios from the mobile era to the
postmobile era by closely following the development of 5G, Al, 10T, cloud computing and other advanced technologies. The
Company will continue to strengthen its development in the field of advanced precision com@onknext generation smart
hardware products, constantly consolidate the strategical cooperation withchesddcustomers, and earnestly fulfill the economic
and social responsibilities of the enterprises, thus achieving d¢damg stable and healthyayth of the business, and maximize the
enterprise value and the return to shareholders.

(1) Actively grasp the new opportunities in the posthile era, and further promote the Company's strategy of "precision
components + smart hardware". Further devéth@pbusinesses of precision components, such as acoustics, optics, microelectronics
and structural parts, and the businesses of smart hardware devices, such as VR/AR, smart wireless earphones, smartl wearable a
smart home devices. Continue to strengttienadvantages of precision components business in smartphone and other traditional
hardware, and actively develop precision components and system hardware business related to new generation of smart hardware
products. Utilize the synergy between the Conysmcomponent and hardware device business, continue to strengthen the core
competence in precision manufacturing and intelligent manufacturing, and provide customers withdlasdirgtrtically integrated
product solutions and "orstop” R&D and manfacturing services.

(2) Continue the keyccount strategy, remain customer orientation, and utilize the Company's advantages in customer resource.
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Focus on serving leading customers in the global technology and consumer electronics industry, and ooatinselidate
long-term strategic cooperation with customers. Closely follow the strategical planning and development-ofasertdistomers,
and to create a global system of R&D, manufacturing and sales services accordingly. Continue to satisfgroersowith our
business, technology, engineering, operation and delivery services, in order to achigip wa@operation and to grow with the
world-class customers.

(3) Adhere to technological innovation and continue to invest in R&D. Constantly impgheveCompany's technical
competitiveness in acoustics, optics, microelectronics, precision manufacturing, automation, IT technology, softwana afgbrith
so on, and actively expand the layout in emerging technologies such as micro system modulesja@pticadle, nandmprinting,
haptics and etc., to build the core technical competitiveness of the enterprise. Firmly implement the talent strateggting itite
outstanding talents in management and technology fields around the world, build andegffectitivate a firstlass talent team,
thus to provide sufficient talents for future development of the Company.

(4) Constantly improve corporate governance and management, and promote the standardized and efficient internal operation.
Continuously impree the internal structure, processes and internal management system. Strengthen the awareness of lean operation,
improve the level of lean operation and seek benefits from it. Being maiketed and custom@riented, continues to push
forward internalreform and innovation, and to build core competitiveness upon continuous reform and innovation activities. Create
an excellent corporate culture, undertake the core values of "customer orientation, personnel growth, integrity andrpragmatis
win-win coopeation”, and earnestly fulfill the economic and social responsibilities of the enterprise, to become a respected
world-class enterprise.

3. Business operation during the reporting period and business plan for next year

In 2021, the Company grasped the bassopportunities of the new generation of smart hardware such as VR, TWS, smart
wearable devices, gaming consoles and accessories, implement the "precision components + smart hardware" strategly and utilize
the synergy between the components businessyatem device business. The Company adhered to cusbtoieetation philosophy
and focused on key business accounts, provided customers witlg highl i t y R&D and -snaopud aseéwmuvi og,
achieved customer satisfaction. The Company also expt@® business opportunities in precision optical components and modules,
micro-system modules, MEMS sensors, haptic components, etc. From internal operation perspective, the Company continuously
improved the level of lean operation, and obtained soligrpsses in input/output efficiency, operation cycle, inventory turnover,
and capital cost. The Company continued to invest in R&D and technological innovation, increased the quantity of both patent
applications and patent approvals, strengthened the &Gapabdf R&D and talent team, and thus further consolidated the core
competitiveness in technology field. The Company also formulated and implemented effective systems and measures tdesnsure sta

operation of business activities and control the riskish \all the measures above, the Company has finally achieved an excellent
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business performance in 2021.

Looking into the year of 2022, the Company still faces many challenges due to the ongoing global epidemic, the slow recovery
of global economy, the highnd fluctuated commaodity prices, and other complexities and uncertainties that may applied to the
external environment. On the bright side, there are also new opportunities in global technology and consumer electstyics indu
With the further integratin and development of advanced technologies such as 5G, Al and the new generation of smart hardware
products, the Company faces new opportunities in both precision components and smart hardware business. The management and al
staff of the Company will cdimue to implement our strategy and to achieve business objectives, so as to return the shareholders and
investors with excellent business performance and continuous growth of enterprise value.

(1) Maintain strategic focus and grasp development oppoesnitihe Company will seize the business opportunities of smart
hardware products in the pesbbile era by adhering to the "precision components + smart hardware" strategy and utilize the
synergy between the components and system device business. Withedonelogical capabilities and advanced precision
component solutions, the Company will further enhance the effort in business development of smart hardware productsgind thro
that business development, the Company will create more applications aadddfemthe precision components. By integrating the
core capabilities in precision manufacturing and intelligent manufacturing, the Company will be able to provitiessirsinestop”

R&D and manufacturing services to global customers.

(2) Adhere to th customeorientation philosophy and kegccounts strategy, and identify and serve strategic customers. Follow
the strategy and business plan of core customers, the Company will carry out corresponding business, products anarcspacity pl
work with the customer in their frameworks and schedules and provide indestling R&D and manufacturing services. The
Company will continuously build excellent customer service team to satisfy our customers in long term in all aspectsssf busin
technology, engirering, operation, and delivery, to enhance customer loyalty and achieweémaooperation with customers.

(3) Empower business expansion and create new opportunities. Based on the consolidation of the existing business advantages
in precision componentand smart hardware products, the Company will further explore new directions and opportunities. By
grasping the opportunities in miesystem modules, MEMS sensors, precision optical components and modules, haptic components,
precision structured parts, YBmart home products and other products, the Company will secure the key projects of core customers,
and also follow up with new directions and opportunities in automotive electronics, advanced materialdjspieyaechnology
and other fields with futre potentials.

(4) Improve lean operation and complete successful delivery of key projects. The Company will continue to promote the
awareness and improve the level of lean operation, and to support the business objectives-gitalitygind efficienbperation.

The Company will make thorough planning of its resources, ensure the delivery of key projects that closely relatedtémyhanstr
the business objectives, and to achieve the goals of the Company.
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(5) Continue to invest in R&D and technologi innovation, strengthen core competitiveness with talent strategy. The Company
will continue to invest in R&D and technological innovations centered on future strategic directions, and strengthenitaé tech
capabilities in the fields of acoustics,tigg, microelectronics, precision manufacturing, and intelligent manufacturing. The Company
will embrace the management and technical talents globally, keep bringing {levéghalents, carry out solid efforts in the selection,
cultivation, motivation ad retention of talents, and to support the Company's strategic implementation and business development
with high-quality talent echelon.

(6) Effectively control risks and maintain healthy operation. The Company will continue to maintain a sound buiaiegys s
strengthen risk awareness, pay close attention to changes in the external environment, perform effective control cateiskiimdi
production operation of the Company, take the initiative to identify and resolve potential risks, and etmnabiridevelopment of
production and operation activities.

4. The demand and planning of fund

The Company maintains a healthy asset and liability structure, and obtained a goetetrfoiegoperative relationship with
banks and other major financial irgtions. In 2021, the Company successfully completed the conversion and delisting of the
previously issued convertible bonds, and successfully completed the signing -¢édeontpan agreements between its subsidiary
companies and International Finance @wation, which further improved the Company's balance sheet structure and cost of funds.
The Company will continue to improve the management of cash;ledskty ratio and debt structure, to actively avoid liquidity
risks and foreign exchange risks,dontrol financial derivatives trading activities with strict standards, and thus providing stable and
sufficient financial support to the development of the Company.

5. Future risks

(1) Macroeconomic risks

COVID-19 pandemic has not yet stopped globalhd the global economy is still in recovery. Unfavorable factors that affecting
investment and consumption still exist, which may hinder global technology and consumer electronics industry from rapid
development in the short term. The world political andr@mic situation remains complex and grim. Trade disputes between major
countries and geopolitical events have brought uncertainties to global economy, which may adversely affect the business of
enterprises. The slow growth of some smart hardware products as smartphones, may affect the market demand of precision
components, which may bring negative impact to the Company's performance.

(2) Operational risks

W Risks of concentrated customer structure

The competitive pattern of global technology and consumer electronics industry, along with the Company's business model and
key account strategy, determined a relatively concentrated customer structure. As a result, the business income fram a few co
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cusbmers accounts for a large proportion of the Company's overall revenue. Although the above customers are global industry
leaders who have significant competitive advantages and market position, and have maintaitesthl@mgl stable cooperative
relationswith the Company, under some special circumstances, they may bring fluctuations and risks to the Company's business if
their business activities fluctuate.

Y Risks of exchange rate fluctuation

The export business accounts for a high proportion oCihkpany's overall revenue. At the same time, the Company also
imports a considerable number of raw materials, equipment and other products from overseas. These import and expart businesse
are primarily settled in US dollars. Although the Company has edagipropriate risk hedging tools, the significant fluctuation of
RMB/US dollar exchange rate may still bring certain exchange rate risks to the Company.

¥ Risks of the leaving of core technical talents

The technology and consumer electronics industntadeat intensive industry. Therefore, the demand for core technical talents
is strong, and the competition for talents is very fierce. Core technical talents are the key resources for the Conmpiznoyptisigo
improve its core competitiveness and realiangterm development. For this reason, the Company will continue to improve various
incentive and restraint mechanisms in order to retain core technical talents. But due to the fierce competition, logstoficate
talents may still occur, which mgut the Company at a disadvantage in the competition and affect the business development in
some cases.

(3) Risks of management

In recent years, the Company has successfully expanded its business in each product line. The business scale hasdeen expande
significantly, as well as the variety of products and the size of the staff has grown rapidly. The growing businessghengs hi
requirements to the Company in overall operation and management ability. The Company implements the strategic plan of
developng core customer business and exploring new opportunities, which also requires the Company's management to maintain
excellent abilities of judgment, execution and management. If the Company's management fails to match the businessagiowth, or
to be mproved to meet the needs of the Company's development, it may affect the execution of strategic planning and the delivery of

business objectives, thus bringing management risks to the Company.

(E. Reception, research, communication, interview and other aeities during the reporting
period

a Applicable I Not applicable
: Type of Main content of :
o Reception ) ) ) . Index of basic
Reception time Reception mod( reception| Reception object | discussion and . .
place . information of survey
object information
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provided

Investors participatin
in the Company's

The Company's

Refer to the record of
investor relations

The o operation and o
March 30,2021 Other Institution |performance ) activities on March 30
Company ) _ |business )
presentation meeting 2021 published on
development )
of 2020 www.crifo.com.cn
Refer to the record of
E Fund, Bosera Fun{The Company's| ]
o ) investor relations
) The |Communication ~_ |Dacheng Fund, Hua|operation and o ]
April 22, 2021 Institution . activities on April 22,
Company|over phone An Fund and other |[business )
2021 published on
funds development ]
www.chifo.com.cn
Refer to the record of
SOOCHOW Fund, |The Company's| )
o ) investorrelations
The |Communication ~ |CRYuanta Fund, |operation and o
July 22, 2021 Institution ) activities on July 22,
Company |over phone BOC Fund, YINHUA [business )
2021 published on
Fund and other fund{development ]
www.chifo.com.cn
Refer tothe record of
Fullgoal Fund, The Company's|. )
o ) ) investor relations
The |Communication ~_|Xingquan Fund, 99 |operation and o |
August 27, 2021 Institution ) activities on August 2
Company|over phone Fund, CCB Fund an¢business )
2021 published on
other funds development .
www.cnifo.com.cn
Cninfo.com, record of
E Fund, Hua An The Company's|. ]
o N . investor relations
The |Communication ~_|Fund, GF Securities,|operation and o
October 27, 2021 Institution ) activities on October
Company |over phone Harvest Fund and |business

other funds

development

27,2021 published on

www.cnifo.com.cn
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Section IV Corporate Governance

N . Corporate Governance in Practice

During the reporting period, the Company continuously improved the corporate governance structure, the internal management
and control system, and continued to carry out corporate governance activities in strict accordance with the requireleeais of
laws, regulations and normative documents sucB@mpany LawSecurities LawCorporate Governance of Listed Companies
Rules Governing the Listing of Shares on Shenzhen Stock Exchangell as with relevant documents of China Securities
Regulatory Comnission and the relevant instructions of Shandong Securities Regulatory Bureau, so as to further standardize the
Company's operation and improve the level of corporate governance.

By the end of the reporting period, the actual practice of corporate gagernget the relevant requirements of the above laws,
administrative regulations, departmental rules and normative documents on the governance of listed companies, and 30 document
concerning administrative supervision measures taken by the supervisetthdepmawas received.

By the end of the reporting period, the details of actual practice of corporate governance are as follows:

1. Shareholders and shareholders' meetings: The Company has convened and held shareholders' meetings in strict accordance
with the Rules for General Meeting of Shareholders of Listed CompamgésheCo mpany d6s Rul es of Procedu
Meetings so as to ensure that all shareholders, especially minority shareholders, enjoy equal status and fully exercise; timeir rights
addition, lawyers were engaged to witness the legitimacy of the convening, holding and voting procedures of each gergeodl meet
shareholders.

2. The Company and controlling shareholders: The Company, with independent business and operation asgtonomy, i
independent of the controlling shareholders in business, personnel, aggatisations and finance. The Board of Directors, Board
of Supervisors and internal institutions of the Company operate independently. The controlling shareholders exerait¢sthei
through sharehol dersd meeting , and there was no dinmakngt or i
beyond the general meeting of shareholders.

3. Directors and the Board of Directors: The Company elects directors in strict accordance with the selection and appointment
procedures stipulated in th#eticles of AssociationThere are three independent directors in the Board, the number of dieetwors
the composition of the Board of Directors meet the requirements of laws and regulations/atidléseof AssociationAll directors
can carry out their work in accordance witles of Procedure of the Board of Direct@nsd Working System foindependent

Directors, they attended all the Board of Directors meetigsl all the related trainings as required.
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4. Supervisors and the Board of Supervisors: The election of supervisors and the composition of the Board of Supervisors were
in strict acordance with relevant provisions @ompany Lawand Articles of AssociationThe Company's supervisors strictly
followed theRules of Procedure of the Board of Superviséissupervisors scrupulously attended the sessions, seriously fulfilled
their duties diligently, and supervised and issued opinions for major issues, fptatgdransactions, and financial status.

5. Performance appraisals and incentives: The Company has gradually improving its fair and transparent performance evaluation
standardsand nhcenti ve a restraint mechani sms for director s, super\
senior management is open and transpaagut,in line with the provisions of laws and regulations.

6. Stakeholders: The Company fully respeatsl safeguards the legitimate rights and interests of stakeholders, actively
communicates and coordinates with stakeholders, to r balance the interests of the society, shareholders, the Compasyarednploye
other parties, and jointly promotes the Compsuevelopment in a sustainable and steady manner.

7. Information disclosure and transparency: The Company duly performed the disclosure obligations in accordance with the
provisions ofRules Governing the Listing of Shares on Shenzhen Stock Exclatiges of Associatiorand Investor Relations
Management Rulesnd discloses information as per the law, so as to ensure that the information disclosure is true, timely, accurate
and complete. All shareholders were given equal access to the informatioBoftpany has gradually revised and improved the
Insider Information Management Rules, further improved the insider information management, strengthened the confidentiality o
insider information, maintained the fair principle of information disclosure @otected the legitimate rights and interests of
investors. The Company has appointed the secretary of the Board of Directors as the head of investor relations marthgement of
Company, responsible for the Company's information disclosure and investayn®lmanagement. The Company has designated
Securities TimesChina Securities JournaShanghai Securities NewSecurities Dalyand c¢cni nf o. com. cn to di
information in a faithful, accurate and timely manner, strictly in accordance reflvant laws and regulations, so that all

shareholders have a fair chance to get information.

Whether there is any significant difference between actual situation of corporate governance and laws, administraithres rexgthlat

the provisions on governamof listed companies issued by CSRC
I Yes & No

There is no significant difference between the actual situation of corporate governance and the laws, administratoresragdlati
the provisions on governance of listed companies issued by CSRC

i . Particulars about the independence of the Company from controlling shareholder and
actual controller in terms of the assets, personnel, finance, organization and business

The Company is completely separated from the controlling shareholders in terms of bp&rssmel, assets, organization

and finance. The ownership of the assets are clear and belongs to the Company. The Company has the capabpityadioselh
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its marketing, production and procurement, does not depend on major shareholders oilitited afiterprisesThere is no mixed
operation with major shareholders.

1. Business independence: The Company had its own production, procurement and sales system, and was completely
independent of controlling shareholder in terms of business.

2. Personel separation: There is a department responsible for the Company's labor, personnel and salary management in the
Company, and rules and regulations has been established for
independent frm the controlling shareholder. The Senior Management of the Company did not hold any positions other than director
and supervisor in the related shareholders and other entities with same or similar business.

3. Institutional independence: The Board ofdaiors, Board of Supervisors, Senior Management and other internal organization
of the Company operated independerglyd each functional department is completely independent from controlling shareholder in
terms of authority, personnel, production operatpremises and there is no subordinate relationship between the controlling
shareholder and its functional departments.

4. Asset independence: The title relationship between the
assets wereomplete. The Company has independent and complete production system, auxiliary production system and supporting
facilities, as well as land use right, industrial property right, patented technology and other assets.

5. Financial independence: The Compéaiag its own separate financial departnemd an independent accounting system and
financial management system from the controlling shareholder. The Commaeg financial decisions on its own according to the
requirements of relevant accounting systefiisted companies. At the same time, implement vertical and sti@ghianagement
on financial affairs of its subsidiaries. The Company opened accounts in the bank independently, made tax declarations and

performed tax obligations independent of shatéers according to law.

n . Horizontal Competition

I Applicable & Not applicable
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N . Annual General Meeting and Extraordinary General Meeting held during the Reporting Period

1. General meeting of shareholders during the reporting peod

Session

Type of meetin

Percentagg
of investor

participation

Convening date

Disclosure date

Meeting resolution

General meeting of

Annual general

Resolutions for thénnual General Meeting of Shareholdedssclosed by the Compal

meeting of 35.29%May 7, 2021 May 8, 2021 on Cninfo (www.cninfo.com.ch) and the four designated newspapers on 8
shareholders of 2020

shareholders 2021(Announcement No 202183)
The first extraordinary |Extraordinary Resolutions for theFirst Extraordinatry General Meeting of Shareholders in 2
general meeting of general meetin 48.53%November 25, 2021 |November 26, 2021 |disclosed by the Company on Cninfo (www.cninfo.com.cn) and the four desi

shareholders in 2021

of shareholders

newspapers on 26 November 2021(Announcement No-203)L

The second
extraordinary general
meeting of shareholde
in 2021

Extraordinary
general meetin

of shareholders

45.949

December 16, 2021

December 17, 2021

Resolutions for th&econd Extraordinatry General Meeting of Shareholide021
disclosed by the Company on Cninfo (www.cninfo.com.cn) and the four designated

newspapers on 17 December 2021(Announcement No- 2821

2. Extraordinary general meeting of shareholders requested by the Preferred shareholders with voting rights restored

I Applicable a8 Not appl

icabl e
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V. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

1. Basic Information

Number of| Number of | Number of
: shares helq  shares shares | Other increas| Number ofshares :
» Appointment ) Reason for change in
Name Position at Gender| Age |Term start da Term end date|  at the increased decreased | or decrease| held at the end 0 .
status shares
beginning o] during the | during the changes the period
the period period period
Shareholding reductio
. . . November 7,
Jiang Bin |Chairman |Incumbent [Male 56[July 27, 2007 2022 373,487,40 86,090,00 287,397,40\transfer to  persof
acting in concert
Vice July 27, 2007 November 7,
u )
Chairman y 2022 Shares  granted
Jiang Long Incumbent  |Male 48 197,255,19 53,090,00 250,345,19]|persons acting
) October 30, |[November 12,
President concert
2014 2022
February 4, |November 7,
Director Incumbent
2016 2022
Vice March 25, November 12,
. ) Incumbent .
Duan Huilu|President Male 46|2011 2022 4,474,50 1,000,00 3,474,50(Reduction
Chief
) ) ) August 12, |January 27,
Financial |Resigned
] 2010 2021
Officer
Liu November 29|November 7,
_|Director Incumbent  |Male 51
Chengmin 2016 2022
Xia Independen October 20, |November 7,
) Incumbent |Female | 64
Shanhong |Director 2016 2022
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Independen November 8, |November 7,
Wang Kun | Incumbent |Female | 46
Director 2019 2022
Wang Independen October 20, |November 7,
) ) ) Incumbent  |Male 62
Tianmiao |Director 2016 2022
Chairman of
Sun September 17November7, )
) Board of Incumbent |Male 56 8,889,534 1,800,00 7,089,534Reduction
Hongbin i 2013 2022
Supervisors
Employee
Feng | .
o representati|Resigned Male 48July 27, 2007 |April 27, 2021
Jianliang .
e Superviso
Employee i
Xu ] September 170ctober 17,
) representati/lncumbent |[Female | 45
Xiaofeng ] 2013 2022
e Superviso,
Gao Vice ) November 12,
] ] Incumbent  |Male 46|April 12, 2012
Xiaoguang |President 2022
) Vice October 10, |[November 12, )
Liu Chunfa ] Incumbent Male 46 1,151,864 287,864 864,00(Reduction
President 2013 2022
Jiang Vice October 10, |November 12,
) ) Incumbent  |Male 52
Hongzhai |President 2013 2022
Vice
) President, October 10, |November 12,
Jia Jun'an Incumbent  |Male 51 200,00( 200,00(
Secretary of 2013 2022
the Board
Feng Vice ) October 24, |September 10,
] Resigned Male 54
Pengbo President 2016 2021
Vice October 24, |November 12,
Yu Dachao ] Incumbent  |Male 44
President 2016 2022
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Kazuyoshi |Vice October 24, |November 12,
; ) Incumbent  |Male 55
Yoshinaga |President 2016 2022
Chief
] . ) January 27, |November 12,
Li Yongzhi |Financial |Incumbent |Male 44
) 2021 2022
Officer
Employee
) ) e . ] ) October 17,
Wei WenbinrepresentatiAppointed Male 44| April 27, 2021 2022
e Superviso
] Vice ] November 12,
Li Youbo ) Appointed Male 45|June 2, 2021
President 2022
Zhu Vice ] November 12,
) Appointed Male 48June 2, 2021
Shengbo |President 2022
Total -- -- -- -- -- -- 585,458,50] 53,090,00( 89,177,861 549,370,63 --
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Whether there is any resignation of directors, supervisors and senior management during the reporting period

4 Yes I No

During the reporting period, chief financial officer Duan Huilu and vice president Feng Pengbo resigned because of job
re-arrangement, and the employee representative supervisor Feng Jianliang resigned during the term of office duettogab adjus

Changes in directors, supervisors and senior management

4 Applicable I Not applicable
Name Position Type Date Reason
] Chief Financial )

Duan Huilu ) Resigned January 27, 202|Job arrangement
Officer
Employee

Feng Jianliang |representative [Resigned April 26, 2021 |Job adjustment
supervisor
Employee

Wei Wenbin representative |Elected April 27,2021 |Job arrangement
supervisor

Li Youbo Vice President |Appointed June 2, 2021  |Job arrangement

Zhu Shengbo |Vice President [Appointed June 2, 2021  |Job arrangement

. . September 10,
Feng Pengbo |Vice President |Resigned 2021 Job arrangement

2. Biographical Information

Professional backgrounds, main working experience and current duties of the Directors, Supervisors and the Senior
Management

Directors:

Mr. Jiang Bin:

Mr. Jiang, Chairman of the company, master's degree holder of business administration from T&nigmsity, bachelor's
degree holder of electronic engineering from Beihang University. Mr. Jiang founded Goertek Inc. in 2001. He has moyednsn 30
of working experience in the electazoustic industry. He also serves as standing member of the 12th exeoutiwéitee of the
All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce, rotating chairman of China Electronic Components Association, and vice chairman
of Industry of Virtual Reality Alliance. He has successively won the titles of National Model Worker, OutstBnttiegreneur of
Chinese Electronic Information Industry, National Labor Medal of Shandong Province, Labor Model of Shandong Province,
Outstanding Entrepreneur of Shandong Province, etc.

Mr. Jiang Long:
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Mr. Jiang , Vice Chairman and Presidefithe compap, Ph.Din strategic managemerthe University of Maryland, a master's
degree holder in management science from Renmin University of China, and a bachelor's degree holder in materials engineering
from Tsinghua University. Joined the Company in 2004, i&ng successively served as vice president, senior vice president and
executive vice president of the company. Mr. Jiang is also the Vice President of China Audio Industry Association ainchdime cha
of China Electronic Components Associatilectroacousc Chapter. Mr. Jiang has extensive experience in marketing, sales and
business management.

Mr. Duan Huilu:

Mr. Duan, Director and Vice President of the compabachelor's degree holdgom Shandong Universitgf Finance and
Economics He joined the copmny in 2001 and successively served as the company's accountant, finance manager, finance
department manager and chief financial officer. Mr. Duan has more than 20 years of working experience.

Mr. Liu Chengmin:

Mr. Liu, Director of the company, master'sgiee holder in mechanics from Harbin Institute of Technology. Mr. Liu currently
serves as chairman of Beijing Fargo Cap@al., Ltd., managing partner of Tianjin Longyuan Yunteng Investment Management
Partnership, and technology consultant of China Rimgrust Co., Ltd. Mr. Liu used to serve as director of the telecom division of
Huawei's domestic marketing department, senior executive vice president of Tencent and president of Tencent Wireless Internet
Business Group. He has rich experience in telegodinternet.

Ms. Xia Shanhong:

Ms. Xia, Independent Director of the company. Ms. Xia used to serve as deputy director of the Institute of EléChioe®s,
Academy of Sciences, director, researcher and doctoral supervisor of the State Key Laborétansdiicer Technology, and
received special government allowance from the State Council. She received a bachelor's degree from Tsinghua University, a
master's degree from the Chinese Academy of Sciences and a doctorate from the University of CaninglgednMs. Xia is the
Royal Fellowship visiting scholar of the Royal Society and the Berkeley Scholarship visiting scholar of the UniversifprofaCal
Berkeley. She used to be the chief scientist of the National 973 Project, member of the MENlS®xgveragroup of the National
863 Program and member of its advanced manufacturing technology expert group, member of the expert review team of the
Department of Information Sciences of the National Natural Science Foundation of China, and chaired@maofsttiucers. Ms. Xia
currently serves as member and director of Chinese Institute of Electronics, director of China Instrument and Contras Setiety
as vice chairman of its sensor branch, member of Chinese Society ofMNéinm Technology, and edital board member of many
international academic journals.

Mr. Wang Tianmiao:
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Mr. Wang, Independent Director of the company. Professor and Ph.D Tutor of Beihang University o, Honorary Director of
Institute of Robotics at Beijing University of Aeronautasd Astronautics Dean of Zhongguancun College of Innovation Angel.

He received a doctorate and mastersdé degree holder faomom Nort
Xi'an Jiaotong University. He is one of the distinguisheafgssors of the Changjiang Scholars, winner of the National Science Fund

for Distinguished Young Scholars, member of the Advanced Robot Technology Innovation Team for National Defense, chief expert
group leader in the field of advanced manufacturing uB@8arNational Higitech R&D Program in the 11th Fiéear Plan, head of

the expert group of the Service Robotics program in the 12th'Yaae Plan, and president of the IEEE Robotics and Automation

Society (Beijing region). He is mainly engaged in the asse of advanced robot theory and technology, including bionic structure,
medical robot, service robot and so on. Mr. Wang has won two setasslawards of National Science and Technology Progress

Award and one firstlass award of Beijing Science andciieology Progress Award. He is also an independent director of Shanghai

STEP Electric Corporation.

Ms. Wang Kun:

Ms. Wang, Independent Director of the company. She serves as an associate professor in the School of Accounting, School of
Economics and Managent at Tsinghua University. She received her doctorate in Accounting from Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology and her bachelor's degree in Accounting from Nankai University. She joined the School of Accounting,
School of Economics and Managernhah Tsinghua University in April 2003, and worked as a lecturer and associate professor. She
served as deputy director and senior researcher of the Research Center of Corporate Governance of Tsinghua University from
January 2010. Ms. Wang served as the [Phprogram director of the Accounting Department of the School of Economics and
Management of Tsinghua University from January 2011 to December 2013. She has won the Excellence in Teaching Award of the
School of Economics and Management of Tsinghua Usityefor several times. Ms. Wang is also an Independent Director of China
International Futures Co., Ltd. Ms. Wang used to be the Independent Director of Beijing Thunisoft Co., Ltd. and Integrated
Electronic Systems Lab Co., Ltd. Ms. Wang has rich expeeién the fields of finance and auditing.

Supervisors:

Mr. Sun Hongbin:

Chairman of the Board of Supervisors. Bachelor in industrial automation from Shandong University. He used to serve as deputy
general manager of the company, manager and directog bi#iness department of China Electronics Import and export Shandong
Corporation. Mr. Sun owns more than 30 years of working experience in marketing, and import & export business.

Ms. Xu Xiaofeng:

Employee Representative of the Board of Supervisors. BachgeBusiness Administration, China University of Petroleum.

She graduated from the Zhengzhou University of Aeronautics, Electrical Technology Major. Ms. Xu joined the company in 2001,
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and successively served as the assistant manager of the quality deptartment, the enterprise development department and the
operation department, and is now in charge of the company's employee service center. Ms. Xu has rich experience in business
management.

Mr. Wei Wenbin:

Employee Representative of the Board of Sujsors. Graduated from Jilin University majoring in material forming and control
engineering, he is currently in charge of the staff management department of the company. Mr. Wei joined the compamyih 2004,
successively served as the head of the emyip production and operation management department, human resources management
department, lean manufacturing management department and other related departments.

Senior Management:

Mr. Jiang Long:

Refer to the resume above for details.

Mr. Duan Huilu:

Refer to the resume above for details.

Mr. Gao Xiaoguang:

Vice President of the company. Master's Degree in business administration from Southern Cross University in Australia. He
joined the company in 2001, and successively served as manager of thenthrkieeng department, deputy manager of the device
marketing department, general manager of the device business department and head of the marketing. He has rich experience in
market developing and key client maintaining.

Mr. Liu Chunfa:

Vice President ofthe company. Mr. Liu graduated from Lanzhou Railway Institute. He successively served as engineer of R &

D department, chief of quality assurance department, assistant manager, technical manager of technical engineering department
senior product managédread of manufacturing department, senior manager of R & D department, etc. Mr. Liu has rich experience in
the fields of electroacoustic components, especially in miniature loudspeakers and receivers.

Mr. Jiang Hongzhai:

Vice President of the company. Miliang graduated from Shandong College of Information Technology.. Joined the company
in 2006, Mr. Jiang is mainly responsible for the management of mold, injection molding, stamping and so on. Mr. Jiarsgveed to
as factory director of Yuefeng ElectioriTechnology (Dongguan) Co., Ltd., and engineer of Weifang Radio Eighth Factory. Mr.
Jiang has more than 20 years of technical management experience in the field of precision machining.

Mr. Jia Junan:
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Vice President and the Secretary of the BoardDFh Economics, Xiamen UniversityMaster of Economics, Shandong
University, Bachelor of Economics, Shandong University of Finance and Economics. Mr. Jia is the member of the Chinese Institu
of Certified Public AccountaritsCICPA™ and the Association of Charesl Certified AccountaritsACCA). Mr. Jia joined the
company in 2010 and served as deputy general manager of financial department. He used to serve as the tax manager of KPMG
Enterprise Consulting (China) Co., Ltd., Qingdao Branch. Mr. Jia hold€¢htiicate for Secretary of the Board of Directaaad
his qualification complies with relevant provisionsRifiles Governing the Listing of Shares on Shenzhen Stock Exciahdiee
Articles of Association.

Mr. Yu Dachao:

Vice President of the company. Bach&ddn computer science and engineering, Tianjin University of Technology. He was in
charge of the company's Bluetooth headsets, active 3D glasses and accessories for household video games. He haseiéh experien
the R&D and manufacturing of electrordccessories.

Mr. Kazuyoshi Yoshinaga:

Vice President of the company. Japanese. He holds a master's degree in business administration from University of Washington
and a bachelor's degree in mechanics from Tongji University. He used to be the agsutiaie of IBM and has extensive
experience in the field of strategy atrednsformation management. He also serves as deputy segetanal of the China Virtual
Reality Industry Association.

Mr. Li Yongzhi:

Chief Financial Officer of the company and tHead of the Accounting Office. Mr. Li holds a bachelor's degree in management
and a master's degree in business management from Hefei University of Technology. He joined Goertek in 2005 and successively
served as accountant and financial manager of ttendial department. Mr. Li is senior accountant and certified management
accountafit CMA), with more than 15 years of experience in corporate finance. After deliberation and approval by the 14th meeting
of the fifth Board of Directors, he was appointedtas €hief Financial Officer of the company. His term of office begins from the
approval date of Board of Directors to the expiration date o

Mr. Li Youbo:

Vice President of the company. Mr. Li holds a bacheldegree in automation from Dalian University of Technology. He
joined the company in 2003 and successively served as engineer, technical manager, head of the business departni¢haetc. Mr.
nearly 20 years of experience in R&D and manufacturindeatmacoustic components.

Mr. Zhu Shengbo:

Vice President of the company. Mr. Zhu graduated from Shenyang University of Technology. He joined the company in 2005
and successively served as production manager, assistant minister, minister, senioraméhistexd of the business department. He

59



Goertek Inc. Annual Report 2021

used to serve as production director of Dongguan Samsung Bléettwanics Co., Ltd. Mr. Zhu has more than 20 years of

experience in manufacturing, operation and management of consumer electronic products sts;taasgssories and devices.

Positions heledttesn sharehol der so

4 Applicable T Not applicable
o Receive
Position .
) remuneration or
undertaken ir
Name Name of the shareholder enf Term start date Term end date allowance from
shareholder
. sharehol
entity
(Yes/No)
Jiang Bin Goertek Group Co., Ltd. Chairman November 15, 2021 |November 14, 2024 No
Jiang Long Goertek Group Co., Ltd. Director November 15, 2021 |November 14, 2024 No
Duan Huilu Goertek Group Co., Ltd. Director November 152021 November 14, 2024 No
. General
Sun Hongbin |Goertek Group Co., Ltd. November 15, 2021 |November 14, 2024 Yes
Manager
Positions held in othentities
4 Applicable I Not applicable
. Receive
Position )
remuneration of
_ undertaken
Name Name of other entity A Termstart date Term end date | allowance from
in other
) sharehad
entity .
entity (Yes/No)
) ) Weifang Goertek Electronics Co., )
Jiang Bin Lid Chairman [November 23, 2019 |November 22, 2023 No
) ) Beijing Goertek Investment Executive
Jiang Bin . January 22, 2019  |January 21, 2022 No
Management Co., Ltd. Director
. . Weifang Goer Education Investm¢Executive
Jiang Bin ] March 22, 2019 March 21, 2022 No
Co., Ltd. Director
) Rongcheng Goertek Technology |Executive
Jiang Long ) July 15, 2020 July 14,2023 No
Co., Ltd. Director
) Goertek Technology Vina Compal )
Jiang Long o Chairman |January 31, 2019 |December 31, 202] No
Limited
) ) Executive )
Jiang Long GoertekElectronics|nc. . May 1, 2020 April 30, 2023 No
Director
) ) Director /
) Weifang Goertek Electronics Co.,
Jiang Long Lid General November 26, 2019 |[November 25, 202 No
' Manager
) Executive
Jiang Long Goertek Technology Co., Ltd. December 10, 2021 |December 9, 2026 No
Director /
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General
Manager
Executive
) Goertek Intelligence Technology |Director /
Jiang Long August 18, 2020 August 17, 2023 No
Co., Ltd. General
Manager
Jiang Long Goertek Microelectronics Inc. Chairman |October 20, 2020 October 30, 2023 No
. Qingdao Goertek Intelligent Sens(Executive
Jiang Long ] October 22,2021  |October 21, 2024 No
Co., Ltd. Director
) Weifang Goertek Microelectronic§Executive
Jiang Long ) December 9, 2019 |December 8, 2022 No
Co., Ltd. Director
) Shanghai Ganyuzhi Technology |Executive
Jiang Long ) October 14,2020  |October 13, 2023 No
Co., Ltd. Director
) Beijing Goertek Microelectronics |Executive
Jiang Long ] August 7, 2020 August 6, 2023 No
Co.,Ltd. Director
. Wuxi Goertek Microelectronics CqExecutive
Jiang Long ] August 7, 2020 August 6, 2023 No
Ltd. Director
) Shenzhen Goertek Microelectroni Executive
Jiang Long ) July 23, 2020 July 22, 2023 No
Co., Ltd. Director
) Rongcheng Goertek Executive
Jiang Long ) ) ) November 1, 2021 |October 31, 2024 No
Microelectronics Co., Ltd. Director
. Qingdao Goertek Microelectronic§Executive
Jiang Long ] ] November 30, 2020 |November 29, 2023 No
Research Institute Co., Ltd. Director
Jiang Long Enkris Semiconductor Inc. Director November 18, 2021 |[November 17, 2024 No
] Goertek Technology Vina Compal
Duan Huilu o Director January 31, 2019  |December 31, 202] No
Limited
Duan Huilu Goertek Technology Co., Ltd. Supervisor |August 14, 2021 August 13, 2024 No
Executive
_ Director /
Duan Huilu Goertek Investment Co., Ltd. December 7, 2015 |December 6, 2022 No
General
Manager
. Weifang Goertek Electronics Co.,| .
Duan Huilu Lid Director November 23, 2021 |November 22, 2024 No
Executive
] ) ) Director /
Duan Huilu WeifangGoertek Trading Co., Ltd. August 26, 2020 August 25, 2023 No
General
Manager
] Beijing Goertek Investment )
Duan Huilu Supervisor |January 22, 2019  |January 21, 2022 No

Management Co., Ltd.
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Duan Huilu Goertek (HongKong) Co., Limited|Director April 26, 2019 April 25, 2022 No
Executive
) Qingdao Goertek Commercial  |Director /
Duan Huilu ) January 11, 2021  |January 10, 2024 No
Factoring Co., Ltd. General
Manager
_ |Weifang Hanhui Enterprise Executive
Sun Hongbin ) September 18, 2019 |September 17, 202 No
Management Co., Ltd. Director
) ] Director /
_ |Weifang Gaoge Education
Sun Hongbin General September 11, 2018 |February 3, 2021 No
Investment Co., Ltd.
Manager
_ |Weifang Hanzhi Enterprise Executive
Sun Hongbin ] October 112017 October 10, 2023 No
Management Co., Ltd. Director
. |Weifang Goer Education Investm¢General
Sun Hongbin March 22, 2019 March 21, 2022 No
Co., Ltd. Manager
Executive
] ) Director /
Sun Hongbin |Weifang Goer Real Estate Co., Lt August 4, 2018 August 3, 2024 No
General
Manager
Executive
] ] Director /
SunHongbin |Qingdao Goer Real Estate Co., L May 29, 2017 May 28, 2023 No
General
Manager
. . General
Sun Hongbin |Weifang Goer Farm Co., Ltd. September 23, 2017 |September 22, 202 No
Manager
. |Weifang Goer Manor Trading Co.|Executive
Sun Hongbin ) January 27, 2018  |January 26, 2024 No
Ltd. Director
Executive
~ |Weifang Goer Property Service C{Director /
Sun Hongbin February 23, 2018 |February 22, 2024 No
Ltd General
Manager
Executive
_ Director /
Sun Hongbin |Dotcom Ivestment Co., Ltd June 4, 2015 December 24, 202] No
General
Manager
Executive
_ |Weifang GoerHome Decoration |Director / )
Sun Hongbin ) ) April 9, 2017 July 14, 2021 No
Engineering Co., Ltd General
Manager
~ |Shandong Goer Education Group|General
Sun Hongbin January 3, 2020 January 2, 2023 No
Co., Ltd. Manager
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) ) . |Director/
~ |Beihang Goer (Weifang) Intelliger|
Sun Hongbin General January 22, 2019  |August 31, 2021 No
Robot Co., Ltd
Manager
_ |GoerTek Group International Executive
Sun Hongbin | . ) August 13, 2018 No
Limited Director
Liu Chunfa GoertekVina Co., Ltd. Director January 1, 2019 December 31, 2021 No
] Goertek Technology Vina Compar
Liu Chunfa o Director January 31, 2019 |December 31, 2021 No
Limited
) Shanghai Goertek Technology Cq ) ) .
Liu Chunfa Lt Supervisor |April 25, 2020 April 24, 2023 No
) Yili Precision Manufacturing Co., |Executive
Jiang Hongzha| ) July 5, 2019 July 4, 2022 No
Ltd. Director
) Weifang Goertek Communication |Executive
Jiang Hongzhad ) June 26, 2021 June 25, 2024 No
Technology Co., Ltd. Director
) Dongguan JoyForcerecision Executive
Jiang Hongzhad ] ) December 11, 2019 |December 10, 2027 No
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. Director
) Kunshan Goertek Electronics Co.|Executive
Jiang Hongzha| ] November 9, 2020 |[November 8, 2023 No
Ltd. Director
) Nanning Goertek Electronics Co., )
Jiang Hongzha| Lid Chairman [November 12, 2021 [November 11, 2024 No
Jiang Hongzha{Nanning Goertek Trading Co., LtdChairman [November 29, 2021 |[November 28, 2024 No
Executive
Beijing Goertek Technology Co., |Director /
Yu Dachao November 30, 2019 |November 29, 2021 No
Ltd. General
Manager
Xian Goertek Electronic Executive
Yu Dachao ) May 7, 2019 May 6, 2022 No
Technology Co., Ltd. Director
Executive
Qingdao Goertek Acoustics Director /
Yu Dachao December 10, 2021 |December 9, 2024 No
Technology Co., Ltd. General
Manager
Chairman /
Yishui TECO Electronic
Yu Dachao General December 10, 2019 |December 9, 2022 No
Technology Co., Ltd.
Manager
Goertek Technology Vina Compal
Yu Dachao o Director January 31, 2021  |January 30, 2024 No
Limited
Executive
Gao XiaoguangYishui GoertekElectronics Co., LtdDirector / |February 13, 2021  |February 12, 2024 No
General
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Manager
Executive
] Shenzhen Goertek Technology C(Director /
Gao Xiaoguang October 29, 2021 October 28, 2024 No
Ltd. General
Manager
) Shanghai Goertekechnology Co., |[Executive ) .
Gao Xiaoguang ] April 25, 2020 April 24, 2023 No
Ltd. Director
Gao XiaoguangGoertekElectronics, Inc Manager |December 19, 2018 [December 18, 2021 No
] ) o Non-executi
Gao Xiaoguan¢AKM Industrial Company Limited ) March 12, 2015 No
ve director
JiaJun'an Goertek Investment Co., Ltd. Supervisor |December 7, 2021 |December 6, 2024 No
) Weifang Goertek Electronics Co., )
Jia Jun'an Lid Supervisor [November 26, 2019 |[November 25, 2021 No
) ) o Non-executi
Jia Jun'an AKM Industrial Company Limited ) November 17, 2015 No
ve director
] ] Goertek Optical Technology Co., )
Li Yongzhi Lid Supervisor [March 23, 2021 March 22, 2024 No
] ] Goertek Intelligence Technology )
Li Yongzhi Supervisor |August 18, 2020 August 17, 2023 No
Co., Ltd.
) ) Kunshan Goertek Electroni€p., )
Li Yongzhi Lid Supervisor [November 9, 2020 |November 8, 2023 No
) ) Qingdao Goertek Commercial )
Li Yongzhi ] Supervisor |January 11, 2021 January 10, 2024 No
Factoring Co., Ltd.
] ) Nanning Goertek Electronics Co., )
Li Yongzhi Lid Supervisor [November 12, 2021 |November 112024 No
Li Yongzhi Nanning Goertek Trading Co., LtdSupervisor |[November 29, 2021 [November 28, 2024 No
) . Xian Goertek Electronic )
Li Yongzhi Supervisor |May 7, 2019 May 6, 2022 No
Technology Co., Ltd.
) . Yishui TECO Electronic )
Li Yongzhi Supervisor |December 10, 2019 |December 9, 2022 No
Technology Co., Ltd.
] ) Rongcheng Goertek Technology )
Li Yongzhi Supervisor [July 15, 2020 July 14, 2023 No
Co., Ltd.
] ) Goertek Technology Vina Compal )
Li Yongzhi o Supervisor [January 31, 2019  |January 30, 2022 No
Limited
Li Yongzhi Goertek Microelectronics Inc. Director December 23, 2020 |December 22, 2023 No
Kazuyoshi Goertek Vina Co., Ltd General December 20, 2021 N
o
Yoshinaga Manager
Kazuyoshi Goertek Technology Vina CompalGeneral September 1, 2021 No
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Yoshinaga Limited Manager
Kazuyoshi Goertek Precision Industry Vietna/General September 1, 2021 N
o}
Yoshinaga Company Limited Manager
) Shanghai Goertek Technology CqGeneral
Li Youbo July 23, 2020 July 22, 2023 No
Ltd. Manager
Nanning Goertek Electronics Co.,| .
Zhu Shengbo Lt Director November 12, 2021 |November 11, 2024 No
Zhu Shengbo |Nanning Goertek Trading Co., LtdDirector November 29, 2021 |November 28, 2024 No
Zhu Shengbo |Goertek Vina Co., Ltd Chairman |January 1, 2019 December 31, 202] No
Zhu Shengbo |GoertekTechnology Vina Compan|Director
o January 31, 2019  |January 30, 2022 No
Limited
Zhu Shengbo |Goertek Precision Industry VietnaExecutive |October 30, 2020  |October 29, 2025 N
o
Company Limited Director
Zhu Shengbo |Goertek Technology (Hong Executive |August 7, 2020 N
o]
Kong)Co., Ltd. Director
) ) Weifang Goertek Communication|General
Wei Wenbin June 26, 2021 June 25, 2024 No
Technology Co., Ltd. Manager
Description of
incumbency in |None
other units

Penalties imposed by securities regulatory authoritieiont and outgoing directors, supervisors and senior management of the
company in the past three years

I Applicable & Not applicable

3. Remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

The decisiormaking procedure, basis and actual paynétiie remuneration of directors, supervisors and senior management

The remuneration plan of directors and supervisors of the company shall be formulated by the remuneration and assessment
committee of the Board of Directors, which shall be approved bydaed of Directors and submitted to the general meeting of
shareholders for approval before implementation.

The remuneration standard for senior management shall be formulated by the remuneration and assessment committee, and

implemented after approval biye Board of Directors. Allowances for independent directors shall be paid on a regular basis.

Remuneration of directors, supervisors and senior management during reporting period

Unit: RMB 10,000

The totalamount] Whether to get

Name

Position

Gender

Age

Appointment

status

of pretax
remuneration
received from th

paid by the
related party of

the company
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company
Jiang Bin Chairman Male 56 Incumbent 180No
) Vice Chairman,
Jiang Long ) Male 48 Incumbent 180No
President
Xia Shanhong |Director Female 64 Incumbent 18/No
Independent
Wang Kun ) Female 46 Incumbent 18/No
Director
Chairman of
Sun Hongbin Board of Male 56 Incumbent O|Yes
Supervisors
Employee
Feng Jianliang |Representative Male 48 Resigned 15/No
Supervisor
Employee
Xu Xiaofeng representative Female 45 Incumbent 45/No
Supervisor
] Director, Vice
Duan Huilu ) Male 46 Incumbent 120No
President
Gao Xiaoguang |Vice President Male 46 Incumbent 120No
Liu Chunfa Vice President Male 46 Incumbent 120No
Jiang Hongzhai |Vice President Male 52 Incumbent 120No
Vice President,
Jia Jun'an Secretary of the Male 51 Incumbent 120No
Board
Feng Pengbo |Vice President Male 54 Resigned 83No
Yu Dachao Vice President Male 44 Incumbent 120No
Kazuyoshi ) )
; Vice President Male 55 Incumbent 120No
Yoshinaga
Liu Chengmin |Director Male 51 Incumbent 18/No
) ) Independent
Wang Tianmiao | Male 62 Incumbent 18No
Director
) ) Chief Financial
Li Yongzhi ] Male 44 Incumbent 110No
Officer
Employee
Wei Wenbin representative Male 44 Incumbent 30[No
Supervisor
Li Youbo Vice President Male 45 Incumbent 70/No
Zhu Shengbo |Vice President Male 48 Incumbent 70/No
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Total - - - - 1,695 -
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VI. Performance of Directors' Duties during the Reporting Period

1. Board of Directors

Session

Convening date

Disclosure date

Meeting resolution

The 13th meeting of the 5th
Board of Directors

January 15, 2021

January 16, 2021

Resolutions were disclosed by the Company on Cninfo (www.cninfo.com.cn) and the four designate
newspapers on 16 January 2021(Announcefer2021002)

The 14th meeting of the 5th
Board of Directors

January 27, 2021

January 28, 2021

Resolutions were disclosed by the Company on Cninfo (www.cninfo.com.cn) and the four designate
newspapers on 28 January 2021(Announcement No-@D2)L

The 15thmeeting of the 5th
Board of Directors

January 29, 2021

January 30, 2021

Resolutions were disclosed by the Company on Cninfo (www.cninfo.com.cn) and the four designate
newspapers on 30 January 2021(Announcement No-@DZ)L

The 16th meeting of the 5th
Board of Directors

February 9, 2021

February 10, 2021

Resolutions were disclosed by the Company on Cninfo (www.cninfo.com.cn) and the four designate
newspapers on 10 Feidary 2021(Announcement No 202B1)

The 17th meeting of the 5th
Board of Directors

March 1, 2021

March 2, 2021

Resolutions were disclosed by the Company on Cninfo (www.cninfo.com.cn) and the four designate
newspapers on 2 March 2021(Announcement No ZBR1)

The 18th meeting of the 5th
Board of Directors

March 26, 2021

March 27, 2021

Resolutions were disclosed by the Company on Cninfo (www.cninfo.com.cn) and the four designate

newspapers on 27 March 2021(Announcement No -2&2)

The 19th meeting of the 5th

Resolutions were disclosed the Company on Cninfo (www.cninfo.com.cn) and the four designated

. April 16, 2021 April 17, 2021 )
Board of Directors newspapers on 17 April 2021(Announcement No 20@8)
The 20th meeting of the 5th ] ) Resolutions were disclosed by the Company on Crimfow.cninfo.com.cn) and the four designated
) April 21, 2021 April 22, 2021 )
Board of Directors newspapers on 22 April 2021(Announcement No 2024)
The 21st meeting of the 5th Resolutions were disclosed by the Company on Cninfo (www.cninfo.com.cn) and tle$mmated
June 2, 2021 June 3, 2021

Board of Directors

newspapers on 3 June 2021(Announcement No-2881

The 22nd meeting of the 5th
Board of Directors

August 26, 2021

August 27, 2021

Resolutions were disclosed by the Company on Cninfo (www.cninfo.com.cn) and the four designate

newspapers on 2¥ugust 2021(Announcement No 20200)

The 23rd meeting of the 5th
Board of Directors

October 26, 2021

The board approved: Proposal on the examinatioGogttek Quarterly Report in Q3 2021
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Session Convening date Disclosure date Meeting resolution

The 24th meeting of the 5th Resolutions were disclosed by the Company on Cninfo (www.cninfo.com.cn) and the four designate
] November 82021 November 9, 2021

Board of Directors newspapers on 8 November 2021(Announcement No-2081L

The 25th meeting of the 5th Resolutions were disclosed by the Company on Cninfo (www.cninfo.com.cn) and the four designate
) November 30, 2021 |December 1, 2021

Board of Directors newspapers on 1 December 2021(Announcement No-2B2)L
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2. Directors6 attendance at Boshareholder§ Directors and
Directorsé attendance at Board of Directors
Number of
Whether therg Attendance o
Attendance ) .
; _ | Attendance by Entrusted is absence in the general
required | Attendance in ] Absence )
Name ) . Telecommuni| presence ) person for twq meeting of
during the | person (times . . . (times) _
) cation (times) (times) consecutive | shareholders
reporting ) ;
) ) times (times)
period (times
Jiang Bin 13 12 1 0 0 No 3
Jiang Long 13 11 2 0 0 No 2
Duan Huilu 13 13 0 0 0 No 3
Xia Shanhong 13 1 12 0 0 No 1
Wang Tianmiao 13 1 12 0 0 No 1
Liu Chengmin 13 1 10 2 0 Yes 2
Wang Kun 13 1 12 0 0 No 3

Statement on failure to attend the Board of Directors for two consecutive times

Due to the Corona Virus Disease, director Liu Chengmin was unable to persuateaity the 16th meeting of the 5th Board of
Directors and the 17th meeting of the 5th Board of Directors, and delegated director Duan Huilu and independent diré¢tor Wang

to vote respectively.

3. Objections raised by directors to relevant matters of tt Company

Whether directors raise any objection to relevant matters of the Company

I Yes & No

No objection was raised to relevant matters of the Company during the reporting period.

4. Other details on the performance of duties by directors

Whethemproposals made by directors were adopted by the Company

4 Yes I No

Statement on the adoption or radoption of proposals made by the directors

During the reporting period, the directors of the Company carried out work in strict accordanGomjtany L&, Securities
Law, Corporate Governance of Listed Compani€ules Governing the Listing of Shares on Shenzhen Stock Exchange
SelfRegulatory Directives No.1 for Listed Companies on the Shenzhen Stock ExcNamngetive Operation of Listed Companies
on the Main Board Articles of Association and Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directdrsy fulfilled their duty of due
diligence by forming a consensus after full discussion on major governance and business matters of the Company, and resolutel

supenising and driving the implementation of the board resolution, so as to ensure the dmaking process being scientific,
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timely and efficient, play a positive role in the sustained, healthy and stable development of the Company, and etftagivatly s

the legitimate rights and interests of the Company and all shareholders.
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VII. Performance of Special Committees under the Board of Directors during the Reporting Period

Number Important »
. . Performanc Specific
Committee of ) . opinions and o .
Members ) Convening date Meeting content . of other objections (if
name meetingy suggestions i
duties any)
held proposed

The audit committee approved:Special Audit Report on t
Depositand Use of Funds Raised in Q4 2020 Inspectior
Report on Related Transactions and Guarantees of
January 25, 2021 ) ] Approved
Company in Q4 202@®. Internal Audit Work Report of 202@.
Internal Audit Work Plan of 20215. Proposal on Nominatin

Mr. Du Lanzhen as Head of Inteal Audit

The audit committee approved: Broposal on Approving
Financial Accounts of 20202. Proposal on Approving
Financial Report and Abstract of 202@. Proposal of
Approving of Selssessment Report on Intern@bntrol of

March 26, 2021 ) |Approved
Wang Kun, Jiang Bin, Xi 2020 4. Proposal on the Rappointment of the Accounti

Audit committee 5 . . . .
Shanhong Firm; 5. Report on the Audit Work of the Accounting Firn
202Q 6. Report on the Performance of the Audit Committé

the Board of Directors in 2020

The audit committee approved: Proposal on Approving
Quarterly Report of the Company in Q1 2021 and Abstrg
April 21, 2021 the Quarterly Report of the Company in Q1 202linspectiofApproved
Report on Related Transactions and Guarantees in Q1;2)
Internal Audit VBrk Report in Q1 2021

The audit committee approved:Ptoposal on approving
August 26, 2021 Interim Report of 2021 and Abstract of Interim Report of 2Approved

2. Special Audit Report on the Deposit and Use of Raised
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Number Important »
. o Performanc Specific
Committee of ) . opinions and . .
Members ; Convening date Meeting content . of other objections (if
name meetingy suggestions ;
duties any)
held proposed

in the SemiannuaPeriod of 2021 3. Inspection Report @
Related Transactions and Guarantees of the Company
2021 4. Internal Audit Work Report in Q2 2021

The audit committee approved: Proposal on Approving
Quarterly Report in Q2021 and Abstract of Quarterly Rep
in Q3 2021 2. Inspection Report on Related Transactions
October 26, 2021 ) ) ~|Approved
Guarantees in Q3 202B. Internal Audit Work Report in
2021; 4. Special Audit Report on the Deposit and Use of F

raised in Q3 2021

The remuneration and assessment committee app
January 22, 2021 ) o ] ~ |Approved
Proposal on the Remuneration of the Chief Financial Office

The remuneration and assessment committee approv
Proposal on approving of Goertek Home No 5 Employee

) Ownership Plan (Draft) 2. Proposal on approving
Remuneration | ) ] o )
Jiang Bin, Xia Shanhong ) Administrative Measures of Goertek Home No 5 ESG)|
) ) April 13, 2021 ) ] ] Approved
Wang Tianmiao Proposal on approving of Stock Optidmcentive Plan ¢

w

and assessmen

committee )
Goertek of 2021 (Draft)4. Proposal on approving of Measu

for the Examination and Administration of the Implementg
of the Goertek Stock Option Incentive Plan of 2021

The remuneration and assessment approledposal on th
May 31, 2021 ) ) Approved
Remuneration of Vice President

VIII. Performance of the Board of Supervisors

Whether the Board of Supervisors found out any risk of the Company in its supervision activities duepgttiireg period.
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I Yes & No

The Board of Supervisors has no objection to the matters supervised during the reporting period.
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IX. Personnel of the Company

1. Number of staff, specialty composition and educational level

Numberof staff of the parent company at the end of the 37.31¢
Reporting Period
Number of Staff of major subsidiaries at the end of the Repq 58,461
Period
Total number of staff at the end of the Reporting Period 95,78(
Total number of staff who receivemuneration during the 95,780
Reporting Period
Number of retired staff the Company and its major subsidiar 0
are required to compensate
Specialty composition
Category Number
Production staff 69,815
Sales staff 670
Technical staff 19,753
Financialstaff 306
Administrative staff 5,236
Total 95,78(
Educational level
Category Number
PhD 78
Postgraduate 3,435
Undergraduate 16,170
College degree 18,823
Below College degree 57,274
Total 95,78(

2. Remuneration policy

Goertek continued to put emphasis on the attraction, motivation and retention of talents, implemented competitive incentive
policies on salary and wel fare, and fulfilled the cultural
Facing COVID19 and economic challenges, the Company still steadily applied employee promotion and salary adjustment plan

to raise the salary level of employees. The Company also implemented special remuneration policies for core positiemts and tal
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thatsupport the development of strategic business, soookasd to ef
improve the quality and quantity of talents. In terms of incentive policy, through the issuance of ESOPs and newostqulropt
more and more core employees can share the fruit of company growth. The cohesion of the management team and theskey staffs ha
been effectively enhanced. In addition to material incentives, the Company fully investigated in the demands eégnspived to
build welfare system with its own characteristics, made full use of related resources, and cared for employeemimdmaly by

providing diversified benefits in children's education, house ownership, health security, and confenient |

3. Training programmes

In 2021, the Human Resources Management Department followed Goertek's strategy and business development requirements,
improved its alcategory, fulifield and wholeprocess talent training system, carried out diversified iegrand training activities,
strengthened the construction of a learning organization and promoted organizational performance. Along with the barsmess ref
after a year of construction of the training system and intensive cultivation of the projé&antipany further improved the training
organization, operation and management system for all staffs covering cadres, technical personnel, professionals and new
employees ,Wing Projeof Goertek, thus helping the Company to achieve business objectives.

In 2022, the Company will focus on building a global training management center and further reforming talent training mode.
The Company will increase investment in the strengthening of talents training capacity, policy management, training developme
and resurce management and make substantial breakthroughs in teacher recruitment, curriculum management, ergkaéeghtion
knowledge management, informatization and digitalization of training and so on, so as to helping the Company to bee@mie a lead
the @nstruction of leadership college, engineering college, new employee training college and professional development college.

That 6s how the Company achieves its cultural concepedbyf dAwe

technology.

4. Labor outsourcing

I Applicable & Not applicable

X. Profit Distribution and Conversion of Capital Reserves into Share Capital

Formulation, execution or adjustment of profit distribution policy, especially the cash dividend during the Bépatod

4 Applicable T Not applicable

The Company has strictly implemented ®leareholder Return Plan for the Next Three Y€af192021), and clarifies the
standard, ratio, and the decision making procedures of the distribution policy, which emsw@stinuity and stability of the profit
distribution policy, in order to fully protect the legitimate rights and interests of minority investors. In addition,niparyohas
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conducted share repurchase in 2021. In accordance with the requirent@oitsmfy Law Rules Governing the Listing of Shares on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange and Implementation Rules of Shenzhen Stock Exchange on the Share Repurchase of ListedleCompanies
shares repurchased can be regarded as the amount of cash dividends and shkitiée in the relevant calculation of cash

dividends proportion of the year.

Special description of the cash dividend policy

Whether in compliance with provisions in the Articles of Association or requiremerY
es
the resolution of the extraordinary gesemeeting of shareholders:

Whether the dividend standard and the proportion are definite and clear: Yes

Whether the related decisionaking procedures and mechanisms are complete:  |Yes

Whether independent directors perform their duties resporegilolylay their due rolegYes

Whether minority shareholders have the opportunity to fully express their opinionsY
es
demands and their legitimate rights and interests are fully protected:

Whether the conditions and procedures are transparent antyaaitipregulations The cash dividend policy has not been
while the cash dividend policy is adjusted or changed: adjusted.

The profits of Goertek in the Reporting Period and the parent company's profits distributable to shareholders areupdiséive, b
Company did not put forward a proposed plan for cash dividend distribution.

I Applicable & Not applicable

Profit distribution and conversion of capital reserves into share capital during the reporting period.

4 Applicable 1T Not applicable

Number of bonushares per 10 shares 0
Dividend per 10 shares (RMB) (tax inclusive) 2.00
Conversion of capital reserves into share capital per 0
shares (shares)

Shares base of the distribution proposal(shares) 3,342,055,58
Cash dividend amount (RMB) (téeclusive) 668,411,117.0

Cash dividend amount distributed by other means (s
1,999,998,595.6
as shares repurchase) (RMB)

Total cash dividends (including other means) (RMB) 2,668,409,712.6

Distributable profit (RMB) 15,372,823,358 .4

Proportion étotal cash dividends (including other 100%
q
means) in total profit distribution

Cash dividends

If the Company is in developing stage, and there are major capital expenditure arrangements, the minimum proport

dividends in profit distribution should reach 20%.

Detailed description of the proposal for profit distribution or capitalizetiom capital reserve funds

According to the standard unqualified opinion audit report issued by ZHONGXI CPAs (Special General Partnership) fo
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the parent company reports a net profit of RMB 758,580,163.40 in 2021, net distributable profit dftRMB,290,148.25 at t
end of 2021, and the balance of capital reserves of RMB 7,706,634,091.21. The net distributable profit in the conslalit]
sheet is RMB 15,372,823,358.48. The profit distribution in 2021 is as follows: based on theamatagital registered on {
record date of equity distribution minus the repurchased shares in the Company's special repurchase account, the C
distribute cash dividend of RMB 2.00 (tax inclusive) for per 10 shares to all the shareholdeed, @s Ovbonus shares (

inclusive), and there is no conversion of capital reserves into share capital.

XI. Equity Incentive Plan, Employee Stock Ownership Plan or Other Employee Incentives

4 Applicable I Not applicable
1. Equity incentive
Stock Option Incentive Plan in 2021 (hereinafter referredfodse | ncehti ve Pl ano

On April 16, 2021, Goertek convened the 19th meeting of the 5th Board of Directors, which agtnawveshl of 2021 Stock
Option Incentive Plan of Goertek Inc. (Draéthd the SummaryRroposal of Rules on the Implementation and Assessment of 2021
Stock Option Incentive PlaandProposal of Requesting the General Meeting of Shareholders to Authorize the Board of Directors to
Handle Matters Relevant to 2021 Stock Opfiocentive Plan The 14th meeting of the 5th Board of Supervisors approved relevant
proposals, reviewed the list of participants awarded for the first time, and expressed the review opinions. Indepetutenifdirec
Company expressed their agreed apis on the Incentive Plan independently.

On April 17, 2021, Goertek disclosed thist of Participants Awarded for the First Time of the Incentive Plarthe website
http//:www.cninfo.com.cn. The Company publicized the names and positions of thesipgadiérom April 20 to April 29, 2021.
During the publicity period, the Supervisors did not receive any objections, and no feedback was recorded. On April tB@, 2021,
Company disclosed thHeesult of Review by the Board of Supervisors on the List atipartts Awarded for the First Time of 2021
Share Option Incentive Pla®n May 8, 2021, the Company discloselifexamination Report on the Trading of Shares by Insiders
of the 2021 Share Option Incentive Plan

On May 7, 2021, the proposals mentionedvabaere approved on the annual general meeting of 2020. The Board of Directors
were authorized to handle relevant matters regarding the Incentive Plan.

On June 2, 2021, Goertek convened the 21st meeting of the 5th Board of Directors and the 16th nibetisidy doard of
SupervisorsProposal of the Adjustment of Participants Awarded for the First Time of the 2021 Share Option Incentive Plan,
Number of Stock Options and Exercise Priaad theProposal of Resolution of Grant Stock Options to the Partidpaere
approved. The Board of Supervisors expressed the results of review on the list of incentive participant. Independesit Director
expressed their agreed opinions on relevant matters independently. Beijing Tian Yuan Law Firm idsegal Dpinionf Beijing

Tian Yuan Law Firm on Relevant Matters Regarding the Adjustment and First Grant of the 2021 Share Option Incentive Plan.
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On June 24, 2021, Goertek completed the registration of the 2021 Incentive Plan.

Stock options granted to Directors and semianagement
I Applicable & Not applicabl e

The Appraisal and incentive mechanism for senior management

The remuneration plan of directors and supervisors of the company shall be formulated by the remuneration and assessment
committee of the Board of Dickors, which shall be approved by the Board of Directors and submitted to the general meeting of
shareholders for approval before implementation. The remuneration standard for senior management shall be formulated by the

remuneration and assessment conegjtand implemented after approval by the Board of Directors.

2. Implementation of employee stock ownership plan

4 Applicable T Not applicable

All valid employee stock ownership plans during the reporting period

- Shareholding
Participants Number Total shares held | Changes Source of funds
percentage

Goertek Home No. 3 ESOP: part
Directors, Supervisors, senior

management, key management 1,60(0 1,349,60 None 0.04%selfraised
personnel, and key business

personnel

Goertek Home No. 4 ESOP:
Directors(excluding Independent
Directors), Supervisors, senior
4,000 20,539,68¢ None 0.60%n.a.
management, key management
personnel and key business

personnel

Goertek Home No. 5 ESOP:
Directors (excluding Independent
Directors), Supervisors, senior ]
25| 11,000,00 None 0.32%selfraised
managemenkey management
personnel and key business

personnel

Total shares held of Directors, Supervisors and senior management in ESOPs during the reporting period

Number of shares held

Number of shares hell the end of the reportin
» . Shareholding

Name Position at the beginning of th period

percentage

reporting period at the beginning of the

reporting period
Duan Huilu, Feng Jianliang,Directors, 8,036,55] 3,289,00 0.10%
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Xu Xiaofeng, Wei Wenbin, |Supervisors, senior
Gao Xiaoguang, Liu Chunfgmanagement
Jiang Hongzhg
Feng Pagbo, Yu Dachao,
Yoshinaga Kazuyoshi, Li
Yongzhi, Li Youbo, Zhu
Shengbo

Changes of Asset Management Agency during the reporting period

I Applicable a Not applicable
Changes irshareholders' equity caused by shares disposal of ttiggents and other reasons during the reporting period

4 Applicable I Not applicable

During the reporting period, the Goertek Home No. 3 ESOP, and Home No. 4 ESOP after the expiration olih@doadd,
sold part of shares in accordance with relevant regulations. By the end of the reporting period, Goertek's Home No. Bl ESOP he
1.3496million shares, shareholding percentage was 0.04%, while the Home No. 4 ESOP held 20.5397 million shares, shareholding
percentage was 0.60%. The Home No. 5 ESOP held 11 million shares, shareholding percentage was 0.32%.
Exercise of shareholders' rightsriohg the reporting period

During the reporting period, the ESOPs exercised the shareholders' rights to participate in cash dividend of 2020,t but did no
participate in voting of the general meeting of shareholders or exercise other shareholders' rights.

Other relevant situations and descriptions related to ESOPs during the reporting period

I Applicable & Not applicable

Changes in members of the Management Committee of the ESOPs

I Applicable & Not applicable

Financial impacts of the ESOPs during taporting period and relevant accounting treatment

4 Applicable T Not applicable

In accordance with théccounting Standard for Business Enterprises No.Bharebased Paymentsf an equitysettled
sharebased payment in exchange for services receirat £mployees could not exercise until the completion of services for a
vesting period, or until the achievement of a specified performance condition, Goertek at each balance sheet datevdstiimg the
period recognizes the services received for theeatiperiod as related costs or expenses, and capital reserve, at amount equal to the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date, based on the best estimate of the number of equity instrumethts expect
exercise. The expenses amortizationtted Goertek Home No. 4 ESOP and the Goertek Home No. 5 ESOP in 2021 is RMB

422.8195 million and RMB 111.0332 million respectively, which is recognized as related expenses and capital reserve.

Termination of ESOP during the reporting period
I Appl i otagplicable d N
Explanation on Other Matters

None
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3. Other employee incentive measures

I Applicable & Not applicabl e

X1 1. Construction and i mplementation of the
Reporting Period

1. Construction and implementatio of internal control

During the reporting period, in order to ensure the development of business activities and the realization of Goetgk's strat
goals, Goertek attached great importance to the construction of internal control system. We gistdblifzerl a basic compliance,
sound and effective internal control system covering all aspects of operation and management in accordance with thedndustry
asset structure characteristics.

(2) Internal supervision

The Company has established théernal Audit Systemand has set up an independent internal audit department, which is
responsible for internal audit work, the audit and efficiency supervision of financial revenue, expenditure, the implenténtati
financi al system, reghl&ion€ dhamnemay dudit departmensalsa responsible for making proposals on the
improvement of the Company's internal control system.

Under the direct leadership of the Audit Committee, the audit department independently carries out interreaidaudit
supervisioh supervising the operation and management, financial condition and internal control implementation of the Company
and its subsidiaries. Besides, the audit department issues independent audit opinions, and reguladymepeniessand working
plans to the Audit Committee.

(2) Risk assessment

In combination with characteristics of the industry and actual operating status, the Company timely assesses internal and
external risks such as environmental risk, business risk and finaiskialveighs the risk and return according to the results of risk
analysis and risk tolerance, determines strategies, and practically makes the risk controllable.

(3) Control activities

The Company constantly implements the workings of internal contrallikinds of business processes, conducts various
internal controls, avoids the mere formality of internal policies and regulations, and improves the effectiveness ansssafundne
internal control.

(4) Information disclosure

The Company formulated tHaformation Disclosure Policythe Accountability System Regarding Major Errors in Amaual

Report Information Disclosure and the Policy on Management of the Personnel with Inside Informatonding to the
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requirements of relevant laws and regulaiaimePolicy on Management of the Personnel with Inside Informdtambeen revised
in time, which has detailed the scope of inside information and related personnel, and the administrative measureation cggistr
personnel with inside information imaterial matters. The Company's information disclosure in 2021 complied with the relevant

laws and regulations of the regulatory authorities and the provisions of therabatiened control system.

2. Details of material defects of internal control detded during the Reporting Period

XIll. Management and controls of subsidiaries during the Reporting Period
Not applicable
XIV. Self-assessment Report on Internal Control or Audit Report on Internal Control

1. Selfassessment on internal control

Disclosure date of the Internal
March 30, 2022
Control Selfassessment Report

Disclosure index of the Internal ] )
Disclosed on www.cninfo.com.cn on March 30, 2022
Control Selfassessment Report

Proportion of the total assets of

entities included in thassessment
scope to the total assets of the 100.009
Companyé6s conso

statements

Proportion of the total revenue of
entities included in the assessme
scope to the total revenue of the 100.009

Companyo6s conso

statements
Defect Identification Standard
Category Financial report Nonfinancial report
The qualitative standard of the assessment of inte| The qualitative standard of the
control defects in financial reporting are as follows assessment of internal control defect
) ) o ) ) nonfinancial reporting determined by
Signs of material defects in financi@porting
o o . Goertek are as follows: The
Qualitative criteria include:
identification of defects in noefinancial
(1) Fraud of directors, supervisors and senior . i i
report is mainly determined by the
management on the financial report; . i
impact of defects on the effectiveneds
(2) Corrections of previously disclosed financial business processes and the possibilit
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reports;

(3) Material misstatement of current period financi
statements identified by certified pubdiccountant
but not identified by

(4) Ineffective supervision on the financial stateme
by the audit committee and the internal audit

department.

Signs of important defects in financial reporting
include:

(1) Failure to skect and apply accounting policies i
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles;

(2) No antifraud procedures and control measures
have been established;

(3) No corresponding control mechanism has bee
established or implemented for the aseting
treatment of unconventional or special transaction
and there is no corresponding compensatory cont|
(4) One or more defects is or are existing in the
control of the financial reporting process, that the
prepared financial statements cannotésesonably
guaranteed to be true and complete.

General defects: other internal control defects.

occurrence. If the possibility of defect]
occurrence is low, and the defect will
reduce the efficiency and effectivenes
of work, or increase the uncertainty o
the effectiveness, or make it deviate
from the exgcted goal, it is a general
defect. If the possibility of defect
occurrence is relatively high, and the
defect will significantly reduce the
efficiency or effectiveness of work, or
significantly increase the uncertainty
the effectiveness, or make it
significantly deviate from the expecte
goal, it is an important defect. If the
possibility of defect occurrence is hig
and the defect will seriously reduce tl
efficiency or effectiveness of work, or
seriously increase the uncertainty of {
effectivenessor make it seriously
deviate from the expected goal, it is g
material defect

Quantitative criteria

The quantitative standard of the assessment of in{
control defects in financial reporting are as follows
(1) If one of the following conditions is meat may be

recognized as a material defect:

Item Impact of defects

Potential , )
] O 5 %, wi th an
misstatement] o
10 million

of total profit

Potential

misstatement|
O 1%
of total

assets

Potential
misstatement| O 1 %

of revenue

(2) If one of thefollowing conditions is met, it may K
recognized as an important defect:

Item Impact of defects

The quantitative standard of the

assessment of internal control defect
nonfinancial reporting is in accordand
with the quantitative standard of defe

in financial reporting.
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Potential
misstatement

of total profit

3%0Omi sstat emen

Potential
misstatement
of total assets

0.50mi sstat eme

Potential
misstatement

of revenue

0.50mi sstat eme

(3) If one of the following conditions is met, it may

recognized as a minor defect:

Item

Impact of defects

Potential
misstatement

of total profit

<3% of total profit

Potential
misstatement
of total assets

<0.5% of total assets

Potential
misstatement

of revenue

<0.5% of totalrevenues

Number ofmaterial defects in

0
financial reporting
Number of material defects in 0
nonfinancial reporting
Number of important defects in 0
financial reporting
Number of important defects in 0

nonfinancial reporting

2. Audit Report on internal control

I Applicable a

Not applicabl e

Audit Opinion in Audit Report on Internal Control

In our opinion, the Company has maintained effective internal control of financial reports in accordanceBéatidifrules for

Internal Control of Enterpriseas of 31 December 2021.

Disclosure of the Audit Report on

Internal Control

Disclosed

Disclosure date of the Audit Repg

March 30, 2022
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on Internal Control

Disclosure index of the Audit )
www.cninfo.com.cn, March 30, 2022

Report on Internal Control

Typeof internal control audit repo| » o
standard unqualified opinion

opinions

Material defects found in
No

nonfinancial reporting

Whether the Auditor set out the Audit Report on internal control with any opinions aftandardization

I Yes & No

Whether he Audit Report on internal control is consistent with the-8etessment Report on internal control opinion.

4 Yes I No

XV. Rectification of Problems lIdentified by Selfexamination in the Special Actions on
Governance of Listed Companies

Not applicable
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Section V Environmental and social responsibilities

|. Major Environmental Issues

Whether the listed company or its subsidiaries are entities with pollutant discharges announced by local environmeiatal protec

authorities
& YeNo |
Type of
yp' . Enforced
major Locations | Concentrat Total .
Name of thg¢ Number of standards @  Total Discharge
pollutants| Type of | _ ) of on of ) approved )
Company 0 ) discharging ) pollutant | discharge | exceeding
~_ |and name ¢ discharge discharging pollutant ) discharge
subsidiarie ) ports ) concentrab| volume the standar
particular ports discharged volume
n
pollutants
Hazardous |Indirect Not Not Not Not Not Not
Goertek Inc ] ) ] ] ] ] ] None
waste discharge |applicable |applicable |applicable |applicable |applicable |applicable
Vil COD: COD: COD: COD:
ili
o COD; ) 50mg/L; |[500mg/L; |8.523t/a; |23.189t/a;
Precision ) Intermittent ) ) ) )
ammonia | _ 1 In the plantjammonia |ammonia |ammonia |ammonia [None
Manufactur| discharge ] ) ) ]
nitrogen nitrogen: |nitrogen: |nitrogen: |nitrogen:
ng Co., Ltd.
5mg/L 45mg/L 0.168t/a  |2.3389t/a

Construction and operation of pollution prevention facilities

In accordance with The Environmental Impact Assessment and Approval, the Company establishes supporting measures for
solid waste storage, disposal and comprehensive utilization, along with leakage prevention and seepage preventionndeasures, a
ensures theormal operation of all above measures.

In accordance with The Environmental Impact Assessment and Approval, Yili Precision Manufacturing Co., Ltd. constructs
supporting treatment facilities for water and gas waste. Takes measures of noise reductimesmetiwage, disposal and
comprehensive utilization of solid waste, and leakage and seepage prevention, and ensures the normal operation of all above

measures.
Environmental impact assessment of construction projects and other administrative licemsesdomental protection

The construction projects of Goertek Inc. have obtained The Environmental Impact Assessment and Approval from the
High-tech Branch of Weifang Municipal Ecology and Environment Bureau in accordance with the regulations, andaliraa@ ob
environmental protection acceptance opinions accordingh® Interim Measures for Environmental Protection Acceptance of

Construction Project Completion
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The construction projects of Yili Precision Manufacturing Co., Ltd. have obtained The Enemairmpact Assessment and
Approval from the Angiu Branch of Weifang Municipal Ecology and Environment Bureau in accordance with the regulations, and
have obtained environmental protection acceptance opinions according timt@he Measures for Environemtal Protection

Acceptance of Construction Project Completion
Emergency response plan for unexpected environmental events

In view of various risk factors, combined willhe National Environmental Emergency Response BtatiThe Guidelines to
Develop Emeagency Response Plan for Environmental Pollution Accidébdertek has formulated The Environmental Emergency
Response Plan, and has reported the plan to theteibghBranch of Weifang Municipal Ecology and Environment Bureau for
recording (No. 3707082021-079L). Goertek also organizes relevant training and drills on a regular basis, in order to improve the
emergency response ability of employees and achieve continuous improvement.

In view of various risk factors, Yili Precision Manufacturing Co., Ltder® to theNational Environmental Emergency Plan
and Guidelines to Develop Emergency Response Plan for Environmental Polhg@dents, formulates th¥ili Environmental
Emergency Plan and puts it on record in Angiu Branch of Weifang Ecological Enwmemt Bureau (record No.
3707842020G004H) . Rel evant training and drills are organized on a

emergency events and achieve continuous improvement.
Environmental selfnonitoring programme

The Canpany entrusts thirgarty monitoring organization to monitor the environmental factors of the plant area and issue an
inspection report every year.

The main waste water outlet of Yili Precision Manufacturing Co., Ltd. is equipped witheomonitoring guipment of COD,
ammonia nitrogen, flow rate and PH value, which is connected with the local department of environmental protectionsauthoritie
Environmental selfmonitoring of waste water, waste gas, groundwater and soil pollutants is carried oat icstirdance with the
requirements of the pollutant discharge permit, and related information is disclosed as required. Environmemtaitsetfg of
waste water, waste gas, groundwater and soil pollutants is carried out in strict accordance wijhitbments of the pollutant

discharge permit, and related information is disclosed as required.

Administrative penalties received for environmental issues during the reporting period
None

Other environmental information that should be disclosed

None

Measures taken to reduce carbon emissions during the reporting period and their effects

4 Applicable T Not applicable
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The Company took Acompliant use of energy, i mproved effic
d e v e | o asntg enérgy management policy, and implemented this policy onto its product manufacturing chain. By taking the
establishment of energy management system as a scientific management basis, the Company optimized its organizat@®nél structur
managementpiproved systems and processes, and emphasized the focus of management, so as to tap the potential of energy saving,
actively improve the overall level of energy efficiency, and integrate emission reduction and green development taitgets into
internal oration.

The Company strived to promote clean energy application, increased the proportion of green energy in all energy sources,
introduced distributed photovoltaic power generation and solar heat collection projects, and successfully achieved the annual
emission reduction of 32,993tCO2e. It also conducted ersrgygoriented technological transformation to improve equipment
energy efficiency, applied energaving technologies such as vacuum pump, frequency conversion, automatic control and so on. An

annual emission reduction of 25,492tCO2e has been reached.

Other information related to environmental protection

None
Il. Performance of Social Responsibility

During the reporting period, while the Company was committed to achieving its own developmantlgo performed well in
the protection of the rights and interests of shareholders, creditors, employees, suppliers, customers and consumassijnas well
environmental protection and sustainable development, public relations and social public wvelfatakings. For details, see the
Corporate Social responsibility Report of 2021 released on "www.cninfo.com.cn" on March 30, 2022. For detail apothe

Social responsibility Report of 202é&leased on "www.cninfo.com.cn" on March 30, 2022.

lll. Consolidate and Carry Forward the Achievements of Poverty Alleviation and Rural
Revitalization

The Company has always responded positively to relevant calls of the authorities at all levels on targeted poverty,alleviatio
such asThe Poverty AlleviatiofPlan for the 13th Fiverear Plan Period (201:2020)issued by the State Council. In addition, the
Company has carried out tailored accurate poverty alleviation efforts accordihg ircular on Information Disclosure of Poverty
Alleviation Work of Listé Companiesssued by Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and implements relevant arrangements and requirements
of The Opinions of the China Securities Regulatory Commission on Giving Full Play to the Role of the Capital Market to Serve the
National Poverty Alleviatin Strategy.

In September, 2020, the Company renewéa Agricultural and Sideline Products Purchasing Agreement with the Angiu
Bangquan Fruit and Vegetable Planting Professional Cooperafite Company will purchase products from tlemerative and
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keep the price from fluctuation to reduce the production and operation risk of poor households, and ensure that thamemmoapit
of registered poor households will increase by no less than RMB 2,000 each year. The support durbamovidss than 2 years,

and the agreements could be renewed.
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Section VI Important Matters

[. Fulfilment of Commitments

1. The commitments of the Company's actual controllers, shareholders, related parties, purchasers and companies that haven lmeenpletely fulfilled
during the reporting period or remain valid by the end of the reporting period.

4 Applicable T Not applicable
; ) Performance
. . ) i Commitmen| Commitment
Commitment matters Commitment party Commitment typg Commitment content _ ) of
time period )
comnitments
Commitments made during the sh ]
Not applicable
merger reform
Commitments made in the report ¢
acquisition or in the report of equit|Not applicable
changes
Commitments made during asset )
) Not applicable
restructuring
) ) Mr. Jiang Bin and Mr. Jiang Long promise that the
Mr. Jiang Bin, the actual . .
) ) Company shares transferred each year during their { ]
controller, and Mr. Jiang long|Commitment to ) October 8, |Longterm Strictly
) will not exceed 25% of the total company shares helq ] )
shareholder and the related |restricted stock . . |2007 standing fulfilled
Commitmentsnade during initial them, and the shares will not be transferred within si
party of the actual controller ) ] o
public offering or refinancing months after their resignation in future
Mr. Jiang Bin and Ms. Hu Horizontal At present, there is nampetition between the main .
October 8, |Longterm Strictly
Shuangmei, the actual competition businesses of Goertek Inc. and the commitment part ) .
2007 standing fulfilled
controllers of the Company, |related (company and persons) in this clause or other entitig
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Goertek Group Co., Ltd and
Mr. Jiang Long, the
shareholders who hold more

than 5% of the Company sha

commitment

controlled by the commitment parties (company and
persons). In future, in order to fundamentally avoid tl
possibilityof competing with Goertek Inc., the
commitment parties (company and persons) promise
follows: 1) The commitment parties (company and
persons) will not engage in the same or similar busir
as Goertek Inc. in order to avoid direct or indirect
competitian to the production and operation of Goertg
Inc. Efforts will be made to urge other entities contro
by the commitment parties (company and persons) r
directly or indirectly participate in or carry out any
business activity that compete with theguction and
operation of Goertek Inc. 2) If the commitment partie
(company and persons) and the other entities contrg
by the commitment parties (company and persons)
except Goertek Inc., have competitive businesses of
same kind with Goertek Incwhich may bring unfair
impacts on Goertek Inc. in terms of market share,
business opportunities and resource allocation, etc. |
commitment parties (company and persons) and oth
entities controlled by the commitment parties (compa
and persons) excefsoertek Inc. will voluntarily give u
business competition with Goertek Inc. 3) The
commitment parties (company and persons) underta
give Goertek Inc. the premption right on the purchasi
of any assets and business to be sold, and will do its
to ensure that the price of the transaction is determir
on the basis of fair, reasonable and normal commerc

transactions with independent third parties. 4) The

commitment parties (company and persons) will not
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restricted from engaging in or conting to engage in

existing production business, in particular to provide
Goertek Inc. with relevant materials and services ne
for its operation. Since the date of issuance of this le
of commitment, the commitment parties (company ai
persons) undeaike to indemnify Goertek Inc. for any

loss or expense suffered or incurred in violation of af

of the terms of this commitment.

Controlling shareholder

Other

commitments

1. In addition to setting guarantee for the ngoublic
offering of the exchangeabl®nds, the stocks to be
exchanged shall not be subject to other restrictions s
as freeze by judicial domicile before the bond issue.
restriction is imposed on the sale of shares prepared
exchange when entering the stock exchange period,
the transfer of this part of shares does not violate thg
controlling shareholder's commitments to the Compz
investors and Shenzhen Stock Exchange. 2. The
controlling shareholder will not increase litsldings of
the Company shares within six months before and a
current holders exercise the stock exchanges. 3. Thg
controlling shareholder does not have situation stipu
in Article 6 of the Several Provisions on Shareholdin
Reduction by Shareholdg Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Executives of Listed Companies (Announcen
[2017] No. 9, CSRCM. The controlling shareholder w
not directly transfer control of Goertek Inc. to others
through the current isance of exchangeatlbends; 5.
During the stock exchange period, if there are situati

not allowed as stipulated by t&everal Provisions on

Shareholding Reduction by Sharehold®Bsectors,

Januay 11,
2021

From the
issuance date
of the
commitment tg
the completion
of current
non-public
offering of
exchangeable

bonds

The 2021
Goertek
Exchangeabl
Bonds was
delisted on
January 17,
2022, thus th
commitment
has been
completely
fulfilled
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Supervisors and Senior Executives of Listed Compa
and the Implementing Rules of the Shen8tenk
Exchange for the Sale of Shares by Shareholders
Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management of Lj
Companiesthe controlling shareholder undertakes tg
suspend the application for share exchange until relg

circumstances are eliminated.

Stock option incentive plan of 2021: The Company
undertakes not to provide loans or any other form of

From the
issuance date
of the
commitment tg

the completion

_ ) ) Others ) ) ) o ) April 16, Strictly
Equity incentive commitments The Company ] financial assistance to any participants to obtain rele of the )
commitments . ) o . . ) 2021 ) _ |fulfilled
rights and interests under this incentplan, including implementatio
guarantee for their loans of the stock
option
incentive plan
of 2021
Goertek
From the Convertible
issuance date [Bond No.2
) ) o ) of the was delisted
) Commitment of |Commitment of profit dilution counteneasures in .
Controlling shareholders and September |commitment tgon March 11,

Other commitments made to

minority shareholders

profit dilution

accordance with relevant regulations of China Secur

actual controller o 10, 2019 |the completn |2021, thus th
countermeasures|Regulatory Commission ]
of the commitment
convertible has been
bonds completely
fulfilled
Directors and senior Commitment of |Commitment of profit dilution countemeasures in September |From the Goertek
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management

profit dilution

countermeasures

accordance with relevant regulations of China Secur,

Regulatory Commission

10, 2019

issuance date
of the
commitment tg
the completn
of the
convertible

bonds

Convertible
Bond No.2
was delisted
on March 11,
2021, thus th
commitment
has been
completely
fulfilled

From March 5, 2020 to the end of the use of the func
raised from convertible bonds issuing or within 36
months aftethe funds raised are in place, the Compg

From March 5
2020 to the en
of the use of

funds raised o

Others will no longer increase the funds usage in financial |March 5, o Strictly
The Company ] ) ] ) o ] within 36 )
commitments business (including capital investment, borrowing, [2022 fulfilled
o months after
guarantee and other forms of capital investment). Th
) ] ) ] the funds
Company will not use the funds raised directly or in . ]
o ] ) ) raised are in
disguise for financial business
place
) During the All raised
The Company promises not to carry out venture cap . )
] ) ) . time period of |funds have
investment during the period of temporary liquidity
. ) ) temporary been returne
replenishment with raised funds, and undertakes to | o
] ] S liquidity on Novembe
these raised funds during temporary liquidity )
Others ) ] ] November 5|replenishment|3, 2021, thus
The Company ] replenishment only for production and operatielated ) )
commitments ) ) ) 2020 with raised the
to the main business. The Company shall not directly ] )
o ] o funds starting [commitment
indirectly use raised funds for the Subscription or
] from has been
placement of stocks, or for the trading of stocks and
o ) November 5, |completely
derivatives, convertible bonds, etc. )
2020 fulfilled
The Company Others The Conpany promises not to carry out venture capilNovember 8 During the Strictly
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commitments

investment during the period of temporary liquidity
replenishment with raised funds, and undertakes to {
these raised funds during temporary liquidity
replenishment only for production and operation rela|
to the main business. The Company shall not directly
indirectly use raised funds for the Subscription or
placement of stocks, or for the trading of stocks and

derivatives, convertible bonds, etc.

2021

time period of
temporary
liquidity
replenishment
with raised
funds starting
from
November 8,
2021

fulfilled

Directors and senior

management

Commitment to

restricted stock

The directors and senior management of the Compa
promise not to reduce their holdingscompany shares
within 6 months from November 18, 2020, not to eng
in insider trading or shogwing trading, and not to buy

or sell company stocks during sensitive time periods

November
17, 2020

In the next six
consecutive
months from
November 18,
2020

Completely

fulfilled on

May 17, 2021

The Company, actual controll

of the Company

Horizontal
competition
related

commitment

1. The commitment parties (company and persons) ¢
committed, during the time period of being the
controlling shareholders or actual controller of Goert
Microelectronics Co., Ltd. (hereafter referred to as
ifGoermicroo), to maksng
holding subsidiaries and branches) the only compan
engaged in the R&D, production and sales of MEMS
devices and micrgystem modules, among all entities
controlled by the commitment parties (company and
persons) 2. During the time period when the
commitment parties (company and persons) are the
controlling shareholder or actual controller of
Goermicrd the commitment parties (company and
persons) undertake that after the completion of the
spin-off of Goermicro, all reasonable efforts will be

made to enserthat, except Goermicro and its holding

November 8|
2021

During the
period that the
Company and
the actual
controller of
the Company
act as the
controlling
shareholder or
actual
controller of

Goermicro

Strictly
fulfilled
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subsidiaries, the Company and other enterprises
(hereafter referred to
controlled by the commitment parties (company and
persons) will not engage in business that has signifig
adverseampact to the main business of Goermicro an
subsidiaries. 3. The commitment parties (company a
persons) will supervise and restrict the business acti
of the affiliated enterprises. After the completion of th
spinoff, if any future businesspportunities obtained b
the Company and/or affiliated enterprises from any tl
party that competes with the main business of Goerr
and/or its holding subsidiaries, the Company and/or
affiliated enterprises shall immediately notify Goermi
and malk every effort to facilitate the acquisition of st
business opportunities by Goermicro and/or its holdi
subsidiaries, or to take other measures conducive to
avoiding and resolving horizontal competition. 4. The
commitment parties (company and persamsgjertakes
that no advantage of its (their) status of being the
controlling shareholder (actual controller) will be take
to engage in or participate in acts that harm the inter
of Goermicro and / or other shareholders (especially
minority shareholdejsThe commitment parties
(company and persons) will not use the information
learned or known from Goermicro and/or its holding
subsidiaries to assist any third party to engage in
business activities that have a significant adverse im
on the main bus#ss of Goermicro and/or its holding
subsidiaries. 5. If, in the course of actual

implementation, the commitment parties (company a
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persons) violates the above commitments, the
commitment parties (company and persons) will
compensate Goermicro and/orfisiding subsidiaries
with the benefits and gains obtained from the transa
If the violation of the above commitments causes
economic losses to Goermicro and/or its holding
subsidiaries, the commitment parties (company and
persons) will bear the corgsnding liability of

compensation in accordance with laws

1. After the completion of the spff of Goermicro, the
commitment parties (company and persons) will exe
and perform rights and obligations as a
micro-shareholder or agél controller of Goermicro in
good faith, fully respect the independent legal entity
status of Goermicro, and guarantee its independent
operation and decisiemaking process. 2. After the
completion of the sphoff, the commitment parties
(company and pspns) will try its best to avoid and
Commitments  |reduce affiliate transactions between Goermicro and

The Companyactual controlle - November 8|Long-term Strictly
related to affiliate|its holding subsidiaries and the commitment parties

of the Company ) 2021 standing fulfilled
transactions (company and persons) and their controlled compan
(except Goermicro and/or its holding subsidiaries,
hereafte referred to as "affiliated enterprises") . For
affiliate transactions that cannot be avoided or can b
conducted with reasonable causes, the commitment
parties (company and persons) and their affiliated
enterprises will follow the principles of fairneasd
openness. Agreements with Goermicro and/or its ho

subsidiaries will be signed in accordance with releva

laws and regulations. The approval procedures and
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information disclosure obligations in accordance with
laws and regulations, articles okasiation and other
relevant provisions will be performed corresponding.
When the meeting of board of directors and the meeg
of shareholders' of Goermicro deliberate and approv|
matters relating to affiliate transactions involving the
commitment partieccompany and persons) and
affiliated enterprises, the commitment parties (compi
and persons) will urge the directors nominated by thg
Company and its affiliates (if any) and itself to withdr|
from the relevant voting. The commitment parties
(company ad persons) undertake that the above affil
transactions will be carried out strictly and in good fa
in accordance with normal commercial conditions. TI
commitment parties (company and persons) and its
affiliated enterprises will carry out the aboaféliate
transactions at fair values and will not seek benefits
beyond such transactions from Goermicro and/or its
controlling subsidiaries. The commitment parties
(company and persons) will not harm the legitimate
rights and interests of Goermicro anfiet shareholder
through affiliate transactions. 3. After the completion
the spinoff, the commitment parties (company and
persons) and its affiliated enterprises will avoid any
illegal acts to occupy funds and assets of Goermicro
and/or its holding sudidiaries as far as possible. 4. Th
commitment parties (company and persons) will urge
affiliated enterprises to abide by the above commitm
If the commitment parties (company and persons) af

the affiliated enterprises violate the above commmitts,
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the commitment parties (company and persons) will
compensate for Goermicro and/or its holding
subsidiaries with the benefits and gains obtained frol
the transaction. If the violation of the above
commitments causes economic losses to Goermicro
and/a its holding subsidiaries, the commitment partie
(company and persons) will bear the corresponding

liability for compensation in accordance with laws

Whether the commitments are
fulfilled on time

Yes

If the commitments are not fulfilled
within the time limit, specific

reasons for the failure of complyini
and the work plan for the next stef

shall be explained in details

Not applicable

2. If the Company's assets or projects have profit forecasend the report period is still in the profit forecasting period, the Company shall make statement
on whether the assets or projects reach the original profit forecast and provide relevant reasons

I Applicable a4 Not

applicabl e

Il. Non-operational Occupatian of Funds by Controlling Shareholders and Other Related Parties to Listed Companies

I Applicable a4 Not

applicabl e

During the reporting period of the Company, there is neomerational occupation of funds by controlling shareholders or other relatis pathe Company.

[ll. External Guarantee in Violation of Regulations

I Applicable & Not

The Company has no violation of external guarantee during the reporting period.

applicabl e
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IV. Explanation of the Board of Directors on the Relevant Informationoft he Latest AQualified Audit Repor

I Applicable a4 Not applicable

V. Explanation of t hestAxcrcdairnd | AgdiFti rRé soritNbonby t he Board of Dir
Independent Directors (if Any) During the Reporting Period

I Apipcable a4 Not applicable
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VI. Explanation of changes in Accounting Policies, Accounting Estimates or Correction of
Major Accounting Errors Compared with the Financial Report of Previous Year

4 Applicable I Not applicable

1. Accounting policy changes caused by the implementation of the new accounting standards of lease
On December 7, 2018, the Ministry of Finance isstied Accounting Standards for Enterprises NolZhses (2018 Revision)
(Finance and Accounting [2018] No. 33)h er ei naf t er referred to as fAnew standard:
meeting of the 5th board of directors on March 26, 2021, the Company has implemented theatimreed new standards of lease
from January 1, 2021, and related acdmgnpolicies has been changed in accordance with the provisions of the new standards of
| ease. For detail s, see fiSection 10, Financi al Report, vV, 37
2. There is no change in accounting estimatesduhe reporting period.

3. There is no correction of major accounting errors during the reporting period.

VII. Explanation of Changes in the Scope of the Consolidated Statements Compared with
Previous Year's Financial Report

4 Applicableel Not applicabl

During the reporting period, the Company established a subsidiary company GOERTEK MICROELECTRONICS KOREA CO.,

LTD.

VIII. Appointment and Dismissal of Accounting Firms

Accounting firm currently appointed

_ o Zhongxi Certfied Public Accountants (special general
Name of the domestic accounting firm )
partnership) Co., Ltd.

Remuneration of the domestic accounting firm (RMB million 200

Consecutive audit service years of the domestic accounting 3

Name of certified public accountant of the domeaticounting ) -
i Du Yeqin, Mou Huiling
irm

Consecutive audit service years of certified public accountal ) =
Du Yeqin for 2 years and Mou Huiling for 1 year

the domestic accounting firm

Whether to reappoint accounting firm in current period
I Yes & No
Employment of internal control audit accounting firms, financial consultants or sponsors

4 Applicable T Not applicable
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Due to the demand of public issuance of convertible bonds in 2020, the Company hired China Securities Co., Ltd. as its sponso
and the sponsts representatives were Guan Feng and Huang Zhenyue. The continuous supervision period was from June 12, 2020 to
December 31, 2021. No remuneration was paid during the supervision period of 2021.

IX. Delisting After the Disclosure of Annual Report

I Applicable & Not applicabl e

X. Bankruptcy or Reorganization Related Events

I Applicable & Not applicabl e

No bankruptcy reorganization related events occurred during the reporting period.

XI. Significant Lawsuit and Arbitration Events

I Appl i capplicable d No't

No significant litigation or arbitration events occurred during the reporting period.

XII. Punishment and Rectification

I Applicable & Not applicable

No punishment and rectification occurred during the reporting period.

XIll. Integrity Issues of the Company, Controlling Shareholders and Actual Controllers
I Applicable & Not applicable

XIV. Significant Affiliated Transactions

1. Affiliated transactions related to daily operations

I Applicable & Not applicable

No significant affiliated transgions related to daily operations occurred during the reporting period.

2. Affiliated transactions involving the acquisition or sale of assets or equity

I Applicable a4 Not applicable

No significant affiliated transactions involving the acquisition or e&lssets or equity occurred during the reporting period.

3. Affiliated transactions of joint external investment

I Applicable & Not applicable

No significant affiliated transactions of joint external investment occurred during the reporting period.
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4. Affiliated transactions of credits and liabilities

I Applicable a Not applicable

No significant affiliated transactions of credits and liabilities occurred during the reporting period.

5. Business with affiliated financial company

I Applicablable a8 Not applic

There was no deposit, loan, credit granting or other financial business between the Company and the affiliated fineantyahicdmp

its related parties.
6. Business between the affiliated parties and the financial company controlled by the Company

I Applicable & Not applicable

There was no deposit, loan, credit granting or other financial business between the affiliated parties and the finaatyal comp

controlled by the Company.
7. Other significant affiliated transactions

I Applicabkabled Not appli

No other significant affiliated transactions occurred during the reporting period.
XIV. Significant Contracts and Their Executions

1. Trusteeship, contracting and leasing

(1) Trusteeship

I Applicable & Not applicable

No trusteeship occurred duritige reporting period.

(2) Contracting

I Applicable & Not applicable

No contracting occurred during the reporting period.
(3) Leasing

I Applicable & Not applicable

No significant leasing occurred during the reporting period.
2. Significant guarantees
4 Applicable T Not applicable
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Unit: RMB 10,000

External guarantee of the Company and its subsidiaries (excluding guarantees for subsidiaries)
Disclosure Whether| Whether
Name of | date of the The amoun  Actual Actual Counterg the |guarante
. Guaranteg Collaterg Guarante
guarantee¢ amount | limit of the | occurrencg amount ) uarantee . guarante¢  for
o type | (ifany)| period ) -
party |limit of the| guarantee| date guarantee (if any) is affiliated
guarantee complete| parties
Not
applicable
Total amount of externg Total amount of actual
guarantee limit approve external guarantee
during the reporting occurred during the
period (A1) reporting period (A2)
Total balance oéctual
Total amount of externg
o external guarantee
guarantee limit approve
occurred at the end of
at the end of the ) )
) ) the reporting period
reporting period (A3)
(A4)
The Company's guarantee to its subsidiaries
Disclosure Whether| Whether
Name of | date of the The amouny Actual Actual Counterg the |guarante
o Guaranteg Collaterg Guarante
guarantee¢ amount | limit of the | occurrencg amount ) uarantee _ guaranteq  for
. type | (ifany)| period : -
party |limit of the| guaranteel  date guarantee (if any) is affiliated
guarantee complete| parties
Goertek ]
. Joint
(HongKongApril 17, September o
191,271.0 6,375.7(liability lyear |Yes No
) Co., 2020 10,2020
o guarantee
Limited
Goertek ]
Joint
(HongKongMarch 27, September o
191,271.0 6,375.7(liability 1 year No No
) Co., 2021 10, 2021
o guarantee
Limited
Goertek _
) Joint
(HongKongApril 17, October 20 o
191,271.0 6,375.7(liability lyear |Yes No
) Co., 2020 2020
o guarantee
Limited
Goertek _
Joint
(HongKongMarch 27, October 20 o
191,271.0 6,375.7(liability lyear |No No
) Co., 2021 2021
o guarantee
Limited
Goertek |April 20, | 191,271.0{January 16| 72,667.04Joint 3years |No No

104



Goertek Inc. Annual Report 2021

(HongKong2019 2020 liability
) Co., guarantee
Limited
Goertek )
) Joint
(HongKong April 20, January 17 o
191,271.0 3,203.74liability 3years |No No
) Co., 2019 2020
o guarantee
Limited
Goertek )
) Joint
(HongKongApril 20, February o
191,271.0 70,132.7(liability 3years |Yes No
) Co., 2019 24,2020
o guarantee
Limited
Goertek )
) Joint
(HongKongApril 20, February o
191,271.0 45,267.4liability 3years [No No
) Co., 2019 24,2020
o guarantee
Limited
Goertek ]
) Joint
(HongKongApril 17, May 19, o
191,271.0 4,239.84liability lyear |Yes No
) Co., 2020 2020
o guarantee
Limited
Goertek ]
) Joint
(HongKongApril 17, November o
191,271.0 9,563.5%liability 6 months|Yes No
) Co., 2020 29, 2020
o guarantee
Limited
Goertek
Technology Joint
) September August 14, o
Vina 63,757.0 318.79liability lyear |Yes No
11, 2019 2020
Company guarantee
Limited
Goertek _
) Joint
(HongKongApril 17, August 20, o
191,271.0 15,939.2liability lyear |Yes No
) Co., 2020 2020
o guarantee
Limited
Goertek )
Joint
(HongKongMarch 27, August 20, o
191,271.0 15,939.21liability 1 year No No
) Co., 2021 2021
o guarantee
Limited
Goertek
Technology Joint
September September o
Vina 63,757.0 6,056.91liability lyear |Yes No
11, 2019 24,2020
Company guarantee
Limited
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Goertek Joint
August 22, September o
Technology 80,000.0 39,682.9]liability 8 years |Yes No
2018 20, 2018
Co., Ltd. guarantee
Goertek
Technology Joint
March 27, August 16, o
Vina 191,271.0 19,127 .1(liability lyear |Yes No
2021 2021
Company guarantee
Limited
Goertek
Technology Joint
January 18 June 10, L
Vina 45,000.0 2,689.31liability lyear |Yes No
2020 2020
Company guarantee
Limited
Goertek
Technology Joint
July 10, December o
Vina 84,000.0 862.4liability lyear |Yes No
2020 1, 2020
Company guarantee
Limited
Goertek
Technology Joint
March 27, August 1, o
Vina 156,500.0 1,434.2]liability lyear |No No
2021 2021
Company guarantee
Limited
Goertek
Technology Joint
March 27, June 6, o
Vina 156,500.0 1,391.1]liability lyear |No No
2021 2021
Company guarantee
Limited
Goertek
Technology Joint
March 27, June 6, o
Vina 156,500.0 193.1§liability lyear |No No
2021 2021
Company guarantee
Limited
Goertek
Technology Joint
January 18 February o
Vina 45,000.0 28,390.0(liability lyear |Yes No
2020 21, 2020
Company guarantee
Limited
Goertek .
Joint
TechnologyMarch 27, July 30, o
156,500.0 25,928.34liability lyear |No No
Vina 2021 2021
guarantee
Company
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Limited
Goertek
Technology Joint
January 18 August 27, o
Vina 45,000.0 270.24liability lyear |Yes No
2020 2020
Company guarantee
Limited
Goertek
Technology Joint
July 10, August 20, o
Vina 84,000.0 1,748.5]liability lyear |Yes No
2020 2020
Company guarantee
Limited
Goertek
Technology Joint
March 27, October 18 o
Vina 156,500.0 3,595.54liability lyear |No No
2021 2021
Company guarantee
Limited
Goertek
Technology Joint
March 27, June 29, o
Vina 156,500.0 6,216.41liability lyear |No No
2021 2021
Company guarantee
Limited
Weifang
Goertek Joint
) January 18 March 2, o
Microelectr 4,000.0( 882.94liability lyear |Yes No
) 2020 2020
onics Co., guarantee
Ltd.
Weifang
Goertek Joint
] January 18 March 10, o
Microelectr 4,000.0( 138.75liability lyear |Yes No
) 2020 2020
onics Co., guarantee
Ltd.
Weifang
Goertek Joint
) March 27, March 27, o
Microelectr 650.00 11.0Qliability lyear |No No
) 2021 2021
onics Co., guarantee
Ltd.
Goertek Joint
) July 10, November o
Microelectr 32,000.0 26.34liability lyear |Yes No
) 2020 19, 2020
onics Inc. guarantee
Goertek |March 27, November Joint
2,640.0( 47.93 lyear |No No
Microelectr|2021 19, 2021 liability
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onics Inc. guarantee
Goertek )

) Joint
Intelligence/March 27, June 10, o

1,500.0( 196.24liability lyear |No No
Technology 2021 2021
guarantee

Co., Ltd.

Total amount of
o Total amount of actual
guarantee limit to ]
o guarantee to subsidiari
subsidiaries approved 1,080,040. ) 401,664.1
) ) occurred during the
during the reporting

reporting period (B2
period(B1) P 9P (B2)

Total amount of
o Total balance of actual
guarantee limit to ]
- guarantee to subsidiari
subsidiaries approved 1,271,311 188,842.9
) occurred at the end of
the end of the reporting . .
the reporting period (B4

period (B3)
The guarantee of subsidiaries to subsidiaries
Disclosure Whether| Whether
Name of | date of theg The amouny  Actual Actual Counterg the |guarante
o Guaranteg Collaterg Guarante
guarantee¢ amount | limit of the | occurrencg amount ) uarantee _ guaranteq  for
o type | (ifany)| period ) -
party |limit of the| guaranteel  date guarantee (if any) is affiliated
guarantee complete| parties
Not
applicable

Total amount of
o Total amount of actual
guarantee limit to ]
- guarantee to subsidiari
subsidiaries approved i
_ ) occurred during the
during the reporting

reporting period (C2
period (C1) & A (C2)

Total amount of
o Total balance of actual
guarantee limit to ]
o guarantee to subsidiari
subsidiaries approved
. occurred at the end of
the end of the reporting ) )
the reporting period (C

period (C3)
Total amount of company guarantee (namely the sum gfrth@ousthree items)

Total amount of actual
Total amount of guarantee limi external guarantee
approved during the reporting 1,080,040.{occurred during the 401,664.1
period (A1+B1+C1) reporting period

(A2+B2+C2)
Total amount of external Total balance of actual

1,271,311. 188,842.9

guarantee limit approved at th external guarantee
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end of the reporting period occurred at the end of
(A3+B3+C3) the reporting period
(A4+B4+C4)

The proportion of the total amount of actual
guarantee (i.e. Ad+B4+C4) to the net assets of

Company

6.91%

Including:

Balance of guarantedsr shareholders, actual
controllers and their affiliate parties (D)

Debt guarantee balance provided directly or
indirectly to the guaranteed parties with an
assefliability ratio of more than 70% (E)

188,784.0

Amount of total guarantees exceeding 50Pfet

assets (F)

Total amount of the above three kinds of
guarantees (D+E+F)

188,784.0

Explanation of unexpired guarantee contracts {
have occurred liabilities during the reporting N

one
period or where there is evidence that they ma

bear possible joirdnd several liabilities (if any)

Description of external guarantees provided in N
one
violation of prescribed procedures (if any)

Specific description of complex guarantees

None

3. Management trust of cash assets

(1) Entrusted financial investment

I Applicable & Not applicable

No entrusted financial management occurred during the reporting period.

(2) Entrusted loans

I Applicable & Not applicable

No entrusted loans occurred during the reporting period.

4. Other major contracts

I Appl i capplicable & Not a

No other significant contracts occurred during the reporting period.
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XVI. Explanation of Other Significant Matters

4 Applicable I Not applicable

In accordance with the requirements of laws and regulations, the Company has disclosed trenstignaifters that occurred
during the reporting period on http://www.cninfo.com.8ecurities Time<hina Securities JournaBhanghai Securities News and

Securities Daily Other than that, no other significant matters occurred.

XVII. Significant Matters Occurred to Subsidiaries of the Company

4 Applicable I Not applicable

On November 10, 2020, the Company held the 12th meeting of the 5th board of directors and the 10th meeting of the 5th board
of supervisors, which approvéthe Proposal of Planning thgpinoff of the Holding Subsidianit agreed to plan and prepare the
spinoff of the Company's holding subsidiary Goertek Microelectronics Co., Ltd. For details, pleasehesel@formative
Announcement of Goertek Inc. on Planning and Preparing thedpafi Holding Subsidiaryssued on November 11, 2020.

The 17th meeting of the 5th board of directors and the 12th meeting of the 5th board of supervisors were held on March 1, 202
to approveThe Proposal on the Introduction of External Investors of thelidglSubsidiary and Affiliate Transactiarls agreed to
accept a total of RMB 2,149.987749 million capital investment from 15 external investors, including Qingdao Microelectronics
Innovation Center Co., Ltd., Mr. Tang Wenbo, Gonggingcheng Chunlin EbpigstmentPartnershipl(.P.), Qingdao Henghuitai
Industry Development Fund Co., Ltd., and Goertek Group Co., Ltd., in exchange of 10.4075% of Goermicro's equity after above
capital increase and share expansion. After the above investment, the perckstegesoof Goermicro held by the Company was
diluted from 95.8773% to 85.8989%, which did not change the accounting consolidation scope of the financial statements of the
Company. Details can be found Tthe Announcement of Goertek Inc. on the Introdactib External Investors of the Holding
Subsidiary and Affiliate Transactioissued on March 2, 2021.

On April 21, 2021, the Company held the 20th meeting of the 5th board of directors and the 15th meeting of the 5th board of
supervisors, which approvddhe Pr opos al of fi-Bff oaGoarieknMjcroelattronids kc. &g Listing on the Growth
Enterprise Board of @i eother etated pBoposaisk Detkils can den fgumd in related announcements
published inChina Securities JournaSecurities Times, Shanghai Securities News, Securities &alittp://www.cninfo.com.cn
on April 22, 2021.

On November 8, 2021, the Company held the 24th meeting of the 5th board of directors and the 19th meeting of the 5th board of
supervisors, whicek p pr ov ed T h é&lanRingoop thesSpibff obGoertBk Microelectronics Inc. and Listing on the Growth
Enterprise Board of Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Revisey nd ot her r el at-mahtioped mrgpesalsahlave beerT h e a

reviewed and approvday the Company's first extraordinary general meeting of shareholders in 2021. Details can be found in related
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announcements published iBhina Securities JournalSecurities TimesShanghai Securities NewsSecurities Daily and
http://www.cninfo.com.cn otNovember 9, 2021 and November 26, 2021.

On December 28, 2021, Goermicro receilid@ Notice of Acceptance of Application Documents for Initial Public Offering of
Shares and Listing on GEM of Goertek Microelectromics (Shenzhen Stock Exchange (2021) $®) In accordance with related
regulations, the Shenzhen Stock Exchange checked the application report and related application documents submittectdy Goermi
for initial public offering and listing on GEM, and decided to accept the application. Detail be found iThe Informative
Announcement of Goertek on The Acceptance of Shenzhen Stock Exchange of The Application Documentsaff ©h&&gitek

Microelectronics Inc. and Listing on GENsued by the Company on December 29, 2021.
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Section VII. Changes in Shares and Information about Shareholders

I. Changes in Shares

1. Changes in shares

Unit: share
Before the change Increases or decreases )+, After the change
Bo
Transf
nu
erred
Percent; New | s Percenta
Number from Others Subtotal Number
ge |sharegsh e
reserv|
are
es
s
I. Shares Subject to Selling
o 486,567,82] 14.869 -7,656,45( -7,656,45( 478,911,37{ 14.029
Restrictions
1. State shareholding
2. Shares held by
stateowned corporates
3. Shares held by other
) 486,567,82] 14.869 -7,656,45( -7,656,45( 478,911,37| 14.029
domestic shareholders
Including: held by
domestic corporates
held by domestic
o 486,567,82] 14.869 -7,656,45( -7,656,45( 478,911,37{ 14.029
individuals
4. Shares held by foreign
shareholers
Including: held by
foreign corporates
held by foreign
individuals
Il. Shares Without
o 2,788,870,60| 85.149 148,539,05{ 148,539,05{ 2,937,409,66| 85.989
Restrictions
1. RMB ordinary shares 2,788,870,60| 85.149 148,539,051 148,539,05{ 2,937,409,66| 85.989
2. Domestic listed foreign
shares
3. Overseas listed foreign
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shares

4, Others

lll. Total Number of Shares| 3,275,438,42/100.009 140,882,601 140,882,60{ 3,416,321,03] 100.009

Reasons for changes in shares

4 Applicable T Not applicable

In accordance with the provisions of the relevant regulations and The Prospectus for the Public Offering of Convertible Bonds
by Goert eGoerlelnGonvertble BoadN®m2 i ssued by the Company can be converte
As of the end of the reporting period, the number of converted shares was 171,217,088 (of which 140,882,609 sharestedre conve

during the reportingeriod), and the total share capital of the Company increased to 3,416,321,036 shares.

Approval of changes in shares

4 Applicable I Not applicable

The 23rd meeting of the 4th board of directors was held on September 10, 2019. The board of directors deliberated and
approvedThe Proposal on the Public Issuance of Convertible Bandsother proposals. On September 27, 2019, the Company held
the2ndextaor di nary gener al meeting of s har elhedPlaferths Publit lsstance®fe t i n g
Convertible Bondsand other proposals. Approved by the CSRC Permisg@20] No.780, the Company publicly issued 40 million
convertiblebonds on June 12, 2020, each with par value of RMB 100, and the total issue amount was RMB 4,000 million. With the
consent of AShen Zheng Shang [2020] No . 6 1 dllfon df cogvertbléboridy t he
were listedfort adi ng on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange since July 13,
No. 20 and the bond code is fA12811Tke.Prospectasofordhe fPaplic tOffering bfe r el
Convertible Bonds by é&rtek Inc,  t GoertekiConvertible Bond Nt i sby theeGbmpany can be converted into shares from
December 18, 2020. The Company has fully redeemed alll regi ¢
registration date (one tradimtay before the redemption date: March 2, 2021) Since March 3, 2021, " Goertek Convertible Bond No.

2" was no |l onger traded or convertible. i Go e r Goertek Corvertible r t i b | «

BondNo. 2"wasdelistedon March 11,2021

Transfer of ownership change of shares
I Applicable & Not applicable

The impact of share changes on the financial indicators such as basic earnings per share, diluted earnings per shssetamenet

share attributable to the Compangtsnmon shareholders in the latest year and the latest period

4 Applicable T Not applicable

During the reporting period, the partial conversion of convertible bonds into shares correspondingly affected basipearnings
share and diluted earnings per ghdut did not have a significant impact. The impact on the net assets per share attributable to the

common shareholders of the Company is as follows:

113



Goertek Inc. Annual Report 2021

2021 2020
Financial indicators After share Before share After share
Before share changes
changes changes changes
Net assets per share attributable to sharehold
7.39 8.00 5.86 6.00

of the Company (RMB)

Other content that the Company considers necessary or that the securities regulator requires to be disclosed

I Applicable & Not applicabl e

2.Changes in restricted shares

4 Applicable T Not applicable
Unit: share
. ) Closing numbe
Starting number ¢ Increased in ) ) i
Name of . : Decreased in| of restricted | Type for restricted | Date of the removsa
restricted shares| reporting i _ -
shareholder current period shares in shares of restrictions

reporting period period ; )
reportingperiod

. . Restricted shares of
Jiang Bin 305,989,50; 25,873,95( 280,115,55 ) ] January 1, 2021
senior executives

) Restricted shares of
Jiang Long 147,941,39{ 39,817,50 187,758,89 ) ) January 1, 2021
seniorexecutives

) Restricted shares of
Hu Shuangmei 21,600,00( 5,400,00( 16,200,00 i ) January 16, 2021
senior executives

. Restricted shares of
Sun Hongbin 6,667,15( 6,667,15 ) ] January 1, 2021
senior executives

. Restricted shares of
Duan Huilu 3,355,874 3,355,874 ) ) January 1, 2021
senior executives

) Restricted shares of
Jia Jun'an 150,00( 150,000 ) January 1, 2021
senior executives

] Restricted shares of
Liu Chunfa 863,89¢ 863,89¢ . January 1, 2021
senior executives

Total 486,567,82) 39,817,50 31,273,95( 495,111,37 = ==

Il. Issuance and Listing of Securities
1. Securities issuance (excluding preferred shares) during the reporting period

I Applicable & Not applicable
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2. Description of changes in the total number of shares, the structure shareholders, and the structure of
assets and liabilities

4 Applicable I Not applicable

The 40 million convertible bonds, referred to as NGoertek
2020, were listed for trading on tt* henzhen Stock Exchange since July 13, 2020.
converted into shares of the Company since December 18, 2020, and the total share capital changed from 3,275,438,427 to
3,416,321,036 during the reporting period dueh® ¢onvertion of Goertek Convertible Bond No.2. The changes in the structure of

the Company's assets and liabilities are detailed in Section X Financial Report.

3. Existing internal employee shares
I Applicable & Not applicable
lll. Shareholders and actual controllers

1. Number of shareholders and corresponding shareholding

Unit: share
Total number of
preferred
Total number of Total number of shareholders
Total number common preferred whose voting
of common shareholders as shareholders rights were
shareholders g the end of the whose voting restored at the
178,257 ) 198,374 0 0
the end of the previous month rights were end of the
reporting before disclosur restored at the en previous month
period dae of the of the reporting before
annual report period (if any) disclosure date
of the annual
report
Shareholding of shareholders with more than 5% of shares or the top 10 shareholders
Total commor| The numbe| The numbe Pledge or freeze status
Increase/ded
shares held & | of common| of shares
Name of Type of |Percent ease during )
the end of thg | shares hel¢held without
shareholder |shareholdg ge . the reporting ; . Share status| Number
reporting - with trading  trading
erio
period P restrictions| restrictions
Domestic
Goertek Group  |nonstateo
15.37% 525,183,97{ -58,599,69 525,183,97 Pledge¢ 100,400,30
Co., Ltd. wned
corporation]
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Hong Kong
Securities ClearinOverseas
. 9.36% 319,905,46( 156,836,62 319,905,46
Company Ltd corporatior]
(HKSCC)
) ) Domestic
Jiang Bin . 8.41% 287,397,40(-86,090,000(280,115,55{ 7,281,851
Individual
) Domestic
Jiang Long o 7.33% 250,345,19|53,090,000 (187,758,89{ 62,586,29 Pledge¢( 15,000,00
Individual
China Securities
Finance
. Others 2.43%  83,044,01 83,044,01
Corporation
Limited

National Social
Security Fund Others 0.74%  25,299,92 25,299,92
Portfolio 103

National Social
Security Fund Others 0.71% 24,132,74 24,132,74
Portfolio 601

Shanghai Pudong
Development Ban
Co., Ltd.- E-fund

Yuxiang Return |Other 0.69% 23,636,36 23,636,36
Bond Type
Securities

Investment Fund

Bank of
Communications
Co., Ltd.- E-fund
Compet Adv Others 0.62%  21,089,33 21,089,33
Enterprises Alloc
Type Securities

Investment Fund

Abu Dhabi
Overseas
Investment . 0.60%  20,654,58 20,654,58
) corporation]
Authority

Strategic investors or general
legal entities who become the
top 10 shareholders as a resyNone

of the placement of new sharg¢

(if any)

Explanation of the associatior Jiang Bin and Jiang Long are brothers; Goertek Group Co., Ltd. is a company controlled b
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of the above shareholders or [Bin and Jiang Long.
their action in concert

Explanation on

entrustment/acceptance and
) - None
waiver of voting rights by the

aforesaid shareholders

Special notes on the existing
specialaccount of securities |The special account of securities repurchasing of Goertek Inc. holds 74,265,451 ordinary 4
repurchasing in the Top 10 |accounting for 2.17%.

shareholders (if any)

Shareholding of top 10 shareholders of shares without salestiess

Number of shares without sales restrictions held at the end Type of shares
Name of shareholder _ )
reporting period Type of shares  Number
Ordinary shares
Goertek Group Co., Ltd. 525,183,974 525,183,97
in RMB
Hong Kong Securities Clearin Ordinary share
319,905,46( 319,905,46
Company Ltd. (HKSCC) in RMB
China Securities Finance Ordinary shareg
) o 83,044,01] 83,044,01
Corporation Limited in RMB
) Ordinary shareg
Jiang Long 62,586,294 62,586,29
in RMB
National Social Security Fund Ordinary share
] 25,299,92] 25,299,92
Portfolio 103 in RMB
National Social Security Fund Ordinary share
] 24,132,744 24,132,74
Portfolio 601 in RMB

Shanghai Pudong Developmeg
Bank Co., Ltd- E-fund Ordinary share
) 23,636,36]. 23,636,36
Yuxiang Return Bond Type in RMB

Securities Investment Fund

Bank of Communications Co.
Ltd. - E-fund Compet Adv Ordinary share
) 21,089,331 21,089,33
Enterprises Alloc Type in RMB

Securities Investment Fund

Abu Dhabi Investment Ordinary share
) 20,654,58] 20,654,58
Authority in RMB

Industrial And Commercial
Bankof China Limited- Ordinary share
- 20,562,48( 20,562,48
Selected Stockype Securities in RMB

Fund of E Fund

Explanation on association orJiang Bin and Jiang Long are brothers; Goertek Group Co., Ltd. is a company controlled b
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action in concert among top 1Bin and Jiang Long.
shareholders of shares withot
salegrestrictions, or between
top 10 shareholders of shareg
without sales restrictions and
top 10 shareholders

Explanation on the top ten
common s har eh |Atthe end of the reporting period, the shares held by Goertek Group Co., Ltd., the controll
participation in the financing |shareholder of the Company inde the 150,000,000 shares held in the customer credit trans
and loan businesses of guarantee securities account of Southwest Securities Co., Ltd.

securitiegrades if any)

Whet her the Companyé6s top 10 common sharehol ders and %op 10
repurchase transaction in the reporting period

I Yes & No

None of the Companyds top 10 common shareholders and yop 10

repurchase in the reporting period.

2. Particulars about the controling shareholder

Nature of the controlling shareholder: Private corporate

Type of the controlling shareholder: Legal entity

Legal
Name of the :
) representative/l ) o _
controlling Date of establishmerl  Organization code Business scope
ead of the
shareholder
Company
Residential interior decoration; medica
services; technology import and expor
investment activities conducted with o
Goertek Group Co., | . ) ) funds; nonrresidential real estate leasin
Jiang Bin April 24, 2001 913707007286084226 _ _ _

Ltd. technical servicesyholesale of edible
agricultural products; tree planting
management; electronic products sale
etc.

Shareholdings of the

controlling

None
shareholder in other

listed companies

Change of the controlling shareholders in the reporting period
I Applicable & Not applicable

No change on the controlling shareholder of the Company in the reporting period
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3. Actual controllers of the Company and persons acting in concert with the actual controller

Nature of the actual controllers: Domestic indivatiu

Type of the actual controllers: Individual

Whether he/she has obtained tf
Name of the actual controller Relationship with the actual controllel Nationality right of residence in another
country or region

Jiang Bin Himself China No

Hu Shuangmei Himself China No

) Acting in concert (including agreement, )
Jiang Long ) China No
relative and common control)

_ _ _ Mr. Jiang Bin is the current chairman of the Company; and Mr. Jiang Long is the currg
Main occupation and title . .
chairman and president of t@®mpany.

Information about other listed
companies at home and abroad |Goertek Inc.
controlled in the last ten years

Change on the actual controllers in the reporting period
I Applicable & Not applicable
No change on the actual controllers of the Comparlge reporting period

Block Diagram for Property Right and Control Relationship Between the Company and its Actual Controllers

92.59%

8.41% * 0.47%
[ Goertek Group Co., Ltd. I

15.37%

L ] X X

Goertek Inc.

The actual controller controls the Company via trust or other ways of asset management

I Applicable & Not applicable

4. All the pledged shares account for 80% of the total shares held by the controlling shareholder or No.1
shareholder of the Company and their persons acting in concert

I Applicable a4 Not applicable
5. Particulars about other corporate shareholders with over 1% shares of the Company

I Applicable & Not applicable
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6. Particulars on share sales restrictions for controlling shareholders, actual controllers, or other parties
involved in the reorganization of the Company or in any commitments related to the sales sifare

I Applicable & Not applicabl e
IV. Specific Implementation of Share Repurchase in the Reporting Period

Progress of share repurchase

a Applicabl e | Not applicable
Proportion of
Percentag
repurchased
Amount of|of the tota
RMB amount of shaes to the
| sharesto| share
Repurchasing . shares to be ) Amount of total
) be capital to Duration for Purpose of )
plan disclosurg repurchased shares actuall] underlying
repurchast be ) repurchase repurchase .
date ) according to the| repurchased|stocks involve
according|repurchas _ _
plan in the equity

to the pan| according incentive plan

to the plar )
(if any)

Employee
January 29, 2024 |stock

No less than RME o )
July 29, 2021within [ownership plar

1,000,000,000 an ) )
January 30, six months since thqor equity
no more than ) ) 59,929,53
2021 RMB date of the board of|incentive plan

directors approved (for the
2,000,000,000

the repurchase planjemployees of

the Company

Progress on reduction and repurchase of shares through centoédidied

I Applicable & Not applicable
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Section VI Information of Preferred Shares

I Applicable da Not applicable

There are no preferred shares in the reporting period.
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Section IX Information on the Bonds

I Applicable da Not applicable
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Section X Financial Report

l. Audit Report

Audit Opinion Standard unqualified audit opinion

Audit Report Sigroff Date March 29, 2022

L Zhongxi Certified Public Accountan{special general
Name of the audit institution ]
partnership) Co., Ltd.

Audit Report Number No. 2022500281 of Zhong Xi Cai Shen

Name of the Certified Public Accountant Du Yeqin, Mou Huiling

Text of the auditorods report
Auditordés Report

No. 2022500281 of Zhong Xi Cai Shen

To all the shareholders of Goertek Inc.,

I. Audit opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Goertek Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "Goertek"), which comprise
the consolidated and company o6 2021p eohsealidatedn ds heecemp aansy 6 8 f | BDe o mmmb «
consolidated and companyés cash flow statements, consolidat
notes to the financial statements for the year then ended.

In our opinion, the accompanyirnfinancial statements have been prepared in all material aspects in accordance with the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, giviongsata tr ue
31 December 2021 and ofthe condodit ed and companyds financi al performance and

II. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Auditing Standards for Certified Public Accountants of China. Our

responsibilities under those Standards are furtherdesc ed i n t he fiCertified Public Account
Financi al Statementsod section of the audit report. Keedare in
Public

Accountants of @hhave alfillédio@ otdee aihjcal respansibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Ill. Key Audit Matters
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, are of most significance in our audit of tte financia
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of thetitemsats, anith forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We determine that the following nmaitats are ¢
audit matters that need to be communicated in the audit report.

(I) Revenue recognition

1. Description of the matters

Goertek is mainly in the business of producing and selling electron components, and for the accounting policy of revenue
recognition, please refer to fA32. I ncomed in AV. Singnoial f i cant
statements. In 2021, the operating revenue in the consolidated financial statements of Goertek is RMB 78,221,418,618€2. Reven
is one of the key performance indicators of Goertek and is the major source of profit of the Company, and the accuracy and
compkteness of revenue recognition has a significant impact on the profits of the Company. Therefore, we identified thenrecogniti
of Goertekébdés revenue as a key audit matter.

2. Audit Measures

We performed the following audit procedures in recognition obfferating revenue:

(1) Understoodevaluatedand tested the design and operation effectiveness of internal control related to revenue recognition;

(2) Performed analytical review procedure to analyze the rationality of changes in the operating revgmegs gndfits;

(3) Identified the risk in the commodity ownership and the contractual terms related to remuneration transfer, evalhated whet
the accounting policies for revenue recognition in different modes were appropriate, and evaluated whéther gbimt for
revenue recognition of the Company was consistent with the requirements in the Accounting Standards for Business Byterprises
checking the major sales contracts or orders, understanding the policies for receipt and return of goodscatimgnuwitti the
management and other procedures;

(4) Selected samples to check the sales contracts or orders, sales invoices, shipping orders, declarations for eggybitistion, w
(receipt forms), bank slips and other supporting documents related toueevecognition, and executed external confirmation
procedures on a sampling basis;

(5) Selected samples to reconcile the shipping orders, declarations for exportation, waybills (receipt forms) and ativey suppo
documents against the product sales raeerecognized before and after the balance sheet date to evaluate whether the revenue was
recognized in the appropriate accounting period.

(i) Government subsidies

1. Description of the matters
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As stated in fi36. Deferredome@omfe ONwtfe NVItle &nd , A6GH1l. GOLdren
the financial statements, the government subsidies received by Goertek for the year 2021 was RMB 465,518,187.04, and the
government subsidies included in other income for current year was 4R 19,437.91. Goertek has received a large amount of
government subsidies, which casted a relatively significant impact on the net profit of the current year, and approgrigi@nrec
and measurement of the government subsidies have a significartt impahe accuracy and rationality of financial statements
prepared. Therefore, we identified the recognition and measu

2. Audit Measures

We preformed the following audit procedures in recagniof the government subsidy:

(1) Evaluated the accounting policies related to Goertekos

(2) Checked all the receipts and documents of Goertek related to the government subsidies for the yedg@d2dether the
type of the government subsidies is related to assets or income and whether the conditions for government subsidiesw were met
according to the contents of relevant documents;

(3) Checked whether the payer and fund source of the goversiesidies is consistent with those in the subsidy document to
evaluate the appropriateness of the fund source of the government subsidy.

(4) In respect of the government subsidies related to the income, checked whether relevant expenses incurrechjogrihe C
as the subsidy beneficiary are included in the profit and loss, and accordingly, checked whether the profit and loksWwesdght
connection with the government subsidies was appropriate to the corresponding expense;

(5) In respect of the gomement subsidies related to assets, checked whether the amount of the deferred income distributed and
included in the current profit and loss within the service life of relevant asset was correct.

IV. Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged witrehance for the Financial Statements

Management of Goertek (hereinafter referred to as fheRlanagem
financial statements in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enteapddgfes the design, implementation and
maintenance of such internal control necessary to enable that the financial statements are free from material misdiatberent, w
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is refiy@risr assessing the ability of Goertek to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
Management intends to liquidate Goertek or to cease operatidres ap realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of Goertek.

V. Certified Public Accountsdé Responsibilities for the Aud
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Our objectives ar¢o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audit report that includes our opinion. Reasonable asdughnce is
level of assuranceyut is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Auditing Standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,yirooiirckina!|
aggregatethey could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users made on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or eramd design
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidencsuffatiésnt and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resultingfras err
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misreprasens, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are dppropriate
the circumstances.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies usgdha&nreasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by Management.

4 . Conclude on the appropriateness of Management 6s use of
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertaiy e xi sts rel ated to events or condition
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to dravirattensadit
report to the related discloms in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to express a qualified opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the information obtained up to the date of our audit report. However, future events or copditioas ma
Goertek to ceasto continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities withi
Goertek to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the instruction, supervision ancdeieeution
Groupbés audit, and assume full responsibility for the audit

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit

and significant audit findings, including any significaefidiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them all relationshipstizer matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audibf the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
audit report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circuwestances,
detemine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Zhongxi Certified Public Accountants (special genera/Certified Public Accountant in China

patnership) Co., Ltd. (Project partner):
Du Yeqin
Beijing, China Certified Public Accountant in China:
Mou Huiling

March 29, 2022
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[l. Financial Statements

The currency in the notes to the financial statements is: RMB

1. Consolidated Balance Sheet

Prepared by: Goertek Inc.

December 31, 2021

Unit: RMB

Item

December 31, 2021

December 31, 2020

Current assets:

Cash and bank balances

10,048,521,696.

7,788,139,761.6

Deposit reservation for balance

Lending funds

Held-for-trading financial assets

119,267,279.0

250,789,617.2

Derivative financial assets

Notes receivable

50,094,700.4

93,015,027.2

Accounts receivable

11,899,214,525.9

9,951,611,596.4

Receivable financing 14,575,230.2

Prepayments 97,544,817.9 295,557,594.2
Premiums receivable

Reinsurance accounts receivabl

Provision of cession receivable

Other receivables 374,669,355.9 56,282,930.7

Including: Interest receivable

Dividend receivable

Redemptory monetary capital fo
sale

Inventories

12,082,308,485.3

9,170,731,903.1

Contract assets

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets due within or]

year

67,724.4]

Other current assets

475,772,227.6

522,858,736.6

Total current assets

35,161,968,318.6

28,129,054,892.1

Non-current assets:
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Item

December 31, 2021

December 31, 2020

Loans and advances disbursed

Debt investments

Other debtnvestments

Long-term receivables

Long-term equity investments

437,402,203.9

337,410,802.5

Investments in other equity
instruments

465,677,764.5

357,307,056.6

Other norcurrent financial assety

201,430,042.1]

Investment properties

Fixed assets

18,123,352,480.7

14,674,535,924.1

Construction in progress

2,127,055,853.7

2,078,910,639.9

Manufacturing biological assets

Oil and gas assets

Rightof-use assets

330,796,520.6

Intangible assets

2,762,793,788.8

2,730,415,540.3

Development expenditure

242,956,092.4

107,970,366.0

Goodwill

16,859,185.0

16,859,185.0

Longterm deferred expenses

207,195,490.2

152,215,032.2

Deferred tax assets

495,124,421.8

275,559,445.7|

Other norcurrent assets

506,438,970.3

257,587,428.5

Total norcurrent assets

25,917,082,814.5

20,988,771,421.2

Total assets

61,079,051,133.2

49,117,826,313.4

Current liabilities:

Shortterm borrowings

4,284,859,347.Q

3,189,865,281.2

Borrowings from banks anather

financial institutions

Borrowing funds

Held-for-trading financial

liabilities

15,190,564.3

43,578,775.7

Derivative financial liabilities

Notes payable

2,742,876,464.2

1,797,630,927.0

Accounts payable

18,529,609,655 .4

15,526,558,924.3

Advances from customers

Contract liabilities

2,210,825,761.4

772,033,187.8
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Item

December 31, 2021

December 31, 2020

Financial assets sold for
repurchase

Customer deposits and deposits
from banks and other financial
institutions

Receivings from vicariousliraded

securities

Receivings from vicariously sold

securities

Payroll payable

1,066,570,159.6

1,136,453,967.9

Taxes payable

356,610,000.2

195,498,317.7

Other payables

80,187,733.1

67,844,709.6

Including: Interest payable

8,911,319.9

Dividends payable

Handling charges and

commissions payable

Dividend payable for reinsurance

Liabilities held for sale

Non-current liabilities due within
one year

501,408,170.0

Other current liabilities

14,844,359.0

7,012,595.3

Total current liabilities

29,802,982,214.¢

22,736,476,686 .4

Non-current liabilities:

Reserve fund for insurance

contracts

Long-term borrowings

2,204,215,784.7

2,754,299,262.G

Bonds payable

3,031,391,335.9

Including: Preferred shares

Perpetual bonds

Lease liabilities

210,209,955.4

Long-term payables

Long-term payroll payable

Provisions

Deferred income

540,321,080.6

538,922,331.5

Deferred tax liabilities

389,933,389.4

323,065,909.8
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Item

December 31, 2021

December 31, 2020

Other noncurrent liabilities

Total nonrcurrent liabilities

3,344,680,210.1

6,647,678,838.9

Total liabilities

33,147,662,425.0

29,384,155,525.3

Owners' equity:

Share capital

3,416,321,036.¢

3,275,438,427.G

Other equity instruments

317,690,852.2

Including: Preferred shares

Perpetual bonds

Capital reserves

9,478,106,194.3

3,811,658,791.2

Less: Treasury shares

2,291,973,146.7

516,007,644.9

Other comprehensive income

-100,146,769.5

-112,010,012.5

Special reserves

Surplus reserves

1,446,536,121.5

1,370,122,868.8

General risk reserve

6,081,200.0

6,081,200.0

Retained earnings

15,372,823,358 4

11,500,277,791.3

Total equity attributable to the owner.

of the Company

27,327,747,993.9

19,653,252,273.2

Minority equity

603,640,714.3

80,418,514.8

Total owners' equity

27,931,388,708.2

19,733,670,788.(

Total liabilities and owners' equity

61,079,051,133.2

49,117,826,313.4

Legal representativediang Bin
institution: Li Yongzhi

2. Parent company balance sheet

Person in charge of accounting: Li Yongzhi

Unit: RMB

Item

December 31, 2021

December 31, 2020

Current assets:

Cash and bank balances

4,068,082,163.7

2,834,936,444.1

Held-for-trading financial assets

102,214,286.6

182,338,601.6

Derivative financial assets

Notes receivable

15,951,819.7

75,154,389.9

Accounts receivable

8,009,174,174.2

9,745,537,067.9

Receivabldinancing

12,277,005.3
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Item

December 31, 2021

December 31, 2020

Prepayments

33,005,000.3

37,867,760.4

Other receivables

3,927,667,930.1

3,761,565,682.6

Including: Interest receivable

Dividend receivable

Inventories

5,386,290,840.9

2,307,402,064.4

Contract assets

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets due within or]

year

Other current assets

89,132,401.0

132,090,455.4

Total current assets

21,643,795,622.4

19,076,892,467.0

Non-current assets:

Debt investments

Other debt investments

Longterm receivables

Long-term equity investments

6,182,937,106.0

5,896,926,627.1

Investments in other equity

instruments

Other noncurrent financial assets

81,254,792.7

Investment properties

Fixed assets

9,979,950,421.¢

8,801,650,213.7

Construction in progress 1,083,563,418.2 313,889,183.0
Manufacturing biological assets

Oil and gas assets

Rightof-use assets 70,843,695.8

Intangible assets

2,283,338,054.G

2,258,621,419.9

Developmenexpenditure 105,363,784.9 12,173,386.9
Goodwill

Long-term deferred expenses 6,206,772.8 417,895.6
Deferred tax assets 233,025,132.4 54,618,987.0

Other norcurrent assets

297,122,363.1

110,169,734.8

Total nonrcurrent assets

20,323,605,541 4

17,448,467,448 4

Total assets

41,967,401,163.6

36,525,359,915 4

Current liabilities:
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Item

December 31, 2021

December 31, 2020

Shortterm borrowings

3,346,827,327.9

2,426,635,181.2

Held-for-trading financial

liabilities

4,080,000.0

Derivative financialiabilities

Notes payable

2,348,480,930.9

1,616,583,704.3

Accounts payable

9,328,493,202.4

7,583,147,844.2

Advances from customers

Contract liabilities

340,559,741.3

363,007,702.6

Payroll payable

550,001,996.9

606,402,939.1

Taxes payable

37,673,083.3

34,135,334.7|

Other payables

3,270,836,911.1

1,440,612,669.2

Including: Interest payable 6,306,124.3
Dividends payable
Liabilities held for sale
Non-current liabilities due within
412,234,240.1
one year
Other current liabilities 9,670,427.1 9,707,204.8

Total current liabilities

19,648,857,860.7

14,080,232,580.5

Non-current liabilities:

Long-term borrowings

990,921,555.5

400,000,000.0

Bonds payable

3,031,391,335.9

Including: Preferred shares

Perpetual bonds

Lease liabilities

52,713,002.4

Longterm payables

Long-term payroll payable

Provisions

Deferred income

186,139,483.4

202,689,088.1]

Deferred tax liabilities

373,963,793.5

299,192,361.8

Other norcurrent liabilities

Total norcurrent liabilities

1,603,737,835.1]

3,933,272,785.6

Total liabilities

21,252,595,695.§

18,013,505,366.1

Owners' equity:

Share capital

3,416,321,036.0

3,275,438,427.0
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Item

December 31, 2021

December 31, 2020

Other equityinstruments

317,690,852.2

Including: Preferred shares

Perpetual bonds

Capital reserves

7,706,634,091.2

3,815,383,616.4

Less: Treasury shares

2,291,973,146.7

516,007,644.9

Other comprehensive income

Special reserves

Surplus reserves

1,446,533,339.1

1,370,120,086.4

Retained earnings

10,437,290,148.2

10,249,229,212.1

Total owners' equity

20,714,805,467.9

18,511,854,549.3

Total liabilities and owners' equity 41,967,401,163.6 36,525,359,915 .4
3. Consolidatedincome statement
Unit: RMB
ltem 2021 2020

I. Total operating revenue

78,221,418,618.(

57,742,742,893.9

Including: Operating revenue

78,221,418,618.(

57,742,742,893.9

Interest income

Earned premium

Total revenue from handlincharges and

commissions

1. Total Operating Cost

74,123,260,660.(

54,706,662,977.1

Including: Operating cost

67,167,666,659.6

48,483,805,411.7

Interest expense

Handling charge and commission expense

Surrender value

Net payments for insurance claims

Net amount of withdrawal of insurance

contract reserve

Expenditures of policy dividend

Amortized reinsurance expenditures

Taxes and surcharges

221,891,985.5

200,400,470.0

Sellingexpenses

444,869,977.0

476,066,518.6
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Item

2021

2020

Administrative expenses

1,951,657,773.3

1,629,730,793.0

R&D expenses

4,170,074,282.1

3,425,971,011.6

Financial expenses

167,099,982.3

490,688,772.0

Including: Interest expenses

209,622,292.8

276,706,601.1

Interest income

91,492,632.7

39,217,451.0

Add: Other income

466,722,801.1

224,609,297.7

Investment income {" for loss)

469,239,884.7

138,553,145.3

Including: Investment gains in associated

_ o ) 23,111,753.4 25,126,283.5
enterprise and joirgenture enterprise
Profit or loss arising from derecognition g
) . ) -7,852,608.0
financial assets measured at amortised costs
Exchange gains {" for loss)
Net exposure hedging income'(for loss)
Gains from changes in fair value'(for loss) -48,848,625.9 160,215,070.5
Credit impairment losses-("for loss) -29,693,677.6 -28,402,825.3
Asset impairment losses-('for loss) -241,075,506.4 -207,798,137.9
Gainson disposal of assets-('for loss) -31,179,825.9 -62,250,234.5|

Ill. Operating Profit (+" for loss)

4,683,323,007.§

3,261,006,232.5

Add: Nonoperating revenue

22,444,738.1

18,801,027.0

Less: Noroperating expenses

99,858,949.0

57,841,977.9

I V. Tot ad fPorroftiot ali | osse

4,605,908,796.9

3,221,965,281.4

Less: Income tax expenses

298,842,312.6

370,078,167.4

V. Net profit (*-" for net loss)

4,307,066,484.3

2,851,887,114.1

() Classification by businesontinuity

1. Net profit fr onrd cfoorr

loss)

4,307,066,484.3

2,851,887,114.1]

2. Net profit from-odifo

loss)

(I) Classification by ownership

1. Net profit attributable to thehareholders of the

4,274,702,999.3

2,848,007,269.6

Company
2. Minority interests 32,363,484.9 3,879,844.5
VI. Other comprehensive income, net of tax 21,620,809.0 -27,186,319.4
Other comprehensive income, net of tax attributable 11.863.242.9 27.500.272.0

the ownerf the Company
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Item

2021

2020

(I) Other comprehensive income items which will
be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

39,220,079.9

7,711,365.4

1. Changes arising from remeasurement of

defined benefit plan

2. Other comprehensive income that will ng
be transferred subsequently to profit or loss under the
equity method

3. Changes in fair value of investments in
other equity instruments

39,220,079.9

7,711,365.4

4. Changes in the fair value of tBeo mp a 1
credit risk

5. Others

(I) Other comprehensive income items which will
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

-27,356,836.9

-35,220,637.4

1. Other comprehensive income that will be
transferred subsequently to prafitloss under the equity
method

7,950,273.1

23,160,776.3

2. Changes in fair value of debt investment

3. Amount of financial assets reclassified in

other comprehensive income

4. Credit impairment provision of other debi

investments

5. Effective portion of cash flow hedging ga|

or losses

6. Differences on translation of foreign
currency financial statements

-35,307,110.1

-58,381,413.7|

7. Others

Net other comprehensive income, net of &kjbutable
to minority shareholders

9,757,566.0

322,952.5

VII. Total comprehensive income

4,328,687,293.3

2,824,700,794.7

Total comprehensive income attributable the owne
of the Company

4,286,566,242.3

2,820,497,997.5

Total comprehensiviecome attributable to minority

shareholders

42,121,051.0

4,202,797.1

VIIl. Earnings per share:

(I) Basic earnings per share

1.29

0.89

() Diluted earnings per share

1.28

0.89
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In case of consolidation of enterprises under common control duuimgnt period, the net profit before consolidation realized by

consolidated party is RMB 0.00. The net profit realized by the consolidated party in the previous period is RMB 0.00.

Legal representative: Jiang Bin Person in charge of accouhiingongzhi

institution: Li Yongzhi

4. Parent Company Income Statement

Head of the accounting

Unit: RMB

Item

2021

2020

I. Operating revenue

38,570,677,177.7

34,110,338,839.5

Less: Operating costs

33,462,769,638.7

28,351,975,958.1

Taxes and surcharges

154,866,730.4

170,319,519.2

Selling expenses

366,931,444.5

314,460,991.9

Administrative expenses

1,596,480,325.])

1,328,539,562.5

R&D expenses

2,398,742,531.3

2,064,307,059.2

Financial expenses

194,864,359.6

432,277,098.7

Including: Interest expenses

146,895,744.9

224,966,925.2

Interest income

46,415,186.2

27,722,299.3

Add: Other income

219,224,748.0

42,807,336.3

Investment income {" for loss)

197,716,898.2

694,476,722.5

Including: Investment gains in associated

enterprise and joirgenture enterprise

Profit or loss arising from derecognition g

financial assets measfioe 22971947
Net exposure hedging income"(for loss)
Gains from changes in fair value'(for loss) -12,391,097.5 115,960,471.3
Credit impairment losses-("for loss) -9,464,407.8 22,732,822.7
Asset impairment losses-('for loss) -60,378,317.1] -77,813,666.5
Gains ondisposal of assets-("for loss) -19,259,431.7| -46,327,143.9
Il. Operating Profit (" for loss) 711,470,539.8 2,200,295,191.9
Add: Nonoperating revenue 14,343,882.3 11,191,626.6
Less: Noroperating expenses 81,884,486.8 50,815,665.0,

. Total -prbéitt d¢fial | osse

643,929,935.3

2,160,671,153.4

Less: Income tax expenses

-114,650,228.0

233,595,325.8

IV. Net profit ("-" for net loss)

758,580,163.4

1,927,075,827.7

(I') Net profit fr oom fcor

758,580,163.4

1,927,075,827.7
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Item 2021 2020

loss)

(1'1) Net profit froom d
net loss)

V. Other comprehensive income, net of tax

(I) Other comprehensive income items which will 1

be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

1. Changes arising from remeasurement of

defined benefit plan

2. Other comprehensive income that will ng
be transferred subsequently to profit or loss under the

equity method

3. Changes in fair value of investments in

other equity istruments

4. Changes in the f
credit risk

5. Others

(I) Other comprehensive income items which will

reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

1. Other comprehensive income that will be
transferred subsequently to profit or loss under the eqy

method

2. Changes in fair value of debt investment

3. Amount of financial assets reclassified in

other comprehensive income

4. Credit impairment provision of other deb

investments

5. Effective portion of cash flow hedging ga|

or losses

6. Differences on translation of foreign

currency financial statements

7. Others

VI. Total comprehensive income 758,580,163.4] 1,927,075,827.7

VII. Earningsper share:

(I) Basic earnings per share

(I) Diluted earnings per share
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5. Consolidated statement of cash flows

Unit: RMB

Item

2021

2020

I. Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from sale of goods or rendering

services

79,015,187,941.G

57,009,742,269.7

Net increase in customer deposits and deposit
from banks and other financial institutions

Net decrease in deposits with the Central Ban

Net increase in borrowings from other financia|

institutions

Cash receipts from original insurance contract

premium

Net cash received from reinsurance business

Net increase in deposits and investments from

policy holders

Cash received from for interests, fees and

commissions

Net increase iforrowing funds

Net increase in repurchase business funds

Net cash received from securities trading
brokerage

Refund of taxes and surcharges

2,491,572,718.4

2,159,494,513.6

Cash received relating to other operating activ

4,016,679,085.4

1,762,794,649.3

Subtotal of cash inflow from operating activities

85,523,439,745.1

60,932,031,432.7

Cash paid for goods and services

63,038,774,946.4

42,635,569,184.§

Net increase in loans and advances to custom

Netincrease in deposits with central bank and
other financial institutions

Payments of claims for original insurance

contracts

Net increase in lending funds

Cash paid for interests, fees and commissions

Cash payments of policy dividend

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees

7,719,283,934.4

6,749,284,393.9

Payments of taxes and surcharges

748,229,544.5

692,836,225.9
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Item

2021

2020

Cash paid relating to other operating activities

5,418,675,791.7

3,172,085,514.3

Subtotal of cash outflovirom operating activities

76,924,964,217.2

53,249,775,319.4

Net cash flow from operating activities

8,598,475,527.8

7,682,256,113.6

Il. Cash flows from investing activities

Cash received from disposal of investments

3,101,972,150.2

205,395,809.8

Cash received from returns on investments

36,359,530.8

3,071,032.3

Net cash received from disposal of fixed asset
intangible assets and other leteym assets

121,860,250.6

50,158,655.8

Net cash received from disposalsofbsidiaries
and other business units

6,872,916.8

200,825,819.9

Cash received relating to other investing activi

9,258,951.9

46,410,668.3

Subtotal of cash inflow from investment activities

3,276,323,800.4

505,861,986.2

Cash paid tacquire fixed assets, intangible asg
and other longerm assets

6,961,607,745.7

5,599,269,477.4

Cash paid to acquire investments

3,083,092,515.5

207,730,344.4

Net increase in pledged loans

Net cash paid to acquire subsidiaries and othe

business units

Cash paid relating to other investing activities

Subtotal of cash outflow from investment activities

10,044,700,261.3

5,806,999,821.9

Net cash flow from investing activities

-6,768,376,460.8

-5,301,137,835.69

lll. Cash flowsfrom financing activities

Cash received from capital contributions

2,178,807,429.G

50,528,721.6

Including: Cash received from capital
contributions by minority shareholders of subsidiari

2,178,807,429.G

50,528,721.6

Cash received frorhorrowings

10,317,581,649.4

10,493,168,094.8

Cash received from issuing bonds

3,995,000,000.4

Cash received relating to other financing activi

1,507,365,421.5

1,241,778,394.1

Subtotal of cash inflow from financing activities

14,003,754,499.9

15,780,475,210.7

Cash repayments of borrowings

9,404,218,099.4

11,495,387,428.2

Cash payments for distribution of dividends,

profits, or cash payments for interest expenses

674,578,631.4

571,889,154.0

Including: Cash paymesfor dividends and

profits to minority shareholders of the subsidiaries

5,932,783.3

Cash payments relating to other financing

3,537,780,408.8

2,070,736,840.2
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Item

2021

2020

activities

Subtotal of cash outflow from financing activities

13,616,577,139.6

14,138,013,422.5

Net cash flow from financing activities

387,177,360.2

1,642,461,788.1

IV. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cask

cash equivalents

7,432,490.2

-204,991,873.9

V. Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents

2,224,708,917.5

3,818,588,192.2

Add: Opening balance of cash and cash
equivalents

6,913,191,984.5

3,094,603,792.3

VI. Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents

9,137,900,902.G

6,913,191,984.5

6. Parent company cash flow statement

Unit: RMB

Iltem

2021

2020

I. Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from sale of goods or

rendering of services

41,440,959,868.6

34,637,760,388.7

Refund of taxes and surcharges

1,790,617,461.5

1,794,636,342.4

Cash received relating to other operating

activities

413,354,244.3

991,600,112.6

Subtotal of cash inflow from operating activitig

43,644,931,574 4

37,423,996,843.§

Cash paid for goods and services

33,515,828,921.2

26,854,502,114 4

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees

4,068,784,659.4

3,352,126,718.1]

Payments of taxes and surcharges

194,091,540.8

264,439,744.8

Cash paid relating to other operating

activities

1,609,432,568.1

2,384,116,356.7

Subtotal of cash outflow from operating

activities

39,388,137,689.6

32,855,184,934.1

Net cash flow from operating activities

4,256,793,884.8

4,568,811,909.4

Il. Cash flows from investing activities

Cash received from disposal of investme

236,295,118.6

246,753,013.7

Cash received from returns orvestments 544,414.3 619,011,093.4
Net cash received from disposal of fixed
assets, intangible assets and other-@mm 323,227,247.6 374,260,043.8

assets

Net cash received from disposal of
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Item

2021

2020

subsidiaries and other business units

Cashreceived relating to other investing

activities

8,951,126,589.6

7,265,257,255.9

Subtotal of cash inflow from investment

activities

9,511,193,370.2

8,505,281,406.9

Cash paid to acquire fixed assets, intang
assets and other lofigrm assets

4,448,253,564.4

2,931,933,621.7

Cash paid to acquire investments

418,652,038.1

2,187,937,880.0

Net cash paid to acquire subsidiaries ang
other business units

Cash paid relating to other investing

activities

8,806,986,219.1

8,331,815,435.0

Subtotal of cash outflow from investment

activities

13,673,891,821.6

13,451,686,936.§

Net cash flow from investing activities

-4,162,698,451.4

-4,946,405,529.8

Ill. Cash flows from financing activities

Cash received from capital contributions

Cash received from borrowings

9,085,440,334.0

7,418,870,421.5

Cash received from issuing bonds

3,995,000,000.0

Cash received relating to other financing

activities

6,191,082,902.1

3,252,923,797.1

Subtotal of cash inflow from financingctivities

15,276,523,236.1

14,666,794,218.7

Cash repayments of borrowings

7,202,245,451.9

10,012,913,837.3

Cash payments for distribution of dividen
profits, or cash payments for interest expense

618,985,623.6

470,044,905.3

Cashpayments relating to other financing

activities

6,373,227,380.3

2,806,526,945.9

Subtotal of cash outflow from financing

activities

14,194,458,455.§

13,289,485,688.5

Net cash flow from financing activities

1,082,064,780.2

1,377,308,530.2

IV. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes o

cash and cash equivalents

-5,853,969.1

-21,879,842.7

V. Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents

1,170,306,244.5

977,835,067.3

Add: Opening balance of cash and cash
equivalents

2,309,983,958.7

1,332,148391.41

VI. Closing balance of cash and cash equivalg

3,480,290,203.3

2,309,983,958.7
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7. Consolidated statement of changes in owners' equity

Amount of current period

Unit: RMB

2021

Owners' equity attributable to the Company

Iltem

Other equity instruments

Share capitg

Prefar
ed
shares

Perpeti
ual
bonds

Other

Capital

reserves

Less:
Treasury

shares

Other
comprehen

ive income

Speci
al
resery
es

Surplus

reserves

General
risk

reserve

Retained

earnings

Oth
er

Subtotal

Minority
equity

Total owners

equity

I. Balance
at
December
31, 2020

3,275,438,4
7.00

317,690,85
.25

3,811,658,7]
1.28

516,007,644
95

-112,010,0
2.52

1,370,122,8
8.85

6,081,20
.00

11,500,277,7
1.3§

19,653,252,
73.26

80,418,514.
3

19,733,670,
88.09

Add:
Changes if

accounting
policy

Correction
s of errors
in previous

period

Business
combinatid
n under
common
control
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Other

Il. Balance|
at January
1, 2021

3,275,438,4
7.00

317,690,85
.25

3,811,658,7]
1.28

516,007,644
95

-112,010,0
2.52

1,370,122,8
8.85

6,081,20
.00

11,500,277,7
1.3§

19,653,252,
73.26

80,418,514.
3

19,733,670,
88.09

1.
Changes if
Current
Peri-o
for

decrease)

140,882,609
00

-317,690,8
2.25

5,666,447,41
3.02

1,775,965,5|
1.80

11,863,247
95

76,413,252.
6

3,872,545,5
7.13

7,674,495,7
0.71

523,222,199
47|

8,197,717,9
0.18

(I) Total
compreher
sive

income

193,810,12
.25

4,274,702,9
9.38

4,468,513,1
3.63

42,121,051.
5

4,510,634,1
4.68

(1) Capital
invested
and
reduced by

owners

140,882,60¢
00

-317,690,8
2.28

4,080,674,2|
6.44

1,999,998,5|
5.63

1,903,867,4
7.58

2,178,807,4
9.01

4,082,674,8
6.59

1. Ordinary
shares
invested by

owners

140,882,60¢
00

-316,184,7
0.61

3,209,305,7]
3.20

1,999,998,5]
5.63

1,034,005,0
5.96

2,178,807,4
9.01

3,212,812,5
4.97

2. Capital
contributeq
from other
equity

instrument
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holders

3. Amountg
of

sharebase
d payment
recognized
in owners'

equity

871,368,485
26|

871,368,483
26

871,368,483
26

4. Other

-1,506,131
64

-1,506,131.6

-1,506,131.6

(1) Profit
distribution

75,858,016.
4

-575,516,354
09

499,658,337
75

-5,932,783.3

-505,591,121]
09

1.
Appropriat
ion of
surplus

reserves

75,858,016.
4

-75,858,016.
4

2.
Appropriat
ion of
general
risk
reserve

3.
Dividends
to owners

or

shareholdg

-499,658,337
75

-499,658,337
75

-5,932,783.3

-505,591,121]
09
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s

4. Other

(V)
Internal
carry-over
of
shareholdg

rs' equity

1,585,773,1]
6.56

-224,033,09]
.83

-181,946,8
1.30

555,236.3

173,358,921
84

1,801,773,4
7.25

-1,691,773,4
7.25

110,000,000.
0

1. Capital
reserves
converted
into capital
(or share

capital)

2. Surplus
reserves
converted
into capital
(or share

capital)

3. Surplus
reserves
for making

up losses

4.
Carry-over

retained

earnings
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from
defined
benefit
plan

changes

5.
Carry-over
retained
earnings
from other
compreher
sive

income

-181,946,8
1.30

555,236.3

173,358,921
84

-8,032,723.1

8,032,723.1

6. Other

1,585,773,1]
6.56

-224,033,09]
.83

1,809,806,2
0.39

-1,699,806,2
0.39

110,000,000.
0

(V) Specia

reserves

1.
Withdrawa
l'in current

period

2.Usein
current

period

(VI) Other

IV.
Balance at]
December

3,416,321,0j
6.00

9,478,106,1]
4.30

2,291,973,1
6.79

-100,146,7
9.57

1,446,536,1
1.5]

6,081,20
.00

15,372,823,
58.48

27,327,747,
93.97

603,640,714
30

27,931,388,
08.27
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31, 2021

Amount in previous period

Unit: RMB

2020

Owners' equity attributable to the Company

Iltem

Other equity instruments

Share capiteg

Prefert
ed
shareg

Perpet
ual
bonds

Other

Capital
reserves

Less:
Treasury
shares

Other
comprehens

ve income

Speci
al
resery

es

Surplus

reserves

General
risk

reserve

Retained

earnings

Oth
er

Subtotal

Minority
equity

Total owners

equity

I. Balance
at
December
31, 2020

3,245,103,9;
8.00

2,996,990,6
9.12

395,758,31]
.37

-84,500,74C
50

1,177,415,2
6.08

4,896,40
.00

9,163,016,39
.27

16,107,163,6
9.60

22,041,35
.27,

16,129,204,9
8.87

Add:
Changes in

accounting
policy

196,303.24

196,303.2

196,303.2;

Correctiong
of errors in
previous

period

Business
combinatio
n under

common
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control
Other
Il. Balance

3,245,103,9; 2,996,990,6( 395,758,31|-84,500,74( 1,177,415,2{4,896,40(9,163,212,69 16,107,359,9/22,041,35416,129,401,3
if ;ZZIJJ_ary 8.00 9.12 .37 50 6.08 .00 51 2.84 .27 2.11
111
Changes in
Current 30,334,479, 317,690,8) 814,668,124 120,249,32|-27,509,272 192,707,584 1,184,80( 2,337,065,09 3,545,892,33/58,377,15! 3,604,269,48
Peri-o 0 2.25 16| .58 02 77 .00 .84 42 .56 .98
for
decrease)
() Total
comprehen -27,509,272 2,848,007,26 2,820,497,99| 4,202,797 2,824,700,79
sive 02 .61 .59 16 .75
income
(1) Capital
invested
. 30,334,479, 317,690,8} 1,175,630,5{ 477,129,80] 1,046,526,06/50,092,41¢1,096,618,48
reduced by 0 2.25 0.76 72 .29 .94 .23
owners
1. Ordinary
shares 30,334,479, -68,078,83( 703,406,561 477,129,80| 188,532,409./50,092,414238,624,829.
invested by 0 .06 98 .72 0 .94 4
owners
2. Capital 385,769,6 385,769,682. 385,769,682.
contributed 231 1 1

from other
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equity
instrument

holders

3. Amountg
of
sharebase(
payments
recognized
in owners'

equity

472,223,972
78

472,223,972.
8

472,223,972.
8

4, Other

(1) Profit
distribution

192,707,587
77

1,184,80
.00

-510,942,175
77

-317,049,793
00

-317,049,793
00

1.
Appropriati
on of
surplus

reserves

192,707,587
77|

-192,707,587
77

2.
Appropriati
on of
general risk
reserve

1,184,80
.00

-1,184,800.0

3.
Dividends
to owners

or

shareholde

-317,049,793
00

-317,049,793
00

-317,049,793
00
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S

4, Other

(v)

Internal
carry-over -360,962,411 -356,880,4 4,081,938
-4,081,938.4
of .60 0.14 46
shareholde

s' equity

1. Capital
reserves
converted
into capital
(or share

capital)

2. Surplus
reserves
converted
into capital
(or share

capital)

3. Surplus
reserves fo
making up

losses

4.
Carry-over

retained

earnings
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from
defined
benefit pla
changes

5.
Carry-over
retained
earnings
from other
comprehen
sive

income

6. Other

-360,962,41
.60

-356,880,4¢
0.14

-4,081,938.4

4,081,938
46

(V) Special

reserves

1.
Withdrawal
in current

period

2. Usein
current

period

(VI) Other

IV. Balance
at
December
31, 2021

3,275,438,4|
7.00

317,690,8!
2.25

3,811,658,7
1.28

516,007,641
.95

-112,010,0]
2.52

1,370,122,8
8.85

6,081,20
.00

11,500,277,7
1.35

19,653,252,2
3.26

80,418,514
.83

19,733,670,7
8.09
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8. Parent company statement of changes in owners' Equity

Amount of current period

Unit: RMB

2021
Other equity instruments Other Special
ltem ) ) Less: Treasury| ; ) ~ | Othe| Total owners'
Share capital | preferre Perpetu Capital reserve; comprehensiy reserve Surplus reserve Retained earning :
Other shares . r equity
d shareg | bonds € iIncome S
|. Balance at

December 31
2020

3,275,438,427,
0

317,690,852.2

3,815,383,616.

516,007,644.9

1,370,120,086.
5

10,249,229,212
1

18,511,854,549
2

Add:
Changes in

accounting
policy

Corrections o
errors in
previous

period

Other

Il. Balance at
January 1,
2021

3,275,438,427.
0

317,690,852.2

3,815,383,616.

516,007,644.9

1,370,120,086.
5

10,249,229,212
1

18,511,854,549
2

Ill. Changes it
Current Perio

140,882,609.0

-317,690,852.

5

3,891,250,474,
5

1,775,965,501.
0

76,413,252.6

188,060,936.1

2,202,950,918.9
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2021

Other equity instruments Other Special
ltem ; ) Less: Treasury ) . | Othe| Total owners'
Share capital | preferre| Perpetu Capital reserve; comprehensiy reserve Surplus reserve Retained earning :
Other shares . r equity
d shareq | bonds € income S

(® for

decrease)

() Total
comprehensiy 5,5652,363.1 758,580,163.4 764,132,526.5

e income

(I) Capital
invested and -317,690,852.| 4,005,283,568. 1,999,998,595.
140,882,609.0 1,828,476,729.7
reduced by 5 8 3

owners

1. Ordinary
shares -316,184,720.| 3,209,305,793 1,999,998,595.
: 140,882,609.0 1,034,005,085.9
invested by 1 0 3

owners

2. Capital
contributed
from other
equity
instrument

holders

3. Amounts of]
sharebased

payments 795,977,775.3 795,977,775.3
recognized in
owners' equity
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2021
Other equity instruments Other Special
ltem ; ) Less: Treasury ) . | Othe| Total owners'
Share capital | preferre| Perpetu Capital reserve; comprehensiy reserve Surplus reserve Retained earning :
Other shares . r equity
d shareq | bonds € Income S

4. Other -1,506,131.6 -1,506,131.6
(1) Profit

o 75,858,016.3| -575,516,354.0 -499,658,337.7|
distribution
1.
Appropriation

75,858,016.3| -75,858,016.3
of surplus
reserves
2. Dividends
to owners or -499,658,337.7| -499,658,337.7
shareholders
3. Other
(IV) Internal
carry-over of
-114,033,093.8| -224,033,093.8 -5,552,363.1 555,236.3 4,997,126.8 110,000,000.0

shareholders'
equity

1. Capital
reserves
converted intg
capital (or
sharecapital)

2. Surplus
reserves

converted intd
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2021

Item

Share capital

Other equity instruments

Preferre
d shareg

Perpetus
| bonds

Other

Capital reserve|

Less: Treasury
shares

Other
comprehensi

e income

Special
reserve

S

Surplus reserve

Retained earning

Othe

Total owners'

equity

capital (or
share capital)

3. Surplus
reserves for
making up
losses

4. Carryover
retained
earnings from
defined
benefit plan
changes

5. Carryover
retained
earnings from
other
comprehensiy

e income

-5,552,363.1

555,236.3

4,997,126.8

6. Other

-114,033,093.8

-224,033,093.8

110,000,000.0

(V) Special
reserves

1. Withdrawal

in current
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2021

Other equity instruments Other Special
ltem ; ) Less: Treasury ) . | Othe| Total owners'
Share capital | preferre| Perpetu Capital reserve; comprehensiy reserve Surplus reserve Retained earning :
Other shares . r equity
d shareq | bonds € income S

period

2. Usein
currentperiod

(VI) Other

IV. Balance at|
3,416,321,036. 7,706,634,091 2,291,973,146, 1,446,533,339] 10,437,290,148 20,714,805,467

0 1 5 1 5 2

December 31
2021

Amount in previous period

Unit: RMB

2020

Otherequity instruments Other Special
ltem ; ; Less: Treasury . ) | Othe| Total owners'
Share capital | preferre| Perpetus Capital reserve comprehensi\ reserveg Surplus reserve Retained earning ;

Other shares i r equity
d sharegq | bonds € Income S

|. Balance at
3,245,103,948. 3,030,803,915| 1,177,412,503, 15,889,472,810
December 31| 395,758,317.3 8,831,910,760.]

0 3 8 0
2020

Add:
Changes in
accounting
policy

Corrections of
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